

THES!8

Э



This is to certify that the

dissertation entitled

A Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method for a Class of Singular Diffusion Equations in Two Space Variables

presented by

Li Liu

has been accepted towards fulfillment of the requirements for

Ph.D. degree in Applied Mathematics

David H. S. Sm

Major professor

Date December 30, 1997

MSU is an Affirmative Action/Equal Opportunity Institution

0-12771



## **PLACE IN RETURN BOX** to remove this checkout from your record.

TO AVOID FINES return on or before date due.

DATE DUE	DATE DUE	DATE DUE
		1/98 c/CIRC/DateDue.p65-p.14

# A GAUSS-GALERKIN FINITE ELEMENT METHOD FOR A CLASS OF SINGULAR DIFFUSION EQUATIONS IN TWO SPACE VARIABLES

By

Li Liu

#### A DISSERTATION

Submitted to Michigan State University in partial fulfillment of the requirements for the degree of

DOCTOR OF PHILOSOPHY

Department of Mathematics

1998

#### ABSTRACT

# A GAUSS-GALERKIN FINITE ELEMENT METHOD FOR A CLASS OF SINGULAR DIFFUSION EQUATIONS IN TWO SPACE VARIABLES

By

#### Li Liu

In this dissertation we are concerned with a Gauss-Galerkin finite element method for a class of singular diffusion equations in two space variables. More specifically, we consider the Fokker-Planck equation

$$\frac{\partial u}{\partial t} = -\frac{\partial (au)}{\partial x} + \frac{1}{2} \frac{\partial^2 (b^2 u)}{\partial x^2} - \frac{\partial (cu)}{\partial y} + \frac{1}{2} \frac{\partial^2 (d^2 u)}{\partial y^2} \quad (x, y, t) \in (0, 1)^2 \times [0, T].$$

We are concerned with the case when the problem is "singular" in the x variable and "regular" in the y variable, i.e., the coefficient  $b^2$  may vanish along x = 0 and x = 1, but c and  $d^2$  are bounded away from zero for  $y \in [0, 1]$ .

In the proposed Gauss-Galerkin finite element method, finite element discretization is made in the y variable and the Gauss-Galerkin method is used in the x variable because of the nature of the problem. Convergence of the finite element approximation is established first. Then we analyze the convergence of the resulting Gauss-Galerkin approximation. Finally, by combining the above results, the convergence of the Gauss-Galerkin finite element approximation is obtained.

A number of test problems are studied. The numerical results show that the proposed Gauss-Galerkin finite element method is efficient in solving singular diffusion equations of the type considered here. To my parents, my wife and my son

### ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

I would like to extend my gratitude and thanks to my advisor, Professor David H.Y. Yen, for his suggestion of the dissertation problem and the helpful directions he has proposed in solving it. His advice and encouragement are greatly appreciated. I would also like to extend my warm thanks to other members of my guidance committee: Professors Tien-Yien Li, Gerald D. Ludden, Habib Salehi and Zhengfang Zhou for their advice and helpful suggestions. Most of all, I want to acknowledge and thank the people whose lives were most affected by this work: my wife, Bei Zhang, to whom I offer the greatest thanks for her taking on all household and child-minding duties as I spent long hours at work, my son, Terrance Liu, for his ability to make me focus on what was important, and my parents, Xianrong Liu and Changqun Song, for their unconditional pride and belief in me. Thank you, I couldn't have done it without your overwhelming support, encouragement, understanding and patience.

### TABLE OF CONTENTS

L	ST (	OF TABLES	viii
LI	ST (	OF FIGURES	xi
1	Inti	Introduction	
	1.1	Background and Motivation	1
	1.2	Organization of the Dissertation	5
2	Pre	liminaries	7
	2.1	Markov Process	7
	2.2	Transition Probability	8
	2.3	Diffusion Process	9
	2.4	Fokker-Planck Equation for a Diffusion Process	10
	2.5	Stochastic Differential Equation	12
	2.6	Existence and Uniqueness	13
3	Pro	blem Formulation and Mathematical Properties	14
	3.1	Initial-Boundary Value Problems and Their Weak Formulation	14
	3.2	Mathematical Analysis of Initial-Boundary Value Problem	19
4	Gaı	iss-Galerkin Finite Element Method	27
	4.1	Finite Element Approximation in the y Variable	27
	4.2	Gauss-Galerkin Approximation in the x Variable	34
5	Сог	vergence Results	51
	5.1	Convergence of Semi-Discrete Finite Element Approximation in y	51
	5.2	Convergence of the Gauss-Galerkin Approximations in x	57
6	Nu	merical Results	73
	6.1	Piecewise Linear Finite Element Space	73
	6.2	A Test Problem	81
	6.3	Dependence of Solution upon Parameters in the Singularities	93

	6.4	Dependence of Solution upon Lower Order Terms	123
7	Con	clusions and Discussions	149
Bl		OGRAPHY	151

### LIST OF TABLES

6.1	Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Changes of the three nodes	
	*, + and x at $y = 0.5$ as t increases	91
<b>6</b> .2	Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Changes of the weights at the	
	three nodes $*$ , $+$ and $x$ at $y = 0.5$ as $t$ increases	92
6. <b>3</b>	Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Changes of the "moment"	
	$m_n^i(y, t)$ with three nodes $*, +$ and x at $y = 0.5$ as t increases	94
6.4	Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Changes of the "total mo-	
	ment" $M_n^i(t)$ with three nodes *, + and x at as t increases	95
6. <b>5</b>	Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Changes of the five nodes $\diamond$ ,	
	o, x, + and * at $y = 0.5$ as t increases	96
6.6	Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Changes of the weights at	
	nodes $\diamond$ , o, x, + and * at $y = 0.5$ as t increases	97
6.7	Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Changes of the "moment"	
	$m_n^i(y, t)$ with five nodes $\diamond$ , o, x, + and * at $y = 0.5$ as t increases	98
6.8	Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Changes of the "total mo-	
	ment" $M_n^i(t)$ with five nodes $\diamond$ , o, x, + and * as t increases	99
6. <b>9</b>	Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Changes of the exact total	
	moment $M^{i}(t)$ as t increases	100
6.10	Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Changes of the errors between	
	the exact total moment $M^{i}(t)$ and their approximation $M_{n}(t)$ as t	
	increases	1Ò1
6.11	Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Changes of the relative errors	
	between the exact total moment $M^{i}(t)$ and their approximation $M_{n}(t)$	
	as t increases	102
6.12	Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Changes of the nodes *, +	
	and x at $y = 0.5$ with $p = 2$ and $q = 2$ as t increases	107

6.13	Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Changes of the weights at	
	nodes $*$ , + and x at $y = 0.5$ with $p = 2$ and $q = 2$ as t increases	108
6.14	Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Changes of the "moment"	
	$m_n^i(y,t)$ at $y = 0.5$ with $p = 2$ and $q = 2$ as t increases	109
6.15	Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Changes of the "total mo-	
	ment" $M_n^i(t)$ with $p = 2$ and $q = 2$ as t increases	110
6.16	Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Changes of the nodes *, +	
	and x at $y = 0.5$ with $p = 1$ and $q = 2$ as t increases	111
6.17	Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Changes of the weights at	
	nodes *, + and x at $y = 0.5$ with $p = 1$ and $q = 2$ as t increases	112
6.18	Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Changes of the "moment"	
	$m_n^i(y,t)$ at $y = 0.5$ with $p = 1$ and $q = 2$ as t increases	113
6.19	Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Changes of the "total mo-	
	ment" $M_n^i(t)$ at $y = 0.5$ with $p = 1$ and $q = 2$ as t increases	114
6.20	Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Changes of the nodes *, +	
	and x at $y = 0.5$ with $p = 2$ and $q = 1$ as t increases	115
6.21	Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Changes of the weights at	
	nodes *, + and x at $y = 0.5$ with $p = 2$ and $q = 1$ as t increases	116
6.22	Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Changes of the "moment"	
	$m_n^i(y,t)$ at $y = 0.5$ with $p = 2$ and $q = 1$ as t increases	117
6.23	Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Changes of the "total mo-	
	ment" $M_n^i(t)$ at $y = 0.5$ with $p = 2$ and $q = 1$ as t increases	118
6.24	Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Changes of the nodes *, +	
	and x at $y = 0.5$ with $p = 1$ and $q = 1.5$ as t increases $\ldots$	124
6.25	Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Changes of the nodes *, +	
	and x at $y = 0.5$ with $p = 1$ and $q = 2.5$ as t increases $\ldots \ldots$	125
6.26	Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Changes of the nodes *, +	
	and x at $y = 0.5$ with $p = 1$ and $q = 3$ as t increases $\ldots \ldots$	126
6.27	Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Changes of the nodes *, +	
	and x at $y = 0.5$ with $p = 1$ and $q = 4$ as t increases $\ldots$	127
6.28	Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Changes of the nodes *, +	
	and x at $y = 0.5$ with $p = 1$ and $q = 1$ as t increases $\ldots$	128
6.29	Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Changes of the weights at	
	nodes $*$ , $+$ and $x$ at $y = 0.5$ with $p = 1$ and $q = 1$ as t increases	129
6.30	Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Changes of the "moment"	
	$m_{n}^{i}(y,t)$ at $y = 0.5$ with $p = 1$ and $q = 1$ as t increases	130

-

-

		•	
	6.31	Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Changes of the "total mo-	
		ment" $M_n^i(t)$ at $y = 0.5$ with $p = 1$ and $q = 1$ as t increases	131
	6.32	Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Changes of the nodes *, +	
		and x at $y = 0.5$ with $s = 0, \mu = 0.375, \nu = 0.375$ as t increases	141
	6.33	Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Changes of the weights at	
		nodes *, + and x at $y = 0.5$ with $s = 0, \mu = 0.375, \nu = 0.375$ as t	
		increases	142
	6.34	Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Changes of the "moment"	
		$m_n^i(y,t)$ at $y = 0.5$ with $s = 0, \mu = 0.375, \nu = 0.375$ as t increases	143
	6.35	Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Changes of the "total mo-	
		ment" $M_n^i(t)$ at y=0.5 with $s = 0, \mu = 0.375, \nu = 0.375$ as t increases	144
	6.36	Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Changes of the nodes *, +	
		and x at $y = 0.5$ with $s = 2, h = 0.5, \mu = 0, \nu = 0$ as t increases	145
	6. <b>37</b>	Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Changes of the weights at	
		nodes *, + and x at $y = 0.5$ with $s = 2, h = 0.5, \mu = 0, \nu = 0$ as t	
		increases	146
	6. <b>38</b>	Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Changes of the "moment"	
		$m_n^i(y,t)$ at $y=0.5$ with $s=2, h=0.5, \mu=0, \nu=0$ as t increases	147
I	6. <b>39</b>	Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Changes of the "total mo-	

-

ment"  $M_n^i(t)$  at y=0.5 with  $s = 2, h = 0.5, \mu = 0, \nu = 0$  as t increases 148

.

\_

### LIST OF FIGURES

-

6.1	Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Movement of the nodes *, +	
	and x as t increases	134
6.2	Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Movement of the nodes $\diamondsuit$ , o,	
	x, + and * as t increases	135
6.3	Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Movement of the nodes *, +	
	and x with $p = 2$ and $q = 2$ as t increases	136
6.4	Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Movement of the nodes *, +	
	and x with $p = 1$ and $q = 2$ as t increases	137
6.5	Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Movement of the nodes *, +	
	and x with $p = 2$ and $q = 1$ as t increases	138
6.6	Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Movement of the nodes *, +	
	and x at $y = 0.5$ with $s = 0, \mu = 0.375, \nu = 0.375$ as t increases	139
6.7	Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Movement of the nodes *, +	
	and x at $y = 0.5$ with $s = 2, h = 0.5, \mu = 0, \nu = 0$ as t increases	140

### CHAPTER 1

### Introduction

### 1.1 Background and Motivation

In this dissertation we are concerned with a Gauss-Galerkin finite element method for a class of singular diffusion equations in two space variables. Let  $\Omega = (0,1)^2$  be the unit square. We consider the Fokker-Planck equation

$$\frac{\partial u}{\partial t} = -\frac{\partial (au)}{\partial x} + \frac{1}{2} \frac{\partial^2 (b^2 u)}{\partial x^2} - \frac{\partial (cu)}{\partial y} + \frac{1}{2} \frac{\partial^2 (d^2 u)}{\partial y^2}.$$
 (1.1)

with boundary conditions

$$Bu = g \quad \text{on} \quad (0, T) \times \partial \Omega \tag{1.2}$$

and initial condition

$$u(x, y, 0) = u_0(x, y) \quad \text{on} \quad \Omega \tag{1.3}$$

(1.1) describes the probability density u = u(x, y, t) for a stochastic process governed by a set of two stochastic differential equations in (x, y) with the respective drifts a = a(x, t) and c = c(y, t) and diffusions b = b(x, t) and d = d(y, t):

$$dX = adt + bdW_1$$
  

$$dY = cdt + ddW_2$$
  

$$P\{X(0) = x, Y(0) = y\} = p(x, y) = given$$
(1.4)

where  $W_1 = W_1(t)$  and  $W_2 = W_2(t)$  are independent standard Wiener processes. This is a special case of (2.19) with n = 2 and  $b_{12} = b_{21} = 0$ . We are concerned with the case when the problem is "singular" in the x variable and "regular" in the y variable, i.e., the coefficient  $b^2$  may vanish along x = 0 and x = 1, but c and  $d^2$  are bounded away from zero for  $y \in [0, 1]$ .

We shall propose and analyze a numerical method called the "Gauss-Galerkin finite element method" to solve the initial-boundary value problems for the above Fokker-Planck equations. The method is a generalization of the one dimensional Gauss-Galerkin method which was originally proposed by Dawson[1] and further developed by Hajjafar, Salehi and Yen [4]. We shall briefly describe the one dimensional Gauss-Galerkin method here. More details can be found in [4]. Consider the stochastic differential equation

$$dX = a(X,t)dt + b(X,t)dW$$
(1.5)

for X = X(t) with the initial condition

$$X(0) = X_0 \quad \text{given.} \tag{1.6}$$

The state space is assumed to be a finite interval which we take as [0, 1] and W = W(t)above is the standard Wiener process. It is assumed that the coefficients a and b in (1.5) are continuous functions of X and t in  $[0, 1] \times [0, T]$  where T > 0 is a constant. The initial value  $X_0$  in (1.6) is assumed to be a random variable so that the solution X(t) to (1.5) and (1.6) is a Markov process. It is known that if the law of the process X(t) has a smooth density u(x, t), then u(x, t) satisfies the Fokker-Planck equation

$$\frac{\partial u}{\partial t} = Lu \equiv -\frac{\partial(au)}{\partial x} + \frac{1}{2} \frac{\partial^2(b^2 u)}{\partial x^2}, \qquad (1.7)$$

$$u(x,0) = \text{given},\tag{1.8}$$

plus boundary conditions at x = 0 and x = 1. The operator L = L(t) is known as the forward Kolmogorov operator. (1.7) and (1.8) lead to a parabolic initial boundary value problem for u(x, t). The formal adjoint  $L^* = L^*(t)$  of L above is

$$L^* \equiv a \frac{\partial}{\partial x} + \frac{1}{2} b^2 \frac{\partial^2}{\partial x^2}, \qquad (1.9)$$

and is known as the backward Kolmogorov operator. For each v = v(x) in some appropriate space V, we may multiply (1.7) by v, integrate with respect to x from 0 to 1 and obtain

$$\frac{d}{dt}(u,v) = (u, L^*v), \quad v \in V,$$
(1.10)

where  $(\cdot, \cdot)$  stands for the  $L_2$  inner product. We note that in order to lead to (1.10) from (1.7) it is necessary that all the boundary terms resulting from integrations by parts vanish. We are concerned with singular processes for which the coefficients *a* and *b* vanish at boundary x = 0 and x = 1. To solve (1.10), we replace u(x, t)dx by

$$d\mu_n(x,t) = \sum_{k=1}^n a_k(t) \delta_{x_k(t)} dx$$
 (1.11)

associated with an n-point discrete measure  $\mu_n(t)$ , where in (1.11)  $x_k = x_k(t), k = 1, 2, \dots, n$ , are the nodes and the  $a_k$ 's are the corresponding weights. We also let  $\{v_i(x)\}, i = 1, 2, \dots, 2n$ , be a set of linearly independent functions in V. Substituting

 $\mu_n(x,t)$  and each of  $v_i(x)$  into (1.10) yields

$$\frac{d}{dt}\sum_{k=1}^{n}a_{k}(t)v_{i}(x_{k}(t)) = \sum_{k=1}^{n}a_{k}(t)L^{*}v_{i}(x_{k}(t)), i = 1, 2, \cdots, 2n.$$
(1.12)

This is a system of 2n ordinary differential equations for the n nodes and the n weights as functions of t. A convergence analysis as n tends to infinity is made in [4]. An algorithm for computational purpose is also given in [4] along with numerial results of several test problems. The results show that the Gauss-Galerkin method gives excellent results and is efficient in capturing the singularities at the boundary for large t.

As there seems to exist no straightforward way to generalize the one dimensional Gauss-Galerkin method to a two dimensional one (there is no direct Gauss quadrature formula in two dimensions), Huang and Yen [5] made a modest generalization by discretizing the partial differential equations by the finite difference method in the y direction and then solving the resulting systems of partial differential equations in x and t by the Gauss-Galerkin method. The results showed that the method in [5] is indeed capable of treating singular parabolic partial differential equations.

In our Gauss-Galerkin finite element method, finite element method is made of the y variable while one dimensional Gauss-Galerkin method is used for the x variable. The convergence of the finite element approximation is established first based on the so called "energy" type estimates. Then, using the theories of measures and moments, the Gauss-Galerkin approximation for the semi-discrete equations is shown to converge when one dimensional Gauss-Galerkin approximation is made in x direction. Finally, Combining the above results, the convergence of Gauss-Galerkin finite element approximation is established.

We use piecewise linear finite elements in our numerical computations. we first test a problem where the exact solution is known. By comparing the numerical solution with the exact solution, we find that the approximation is very efficient and accurate, even when only a few finite elements and only a few Gauss-Galerkin nodes are used. For our model problem I Case I and model problem II, we compare the numerical solutions between our Gauass-Galerkin finite element method and Gauss-Galerkin finite difference method [5]. Those two methods produce almost identical numerical solutions. Whereas in [5] it is shown that the Gauss-Galerkin finite difference method is superior to the traditional two dimensional finite difference method in achieving high accuracy for solving this type of singular Fokker-Planck equations, Our results suggest that the Gauss-Galerkin finite difference method. We also study the dependence of the solutions upon parameters in the singularities and the dependency of the solutions upon lower order terms in our Fokker-Planck equations by applying our method to several problems. The numerical solutions obtained show that the proposed method is indeed capable in handling initial-boundary problems for singular diffusion equations of the type considered here.

#### **1.2 Organization of the Dissertation**

This dissertation is organized as follows. Chapter 2 contains some basic material related to stochastic processes and Fokker-Planck equations. Chapter 3 discusses the problem formulation and some mathematical properties. We set up the Fokker-Planck equations with a set of boundary conditions. Then we obtain a weak form in the y variable for fixed x and t. We also obtain several energy estimates. Chapter 4 establishes the Gauss-Galerkin finite element approximation and includes two parts. One is the one dimensional finite element approximation in the y variable while the other the one dimensional Gauss-Galerkin approximation in the x variable. In Chapter 5 we study the convergence of the Gauss-Galerkin finite element approximation. First,

we establish the convergence of the semi-discrete finite element approximation in y. We then prove the convergence of the Gauss-Galerkin approximation in x. Finally, by combining the above results, the proof of the convergence of the Gauss-Galerkin finite element approximation is completed. In Chapter 6 we present our numerial results for problems involving several partial differential equations and discuss such numerical results. Chapter 7 contains conclusions and further discussions.

### CHAPTER 2

### **Preliminaries**

#### 2.1 Markov Process

Let  $T \subset [0, \infty)$  and  $\mathcal{B}_{\mathbb{R}^n}$  be the Borel  $\sigma$ -algebra of  $\mathbb{R}^n$ . Consider a stochastic process  $\vec{X}(t) = (X_1(t), X_2(t), \cdots, X_n(t))^T, t \in T$ , defined on a probability space  $(\Omega, \mathcal{F}, P)$ . For all s and t in T such that

$$0 \le s < t < +\infty, \tag{2.1}$$

for all  $\vec{x} = (x_1, x_2, \dots, x_n)^T \in \mathbb{R}^n$  and for all B in  $\mathcal{B}_{\mathbb{R}^n}$ , we denote the conditional probability of the event  $\{\vec{X}(t) \in B\}$  given  $\vec{X}(s) = \vec{x}$  as  $P(s, \vec{x}; t, B)$ :

$$P(s, \vec{x}; t, B) = P\{\vec{X}(t) \in B | \vec{X}(s) = \vec{x}\} = \int_{\vec{y} \in B} P(s, \vec{x}; t, d\vec{y}).$$
(2.2)

If the probability  $P(s, \vec{x}; t, d\vec{y})$  on  $(\mathbb{R}^n, \mathcal{B}_{\mathbb{R}^n})$  has a density with respect to the Lebesgue measure  $d\vec{y}$ , we denote this density as  $p(s, \vec{x}; t, \vec{y})$  such that

$$\mathbf{P}(s,\vec{x};t,d\vec{y}) = p(s,\vec{x};t,\vec{y})d\vec{y}$$
(2.3)

A stochastic process  $\{\vec{X}(t), t \in T\}$  is called a *Markov process* if for any finite *m* and any collection of times

$$0 \le u_1 < u_2 < \dots < u_m < s < t \tag{2.4}$$

in T, we have for all  $\vec{x}^1, \vec{x}^2, \dots, \vec{x}^m$  and  $\vec{x}$  in  $\mathbb{R}^n$ :

$$P\{\vec{X}(t) \in B | \vec{X}(u_1) = \vec{x}^1, \vec{X}(u_2) = \vec{x}^2, \cdots, \vec{X}(u_m) = \vec{x}^m, \vec{X}(s) = \vec{x}\}$$
  
=  $P\{\vec{X}(t) \in B | \vec{X}(s) = \vec{x}\} = P(s, \vec{x}; t, B)$  (2.5)

The Markov property (2.5) implies that

$$\mathbf{P}(s,\vec{x};t,B) = \int_{\mathbf{R}^n} \mathbf{P}(s,\vec{x};u,d\vec{y})\mathbf{P}(u,\vec{y};t,B)$$
(2.6)

Equation (2.6) is called the Chapman – Kolmogorov equation for Markov processes.

#### 2.2 Transition Probability

For all s and all t such that  $0 \le s < t < \infty$  and for all B in  $\mathcal{B}_{\mathbb{R}^n}$ ,  $\mathbb{P}(s, \vec{x}; t, B)$  is called a transition probability if

- (a) Probability  $B \mapsto P(s, \vec{x}; t, B)$  is defined for all fixed s, t and  $\vec{x}$
- (b) For all fixed s, t and B, the mapping  $\vec{x} \mapsto P(s, \vec{x}; t, B)$  is measurable from  $\mathbb{R}^n$ into [0, 1], and
- (c) For all fixed  $s, t, \vec{x}$  and B, the conditional probability P satisfies the Chapman-Kolmogorov equation (2.6).

### 2.3 Diffusion Process

Markov process  $\{\vec{X}(t), t \in T\}$  is called a diffusion process if

(a) For all  $\epsilon > 0, x \in \mathbb{R}^n$  and  $0 \le t < t + h$  we have

$$\lim_{h \downarrow 0} \frac{1}{h} \int_{\|\vec{y} - \vec{x}\| \ge \epsilon} \mathbf{P}(t, \vec{x}; t + h, d\vec{y}) = 0,$$
(2.7)

where  $h \downarrow 0$  means  $h \rightarrow 0$  with positive values, i.e., h > 0.

(b) There exists a function  $\vec{a}(\vec{x},t) = (a_1(\vec{x},t), a_2(\vec{x},t), \cdots, a_n(\vec{x},t))^T$  such that for all  $\epsilon > 0, \vec{x} \in \mathbb{R}^n, j \in \{1, 2, \cdots, n\}$  and  $0 \le t < t + h$  we have

$$\lim_{h \downarrow 0} \frac{1}{h} \int_{||\vec{y} - \vec{x}|| \ge \epsilon} (y_j - x_j) \mathbf{P}(t, \vec{x}; t + h, d\vec{y}) = a_j(\vec{x}, t),$$
(2.8)

where  $\vec{a}$  is called the drift vector and if n = 1 the drift coefficient.

(c) There exists a matrix function  $b(\vec{x},t) = \{b_{jk}(\vec{x},t)\}_{j,k=1}^{n}$  such that for all  $\epsilon > 0, \vec{x} \in \mathbb{R}^{n}, j, k \in \{1, 2, \dots, n\}$  and  $0 \le t < t + h$  we have

$$\lim_{h \downarrow 0} \frac{1}{h} \int_{||\vec{y} - \vec{x}|| \ge \epsilon} (y_j - x_j) (y_k - x_k) \mathcal{P}(t, \vec{x}; t + h, d\vec{y}) = b_{jk}(\vec{x}, t), \qquad (2.9)$$

where for all  $\vec{x}$  and t, the matrix  $b(\vec{x}, t)$  is symmetric and positive but not necessarily positive-definite. The matrix  $b(\vec{x}, t)$  is called the diffusion matrix and if n = 1 the diffusion coefficient.

## 2.4 Fokker-Planck Equation for a Diffusion Process

Let  $\vec{X}(t) = (X_1(t), X_2(t), \dots, X_n(t))^T, t \in T$  be a *Markov process*. We assume that the process  $\vec{X}(t)$  satisfies the following three hypotheses (Schuss [9] and Soize [11]).

**Hypothesis 2.4.1** The transition probability  $P(s, \vec{x}; t, d\vec{y})$  on  $(\mathbb{R}^n, \mathcal{B}_{\mathbb{R}^n})$  has a density  $p(s, \vec{x}; t, \vec{y})$  with respect to the Lebesgue measure  $d\vec{y}$  on  $\mathbb{R}^n$  such that

$$\mathbf{P}(s,\vec{x};t,d\vec{y}) = p(s,\vec{x};t,\vec{y})d\vec{y}$$
(2.10)

$$\lim_{h \downarrow 0} \mathcal{P}(s, \vec{x}; t+h, B) = \mathcal{I}_B(\vec{x}), \quad \forall B \in \mathcal{B}_{\mathbb{R}^n}.$$
(2.11)

**Hypothesis 2.4.2** The markov process  $\vec{X}$  is a diffusion process. Consequently, the process  $\vec{X}$  has almost surely continuous trajectories and equations (2.7), (2.8) and (2.9) hold with (2.10). We assume in addition that equations (2.7), (2.8) and (2.9) are satisfied uniformly with respect to  $\vec{x}$ . For all  $j, k \in \{1, 2, \dots, n\}$  and  $0 \le t < t+h$ , we then have

$$\lim_{h \downarrow 0} \frac{1}{h} \int_{||\vec{y} - \vec{x}|| \ge \epsilon} p(t, \vec{x}; t + h, \vec{y}) d\vec{y} = 0,$$
(2.12)

$$\lim_{h \downarrow 0} \frac{1}{h} \int_{\|\vec{y} - \vec{x}\| \ge \epsilon} (y_j - x_j) p(t, \vec{x}; t + h, \vec{y}) d\vec{y} = a_j(\vec{x}, t),$$
(2.13)

$$\lim_{h \downarrow 0} \frac{1}{h} \int_{||\vec{y} - \vec{x}|| \ge \epsilon} (y_j - x_j) (y_k - x_k) p(t, \vec{x}; t + h, \vec{y}) d\vec{y} = b_{jk}(\vec{x}, t),$$
(2.14)

where  $\vec{a}(\vec{x},t)$  is the drift vector and  $b(\vec{x},t)$  the diffusion matrix.

**Hypothesis 2.4.3** Functions  $\vec{a}(\vec{x},t)$ ,  $b(\vec{x},t)$ ,  $\frac{\partial}{\partial t}p(s,\vec{x};t,\vec{y})$ ,  $\frac{\partial}{\partial y_j}(a_j(\vec{y},t)p(s,\vec{x};t,\vec{y}))$ ,  $\forall j \in \{1, 2, \dots, n\}, \frac{\partial^2}{\partial y_j \partial y_k}(b_{jk}(\vec{y},t)p(s,\vec{x};t,\vec{y})), \forall j,k \in \{1, 2, \dots, n\}, \text{ exist and are continuous.}$ 

**Theorem 2.4.1** (Fokker-Planck equation for the transition probability). Under the hypotheses 2.4.1, 2.4.2 and 2.4.3 and for all fixed  $s \ge 0$  and  $\vec{x} \in \mathbb{R}^n$ ,  $p(s, \vec{x}; t, \vec{y})$ of the diffusion process  $\vec{X}(t)$  satisfies the Fokker-Planck equation (or the forward Kolmogorov equation)

$$\frac{\partial p}{\partial t} = -\sum_{j=1}^{n} \frac{\partial}{\partial y_j} (a_j(\vec{y}, t) p(s, \vec{x}; t, \vec{y})) + \frac{1}{2} \sum_{j,k=1}^{n} \frac{\partial^2}{\partial y_j \partial y_k} (b_{jk}(\vec{y}, t) p(s, \vec{x}; t, \vec{y})).$$
(2.15)

**Theorem 2.4.2** (Fokker-Planck equation for the probability density function) Let  $\vec{X}(t)$  be a diffusion process satisfying hypothesis 2.4.1, 2.4.2 and 2.4.3, and such that

$$\vec{X}(0) = \vec{X}_0 \quad a.s.,$$
 (2.16)

where  $\vec{X}_0$  is a random variable with probability law

$$P_{\vec{X}_0}(d\vec{y}) = p_{\vec{X}_0}(\vec{y})d\vec{y}, \qquad (2.17)$$

where  $p_{\vec{X}_0}$  is a given continuous probability density function on  $\mathbb{R}^n$  with respect to the Lebesgue measure  $d\vec{y}$ . Then, for all fixed  $t \in T$ , the probability law  $P_{\vec{X}(t)}(t, d\vec{y})$  of  $\vec{X}(t)$  is written as

$$P_{\vec{X}(t)}(t, d\vec{y}) = p_{\vec{X}}(t, \vec{y}) d\vec{y}, \qquad (2.18)$$

where the probability density function  $p_{\vec{X}}(t, \vec{y})$  on  $\mathbb{R}^n$  with respect to  $d\vec{y}$  satisfies the Fokker-Planck equation

$$\frac{\partial p_{\vec{X}}}{\partial t} = -\sum_{j=1}^{n} \frac{\partial}{\partial y_j} (a_j(\vec{y}, t) p_{\vec{X}}(t, \vec{y})) + \frac{1}{2} \sum_{j,k=1}^{n} \frac{\partial^2}{\partial y_j \partial y_k} (b_{jk}(\vec{y}, t) p_{\vec{X}}(t, \vec{y})).$$
(2.19)

$$p_{\vec{X}}(0,\vec{y}) = p_{\vec{X}_0}(y), \quad \forall \vec{y} \in \mathbb{R}^n.$$

$$(2.20)$$

#### 2.5 Stochastic Differential Equation

We denote by  $L^p_{\omega}[\alpha,\beta]$ ,  $(1 \le p < \infty)$ , the class of all non-anticipative stochastic processes f(t) satisfying:

$$\mathbb{P}\left\{\int_{\alpha}^{\beta}|f(t)|^{p}dt<\infty\right\}=1.$$

We denote by  $M^p_{\omega}[\alpha,\beta]$ ,  $(1 \le p < \infty)$ , the subset of  $L^p_{\omega}[\alpha,\beta]$  consisting of all stochastic processes f(t) with

$$\mathrm{E}\{\int_{\alpha}^{\beta}|f(t)|^{p}dt\}<\infty.$$

The stochastic differential equation

$$d\vec{X}(t) = \vec{a}(\vec{X}(t), t)dt + b(\vec{X}(t), t)d\vec{W}(t), \qquad (2.21)$$

is defined by Itô integral equation

$$\vec{X}(t) = \vec{X}(0) + \int_0^t \vec{a}(\vec{X}(s), s)ds + \int_0^t b(\vec{X}(s), s)d\vec{W}(s),$$
(2.22)

where  $\vec{W}(t) = (W_1(t), W_2(t), \dots, W_n(t))^T$  is a vector of independent Brownian motion.

#### 2.6 Existence and Uniqueness

Let  $|\vec{x}|^2 = \sum_{j=1}^n x_j^2$  and  $|b|^2 = \sum_{j,k=1}^n |b_{jk}|^2$ . We consider the stochastic differential equation

$$d\vec{X}(t) = \vec{a}(\vec{X}(t), t)dt + b(\vec{X}(t), t)d\vec{W}(t), \qquad (2.23)$$

$$\vec{X}(0) = \vec{X}_0 \quad a.s.$$
 (2.24)

**Theorem 2.6.1** Suppose  $\vec{a}(\vec{x},t) \in L^1_{\omega}[\alpha,\beta]$  and  $b(\vec{x},t) \in L^2_{\omega}[\alpha,\beta]$  are measurable in  $(\vec{x},t) \in \mathbb{R}^n \times [0,T]$  and there exist constants K and  $K_*$  such that

$$|\vec{a}(\vec{x},t)| \le K(1+|\vec{x}|), \quad |b(\vec{x},t)| \le K(1+|\vec{x}|), \tag{2.25}$$

and

$$|\vec{a}(\vec{x},t) - \vec{a}(\bar{\vec{x}},t)| \le K_* |\vec{x} - \bar{\vec{x}}|, \quad |\vec{b}(\vec{x},t) - \vec{b}(\bar{\vec{x}},t)| \le K_* |\vec{x} - \bar{\vec{x}}|$$
(2.26)

for  $\vec{x} \in \mathbb{R}^n$  and  $0 \le t \le T$ . Let  $\vec{X_0}$  be any n-dimensional random variable independent of  $\sigma$ -algebra  $\mathcal{F}(\vec{W}(t), 0 \le t \le T)$  such that  $\mathbb{E}|\vec{X_0}|^2 < \infty$ . Then there exists a unique solution  $\vec{X}(t)$  of (2.23) and (2.24) in  $M^2_{\omega}[\alpha, \beta]$  (Friedman[3]).

### **CHAPTER 3**

# Problem Formulation and Mathematical Properties

## 3.1 Initial-Boundary Value Problems and Their Weak Formulation

Let  $\Omega = (0,1)^2$  be the unit square, [0,T], T > 0 be a time interval of interest, g = g(x, y, t) and  $u_0 = u_0(x, y) \ge 0$  be given data. We consider the following Fokker-Planck equation

$$\frac{\partial u}{\partial t} = -\frac{\partial (au)}{\partial x} + \frac{1}{2} \frac{\partial^2 (b^2 u)}{\partial x^2} - \frac{\partial (cu)}{\partial y} + \frac{1}{2} \frac{\partial^2 (d^2 u)}{\partial y^2} \quad \text{in} \quad (0, T) \times \Omega$$
(3.1)

with boundary conditions

$$B_i u = g_i \quad \text{on} \quad (0, T) \times \partial \Omega \quad (i = 1, 2, 3, 4)$$
(3.2)

and initial condition

$$u(x, y, 0) = u_0(x, y) \quad \text{on} \quad \Omega \tag{3.3}$$

(3.1) describes the probability density u = u(x, y, t) for a stochastic process governed by a set of two stochastic differential equations in (x, y) with the respective drifts a = a(x, t) and c = c(y, t) and diffusions b = b(x, t) and d = d(y, t):

$$dX = adt + bdW_1$$
  

$$dY = cdt + ddW_2$$
  

$$P\{X(0) = x, Y(0) = y\} = p(x, y) = given$$
(3.4)

where  $W_1 = W_1(t)$  and  $W_2 = W_2(t)$  are independent standard Wiener processes. We note that in the more general case with drift vector  $\vec{a} = (a_1, a_2)^T$  and diffusion matrix  $b = \begin{pmatrix} b_{11} & b_{12} \\ b_{21} & b_{22} \end{pmatrix}$  that depend on x, y and t, the stochastic differential equations are given by the following:

are given by the following:

$$dX = a_1 dt + b_{11} dW_1 + b_{12} dW_2$$
  

$$dY = a_2 dt + b_{21} dW_1 + b_{22} dW_2$$
  

$$P\{X(0) = x, Y(0) = y\} = p(x, y) = \text{given.}$$
(3.5)

The probability density function p(x, y, t) is governed by the following (Schuss [9]):

$$\frac{\partial p}{\partial t} = -\frac{\partial(a_1 p)}{\partial x} - \frac{\partial(a_2 p)}{\partial y} + \frac{1}{2} \frac{\partial^2(a_{11} p)}{\partial x^2} + \frac{1}{2} \frac{\partial^2(a_{12} p)}{\partial x \partial y} + \frac{1}{2} \frac{\partial^2(a_{21} p)}{\partial y \partial x} + \frac{1}{2} \frac{\partial^2(a_{22} p)}{\partial y^2}$$
(3.6)

where

$$a_{ij} = (bb^T)_{ij}$$
  $i, j = 1, 2.$ 

In the particular case,  $a_1 = a_1(x, t)$ ,  $a_2 = a_2(y, t)$ ,  $b_{11} = b_{11}(x, t)$ ,  $b_{22} = b_{22}(y, t)$  and  $b_{12} = b_{21} = 0$ , the above equation (3.6) reduces to (3.1) with p being replaced by u,  $a_1$  being replaced by a,  $a_2$  being replaced by c,  $b_{11}$  being replaced by b and  $b_{22}$  being replaced by d. Henceforth, we shall be primarily concerned with (3.1).

We assume that a, b, c and d are smooth functions with uniformly bounded derivatives of all orders. Many significant results in solving parabolic problems and efficient numerical methods are obtained by Luskin and Rannacher [6], Quarteroni and Valli [8], Strang and Fix [13], Thomee [14], [15], [16], Stoer and Bulirsch [12]. In this dissertation, we shall be concerned with the case when the problem is "singular". More specifically, we are concerned with the case when the problem is "singular" in the x variable and "regular" in the y variable, i.e., the coefficient  $b^2$  may vanish along x = 0 and x = 1, but c and  $d^2$  are bounded away from zero for  $y \in [0, 1]$ .

For boundary conditions in the y-direction we consider along y = 0 the Dirichlet condition

$$B_3 u = u(x, 0, t) = 0$$
 along  $y = 0$  (3.7)

or the Neumann condition

$$B_3 u = \frac{\partial u(x,0,t)}{\partial y} = 0 \quad \text{along} \quad y = 0 \tag{3.8}$$

Similarly along y = 1 we consider the Dirichlet condition

$$B_4 u = u(x, 1, t) = 0$$
 along  $y = 1$  (3.9)

or the Neumann condition

$$B_4 u = \frac{\partial u(x, 1, t)}{\partial y} = 0 \quad \text{along} \quad y = 1 \tag{3.10}$$

The boundary conditions  $B_1u = 0$  and  $B_2u = 0$  depend on the type of singularity one has at x = 0 and x = 1. Suppose that

$$b^2(x,t) = O(x^p) \quad as \quad x \to 0 \tag{3.11}$$

$$b^{2}(x,t) = O((1-x)^{q}) \quad as \quad x \to 1$$
 (3.12)

where p and q are constants satisfying  $p \ge 1$  and  $q \ge 1$ . The appropriate boundary conditions, according to Feller [2] in his study of one-dimensional singular stochastic problems on  $(0, T) \times (0, 1)$ , Keller and Voronka [7], are

$$B_{1}u = u(0, y, t) = 0 \quad \text{if } p > 1$$

$$B_{1}u = \lim_{x \to 0} xu = 0 \quad \text{if } p = 1 \quad \text{and} \quad a(0, y, t) = 0$$
or
$$B_{1}u = \lim_{x \to 0} \left\{ au - \frac{1}{2} \frac{\partial (b^{2}u)}{\partial x} \right\} = 0 \quad \text{if } p = 1 \quad \text{and} \quad a(0, y, t) \neq 0$$
(3.13)

and

$$\begin{cases} B_{2}u = u(1, y, t) = 0 & \text{if } q > 1 \\ B_{2}u = \lim_{x \to 1} (1 - x)u = 0 & \text{if } q = 1 \text{ and } a(1, y, t) = 0 \\ or & \\ B_{2}u = \lim_{x \to 1} \left\{ au - \frac{1}{2} \frac{\partial (b^{2}u)}{\partial x} \right\} = 0 & \text{if } q = 1 \text{ and } a(1, y, t) \neq 0 \\ \end{cases}$$
(3.14)

We now consider the following initial-boundary problem:

$$\begin{aligned} \frac{\partial u}{\partial t} + Lu &= f & \text{in } (0,T) \times \Omega \\ u(x,0,t) &= 0 & \text{on } (0,T) \times (0,1) \\ u(x,1,t) &= 0 & \text{on } (0,T) \times (0,1) \\ B_1 u(0,y,t) &= 0 & \text{on } (0,T) \times (0,1) \\ B_2 u(1,y,t) &= 0 & \text{on } (0,T) \times (0,1) \\ u(x,y,0) &= u_0 & \text{on } \Omega \end{aligned}$$
(3.15)

where

$$Lu = \frac{\partial(au)}{\partial x} - \frac{1}{2}\frac{\partial^2(b^2u)}{\partial x^2} + \frac{\partial(cu)}{\partial y} - \frac{1}{2}\frac{\partial^2(d^2u)}{\partial y^2}$$
(3.16)

It is seen that for simplicity in the subsequenct analysis we have assumed Dirichlet conditions at y = 0 and y = 1. Problems with Neumann conditions at y = 0 and y = 1require only minor modifications. Also we have included a non homogeneous term f = f(x, y, t) in the partial differential equation. Let  $V = H_0^1(0, 1)$ . Multiplying both sides of the partial differential equation in (3.15) by  $v = v(y) \in V$  and integrating over (0,1), we get

$$\int_{0}^{1} \frac{\partial u}{\partial t} v dy + \int_{0}^{1} \frac{\partial (au)}{\partial x} v dy - \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} \frac{\partial^{2} (b^{2}u)}{\partial x^{2}} v dy + \int_{0}^{1} \frac{\partial (cu)}{\partial y} v dy$$

$$(3.17)$$

$$- \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} \frac{\partial^{2} (d^{2}u)}{\partial y^{2}} v dy = \int_{0}^{1} f v dy.$$

$$\int_{0}^{1} \frac{\partial u}{\partial t} v dy + \int_{0}^{1} \frac{\partial (au)}{\partial x} v dy - \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} \frac{\partial^{2} (b^{2}u)}{\partial x^{2}} v dy + \int_{0}^{1} \frac{\partial c}{\partial y} u v dy + \int_{0}^{1} c \frac{\partial u}{\partial y} v dy$$

$$+ \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} \frac{\partial (d^{2})}{\partial y} u \frac{\partial v}{\partial y} dy + \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} d^{2} \frac{\partial u}{\partial y} \frac{\partial v}{\partial y} dy - \frac{1}{2} \frac{\partial (d^{2}u)}{\partial y} v \Big|_{y=0}^{y=1} = \int_{0}^{1} f v dy.$$

Since  $v|_{y=0} = 0$ ,  $v|_{y=1} = 0$ , we get

$$\int_{0}^{1} \frac{\partial u}{\partial t} v dy + \int_{0}^{1} \frac{\partial (au)}{\partial x} v dy - \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} \frac{\partial^{2} (b^{2}u)}{\partial x^{2}} v dy + \int_{0}^{1} \frac{\partial c}{\partial y} u v dy$$

$$+ \int_{0}^{1} c \frac{\partial u}{\partial y} v dy + \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} \frac{\partial (d^{2})}{\partial y} u \frac{\partial v}{\partial y} dy + \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} d^{2} \frac{\partial u}{\partial y} \frac{\partial v}{\partial y} dy = \int_{0}^{1} f v dy.$$
(3.18)

Let the bilinear form  $a(\cdot, \cdot)$  be defined by

$$a(u,v) = \int_{0}^{1} \frac{\partial(au)}{\partial x} v dy - \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} \frac{\partial^{2}(b^{2}u)}{\partial x^{2}} v dy + \int_{0}^{1} \frac{\partial c}{\partial y} u v dy$$

$$+ \int_{0}^{1} c \frac{\partial u}{\partial y} v dy + \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} \frac{\partial(d^{2})}{\partial y} u \frac{\partial v}{\partial y} dy + \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} d^{2} \frac{\partial u}{\partial y} \frac{\partial v}{\partial y} dy.$$

$$(3.19)$$

Or

$$a(u,v) = \left(\frac{\partial(au)}{\partial x},v\right) - \left(\frac{1}{2}\frac{\partial^2(b^2u)}{\partial x^2},v\right) + \left(\frac{\partial c}{\partial y}u,v\right) + \left(c\frac{\partial u}{\partial y},v\right) + \left(\frac{1}{2}\frac{\partial(d^2)}{\partial y}u,\frac{\partial v}{\partial y}\right) + \left(\frac{1}{2}d^2\frac{\partial u}{\partial y},\frac{\partial v}{\partial y}\right),$$
(3.20)

where  $(f,g) = \int_0^1 f(x,y,t)g(x,y,t)dy$  is the scalar product of f and g in  $L^2(0,1)$ with respect to variable y. We also denote the norm of  $f \in L^2(0,1)$  with respect to y by  $||f(x,\cdot,t)||_0^2 = \int_0^1 |f(x,y,t)|^2 dy$ 

The weak formulation of (3.15) now reads as follows: Given f and  $u_0$ , find u such that

$$(u_t, v) + a(u, v) = (f, v) \quad \forall v \in V$$
  
 $u(x, y, 0) = u_0.$  (3.21)

We note here that if homogeneous Neumann conditions are posed, the weak formulation above is to be modified with the space  $H_0^1(0,1)$  replaced by  $H^1(0,1)$  as such Neumann conditions are "natural" boundary conditions.

## 3.2 Mathematical Analysis of Initial-Boundary Value Problem

Let the bilinear form  $b(\cdot, \cdot)$  be defined by

$$b(u, v) = a(u, v) - a(v, u)$$
(3.22)

Taking v = u in (3.20), we have

$$a(u, u) = \left(\frac{\partial(au)}{\partial x}, u\right) - \left(\frac{1}{2}\frac{\partial^2(b^2u)}{\partial x^2}, u\right) + \left(\frac{\partial c}{\partial y}u, u\right) + \left(c\frac{\partial u}{\partial y}, u\right) + \left(\frac{1}{2}\frac{\partial(d^2)}{\partial y}u, \frac{\partial u}{\partial y}\right) + \left(\frac{1}{2}d^2\frac{\partial u}{\partial y}, \frac{\partial u}{\partial y}\right)$$
(3.23)

Taking  $v = u_t$  in (3.22), we obtain

$$b(u, u_{t}) = a(u, u_{t}) - a(u_{t}, u)$$

$$= \left\{ \left( \frac{\partial(au)}{\partial x}, u_{t} \right) - \left( \frac{1}{2} \frac{\partial^{2}(b^{2}u)}{\partial x^{2}}, u_{t} \right) + \left( \frac{\partial c}{\partial y} u, u_{t} \right) \right\}$$

$$+ \left( c \frac{\partial u}{\partial y}, u_{t} \right) + \left( \frac{1}{2} \frac{\partial(d^{2})}{\partial y} u, \frac{\partial u_{t}}{\partial y} \right) + \left( \frac{1}{2} d^{2} \frac{\partial u}{\partial y}, \frac{\partial u_{t}}{\partial y} \right) \right\}$$

$$- \left\{ \left( \frac{\partial(au_{t})}{\partial x}, u \right) - \left( \frac{1}{2} \frac{\partial^{2}(b^{2}u_{t})}{\partial x^{2}}, u \right) + \left( \frac{\partial c}{\partial y} u_{t}, u \right) \right\}$$

$$+ \left( c \frac{\partial u_{t}}{\partial y}, u \right) + \left( \frac{1}{2} \frac{\partial(d^{2})}{\partial y} u_{t}, \frac{\partial u}{\partial y} \right) + \left( \frac{1}{2} d^{2} \frac{\partial u_{t}}{\partial y}, \frac{\partial u}{\partial y} \right) \right\}.$$
(3.24)

Letting

$$a_{t}(u, u) = \left(\frac{\partial(a_{t}u)}{\partial x}, u\right) - \left(\frac{1}{2}\frac{\partial^{2}((b^{2})_{t}u)}{\partial x^{2}}, u\right) + \left(\frac{\partial c_{t}}{\partial y}u, u\right) + \left(c_{t}\frac{\partial u}{\partial y}, u\right) + \left(\frac{1}{2}\frac{\partial(d^{2})_{t}}{\partial y}u, \frac{\partial u}{\partial y}\right) + \left(\frac{1}{2}(d^{2})_{t}\frac{\partial u}{\partial y}, \frac{\partial u}{\partial y}\right)$$
(3.25)

we have

$$\frac{d}{dt}a(u,u) = \left(\frac{\partial(a_tu)}{\partial x},u\right) + \left(\frac{\partial(au_t)}{\partial x},u\right) + \left(\frac{\partial(au)}{\partial x},u_t\right)$$

$$\begin{aligned} &- \left(\frac{1}{2}\frac{\partial^{2}((b^{2})_{t}u)}{\partial x^{2}}, u\right) - \left(\frac{1}{2}\frac{\partial^{2}((b^{2})u_{t})}{\partial x^{2}}, u\right) - \left(\frac{1}{2}\frac{\partial^{2}((b^{2})u)}{\partial x^{2}}, u_{t}\right) \\ &+ \left(\frac{\partial c_{t}}{\partial y}u, u\right) + \left(\frac{\partial c}{\partial y}u, u\right) + \left(\frac{\partial c}{\partial y}u, u_{t}\right) \\ &+ \left(c_{t}\frac{\partial u}{\partial y}, u\right) + \left(c\frac{\partial u_{t}}{\partial y}, u\right) + \left(c\frac{\partial u}{\partial y}, u_{t}\right) \\ &+ \left(\frac{1}{2}\frac{\partial(d^{2})_{t}}{\partial y}u, \frac{\partial u}{\partial y}\right) + \left(\frac{1}{2}\frac{\partial(d^{2})}{\partial y}u, \frac{\partial u}{\partial y}\right) + \left(\frac{1}{2}\frac{\partial(d^{2})}{\partial y}u, \frac{\partial u_{t}}{\partial y}\right) \\ &+ \left(\frac{1}{2}(d^{2})_{t}\frac{\partial u}{\partial y}, \frac{\partial u}{\partial y}\right) + \left(\frac{1}{2}d^{2}\frac{\partial u_{t}}{\partial y}, \frac{\partial u}{\partial y}\right) + \left(\frac{1}{2}d^{2}\frac{\partial u}{\partial y}u, \frac{\partial u_{t}}{\partial y}\right) \\ &= \left\{\left(\frac{\partial(a_{t}u)}{\partial x}, u\right) - \frac{1}{2}\left(\frac{\partial^{2}((b^{2})_{t}u)}{\partial x^{2}}, u\right) + \left(\frac{\partial c_{t}}{\partial y}u, u\right) + \left(c_{t}\frac{\partial u}{\partial y}, u\right) \\ &+ \left(\frac{1}{2}\frac{\partial(d^{2})_{t}}{\partial y}u, \frac{\partial u}{\partial y}\right) + \left(\frac{1}{2}d^{2}\frac{\partial u_{t}}{\partial y}, \frac{\partial u}{\partial y}\right) \right\} \\ &+ \left\{\left(\frac{\partial(au_{t})}{\partial x}, u\right) - \left(\frac{1}{2}\frac{\partial^{2}((b^{2})u_{t})}{\partial x^{2}}, u\right) + \left(\frac{\partial c}{\partial y}u, u\right) + \left(c\frac{\partial u_{t}}{\partial y}, u\right) \\ &+ \left(\frac{1}{2}\frac{\partial(d^{2})}{\partial y}u, \frac{\partial u}{\partial y}\right) + \left(\frac{1}{2}d^{2}\frac{\partial u_{t}}{\partial y}, \frac{\partial u}{\partial y}\right) \right\} \\ &+ \left\{\left(\frac{\partial(au_{t})}{\partial x}, u_{t}\right) - \left(\frac{1}{2}\frac{\partial^{2}((b^{2})u_{t})}{\partial x^{2}}, u_{t}\right) + \left(\frac{\partial c}{\partial y}u, u_{t}\right) + \left(c\frac{\partial u}{\partial y}, u_{t}\right) \\ &+ \left(\frac{1}{2}\frac{\partial(d^{2})}{\partial y}u, \frac{\partial u}{\partial y}\right) + \left(\frac{1}{2}d^{2}\frac{\partial u}{\partial y}, \frac{\partial u}{\partial y}\right) \right\} \\ &= \left\{\left(\frac{\partial(au_{t})}{\partial x}, u_{t}\right) - \frac{1}{2}\left(\frac{\partial^{2}((b^{2})u_{t})}{\partial x^{2}}, u\right) + \left(\frac{\partial c}{\partial y}u, u\right) + \left(c_{t}\frac{\partial u}{\partial y}, u\right) \right\} \end{aligned}$$
$$+ \left(\frac{1}{2}\frac{\partial(d^{2})_{t}}{\partial y}u, \frac{\partial u}{\partial y}\right) + \left(\frac{1}{2}(d^{2})_{t}\frac{\partial u}{\partial y}, \frac{\partial u}{\partial y}\right) \right\}$$

$$+ 2\left\{ \left(\frac{\partial(au)}{\partial x}, u_{t}\right) - \left(\frac{1}{2}\frac{\partial^{2}((b^{2})u)}{\partial x^{2}}, u_{t}\right) + \left(\frac{\partial c}{\partial y}u, u_{t}\right) + \left(c\frac{\partial u}{\partial y}, u_{t}\right) \right\}$$

$$+ \left(\frac{1}{2}\frac{\partial(d^{2})}{\partial y}u, \frac{\partial u_{t}}{\partial y}\right) + \left(\frac{1}{2}d^{2}\frac{\partial u}{\partial y}, \frac{\partial u_{t}}{\partial y}\right) \right\}$$

$$+ \left\{ \left(\frac{\partial(au_{t})}{\partial x}, u\right) - \left(\frac{1}{2}\frac{\partial^{2}((b^{2})u_{t})}{\partial x^{2}}, u\right) + \left(\frac{\partial c}{\partial y}u_{t}, u\right) + \left(c\frac{\partial u_{t}}{\partial y}, u\right) \right\}$$

$$+ \left(\frac{1}{2}\frac{\partial(d^{2})}{\partial y}u_{t}, \frac{\partial u}{\partial y}\right) + \left(\frac{1}{2}d^{2}\frac{\partial u_{t}}{\partial y}, \frac{\partial u}{\partial y}\right) \right\}$$

$$- \left\{ \left(\frac{\partial(au)}{\partial x}, u_{t}\right) - \left(\frac{1}{2}\frac{\partial^{2}((b^{2})u)}{\partial x^{2}}, u_{t}\right) + \left(\frac{\partial c}{\partial y}u, u_{t}\right) + \left(c\frac{\partial u}{\partial y}, u_{t}\right) \right\}$$

$$+ \left(\frac{1}{2}\frac{\partial(d^{2})}{\partial y}u, \frac{\partial u_{t}}{\partial y}\right) + \left(\frac{1}{2}d^{2}\frac{\partial u}{\partial y}, \frac{\partial u_{t}}{\partial y}\right) \right\}.$$

So

$$\frac{d}{dt}a(u,u) = a_t(u,u) + 2a(u,u_t) - b(u,u_t).$$
(3.26)

Thus we have

$$a(u, u_t) = \frac{1}{2} \frac{d}{dt} a(u, u) - \frac{1}{2} a_t(u, u) + \frac{1}{2} b(u, u_t)$$
(3.27)

We now ssume that  $a(\cdot, \cdot)$  is continuous and coercive, i.e., there is a positive constant  $\alpha$ , independent of t, such that

$$a(v,v) \ge \alpha \|v\|_1^2, \quad \forall v \in V.$$
(3.28)

**Theorem 3.2.1** If  $u_0 \in L^2(0,1)$ ,  $f \in L^2(0,1)$ , then for almost every  $x \in (0,1)$ , the

energy estimate

$$\max_{0 \le t \le T} ||u(x, \cdot, t)||_{0}^{2} + \alpha \int_{0}^{T} ||u(x, \cdot, t)||_{1}^{2} dt 
\le ||u_{0}(x, \cdot)||_{0}^{2} + \frac{1}{\alpha} \int_{0}^{T} ||f(x, \cdot, t)||_{0}^{2} dt$$
(3.29)

holds.

*Proof.* By (3.21), we have

$$(u_t, v) + a(u, v) = (f, v)$$

Taking v = u and using (3.28), we get

$$\begin{split} &(u_t, u) + a(u, u) = (f, u) \\ &\frac{1}{2} \frac{d}{dt} (u, u) + a(u, u) = (f, u) \\ &\frac{1}{2} \frac{d}{dt} ||u(x, \cdot, t)||_0^2 + a(u, u) = (f, u) \\ &\frac{1}{2} \frac{d}{dt} ||u(x, \cdot, t)||_0^2 + \alpha ||u(x, \cdot, t)||_1^2 \leq \frac{1}{2} \frac{d}{dt} ||u(x, \cdot, t)||_0^2 + a(u, u) \\ &\leq |(f, u)| \leq \frac{1}{2\alpha} ||f(x, \cdot, t)||_0^2 + \frac{\alpha}{2} ||u(x, \cdot, t)||_0^2 \\ &\leq \frac{1}{2\alpha} ||f(x, \cdot, t)||_0^2 + \frac{\alpha}{2} ||u(x, \cdot, t)||_1^2 \end{split}$$

Integrating over  $(0, \tau), \tau \in (0, T]$ , we obtain

$$\begin{split} &\frac{1}{2} \int_0^\tau \frac{d}{dt} ||u(x,\cdot,t)||_0^2 dt + \alpha \int_0^\tau ||u(x,\cdot,t)||_1^2 dt \\ &\leq \frac{1}{2\alpha} \int_0^\tau ||f(x,\cdot,t)||_0^2 dt + \frac{\alpha}{2} \int_0^\tau ||u(x,\cdot,t)||_1^2 dt \\ &\frac{1}{2} ||u(x,\cdot,\tau)||_0^2 - \frac{1}{2} ||u(x,\cdot,0)||_0^2 + \frac{\alpha}{2} \int_0^\tau ||u(x,\cdot,t)||_1^2 dt \leq \frac{1}{2\alpha} \int_0^\tau ||f(x,\cdot,t)||_0^2 dt \\ &||u(x,\cdot,\tau)||_0^2 + \alpha \int_0^\tau ||u(x,\cdot,t)||_1^2 dt \leq ||u_0(x,\cdot)||_0^2 + \frac{1}{\alpha} \int_0^\tau ||f(x,\cdot,t)||_0^2 dt \end{split}$$

So,

$$\max_{0 \le t \le T} ||u(x,\cdot,t)||_0^2 + \alpha \int_0^T ||u(x,\cdot,t)||_1^2 dt \le ||u_0(x,\cdot)||_0^2 + \frac{1}{\alpha} \int_0^T ||f(x,\cdot,t)||_0^2 dt \qquad \Box$$

From now on, we shall assume that

$$\begin{aligned} |a(u,v)| &\leq c ||u(x,\cdot,t)||_{1} ||v(x,\cdot,t)||_{1} \\ |a_{t}(u,v)| &\leq c ||u(x,\cdot,t)||_{1} ||v(x,\cdot,t)||_{1} \\ |b(u,v)| &\leq c ||u(x,\cdot,t)||_{1} ||v(x,\cdot,t)||_{0} \end{aligned}$$
(3.30)

**Theorem 3.2.2** If  $u_0 \in H_0^1(0,1)$ ,  $f \in L^2(0,1)$ , then for almost every  $x \in (0,1)$  the energy estimate

$$\sup_{t \in (0,T)} ||u(x,\cdot,t)||_{1}^{2} + \frac{1}{\alpha} \int_{0}^{T} ||\frac{\partial u(x,\cdot,t)}{\partial t}||_{0}^{2} dt$$

$$\leq C_{\alpha} \left\{ ||u_{0}(x,\cdot)||_{1}^{2} + \int_{0}^{T} ||f(x,\cdot,t)||_{0}^{2} dt \right\}$$
(3.31)

holds, where  $C_{\alpha} > 0$  is a constant independent of T.

Proof. By (3.21),

$$(u_t, v) + a(u, v) = (f, v).$$

Taking  $v = u_t$ , we obtain

$$(u_t, u_t) + a(u, u_t) = (f, u_t)$$
  
 $||u_t||_0^2 + a(u, u_t) = (f, u_t).$ 

By (3.27), we obtain

$$||u_t||_0^2 + \frac{1}{2}\frac{d}{dt}a(u,u) - \frac{1}{2}a_t(u,u) + \frac{1}{2}b(u,u_t) = (f,u_t).$$

$$\begin{aligned} ||u_t||_0^2 + \frac{1}{2} \frac{d}{dt} a(u, u) &= \frac{1}{2} a_t(u, u) - \frac{1}{2} b(u, u_t) + (f, u_t) \\ &\leq \frac{c}{2} ||u||_1^2 + \frac{c}{2} ||u||_1 ||u_t||_0 + |(f, u_t)|. \end{aligned}$$

Integrating over  $(0, t), t \in (0, T]$ , we obtain

$$\begin{split} &\int_0^t ||u_s||_0^2 ds + \frac{1}{2} \int_0^t \frac{d}{ds} a(u, u) ds \\ &\leq \frac{c}{2} \int_0^t ||u||_1^2 ds + \frac{c}{2} \int_0^t ||u||_1 ||u_s||_0 ds + \int_0^t |(f, u_s)| ds \\ &\leq c \int_0^t ||u||_1^2 ds + c^2 \int_0^t ||u||_1^2 ds + \frac{1}{4} \int_0^t ||u_s||_0^2 ds + \frac{1}{4} \int_0^t ||u_s||_0^2 ds + \int_0^t ||f||_0^2 ds. \end{split}$$

Hence,

So,

$$\frac{1}{2}\int_0^t ||u_s||_0^2 ds + \frac{1}{2}\int_0^t \frac{d}{ds}a(u,u)ds \le c(1+c)\int_0^t ||u||_1^2 ds + \int_0^t ||f||_0^2 ds.$$

By (3.29), we have

$$\int_0^t ||u||_1^2 ds \leq \frac{1}{\alpha} ||u_0||_0^2 + \frac{1}{\alpha^2} \int_0^T ||f||_0^2 ds.$$

So,

$$\begin{split} &\frac{1}{2} \int_0^t ||u_s||_0^2 ds + \frac{1}{2} a(u(t), u(t)) - \frac{1}{2} a(u(0), u(0)) \\ &\leq \frac{c(1+c)}{\alpha} ||u_0||_0^2 + \left(1 + \frac{c(1+c)}{\alpha^2}\right) \int_0^T ||f||_0^2 ds \\ &\frac{1}{2} \int_0^t ||u_s||_0^2 ds + \frac{1}{2} a(u(t), u(t)) \\ &\leq \frac{1}{2} a(u(0), u(0)) + \frac{c(1+c)}{\alpha} ||u_0||_0^2 + \left(1 + \frac{c(1+c)}{\alpha^2}\right) \int_0^T ||f||_0^2 ds. \end{split}$$

By assumption of (3.28) and (3.30), we have

$$a(u(t),u(t))\geq lpha||u||_1^2, \hspace{1em} a(u(0),u(0))\leq c||u_0||_1^2 \hspace{1em} ext{and} \hspace{1em} ||u_0||_0^2\leq ||u_0||_1^2.$$

Therefore

A simple consequence of Theorem (3.2.2) is given by

**Corollary 3.2.1** Assume that for almost every  $x \in (0,1)$  and  $t \in [0,T]$ , u in Theorem 3.2.2 satisfies

$$\|u(x,\cdot,t)\|_{2}^{2} \leq C(\|Lu(x,\cdot,t)\|_{0}^{2} + \|u(x,\cdot,t)\|_{1}^{2}).$$
(3.32)

Then for almost every  $x \in (0,1)$  u satisfies the estimate

$$\max_{t \in [0,T]} \|u(x,\cdot,t)\|_{1}^{2} + \frac{1}{\alpha} \int_{0}^{T} \left\{ \left\| \frac{\partial u(x,\cdot,t)}{\partial t} \right\|_{0}^{2} + \|u(x,\cdot,t)\|_{2}^{2} \right\} dt \\
\leq C_{\alpha} \left\{ \|u_{0}(x,\cdot)\|_{1}^{2} + \int_{0}^{T} \|f(x,\cdot,t)\|_{0}^{2} dt \right\}$$
(3.33)

*Proof.* Estimate (3.33) follows at once from (3.32), (3.31) and (3.29), since  $Lu = f - \frac{\partial u}{\partial t}$ .

#### **CHAPTER 4**

# Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method

# 4.1 Finite Element Approximation in the y Variable

Let  $V_h \subset H_0^1(0,1)$  be a finite dimensional subspace and  $\{\phi_l(y)\}_{l=0}^{N_y}$  be base functions of  $V_h$ . By (3.18), we have

$$\int_{0}^{1} \frac{\partial u}{\partial t} v dy + \int_{0}^{1} \frac{\partial (au)}{\partial x} v dy - \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} \frac{\partial^{2} (b^{2}u)}{\partial x^{2}} v dy + \int_{0}^{1} \frac{\partial c}{\partial y} u v dy + \int_{0}^{1} \frac{\partial (d^{2})}{\partial y} u \frac{\partial v}{\partial y} dy + \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} d^{2} \frac{\partial u}{\partial y} \frac{\partial v}{\partial y} dy = \int_{0}^{1} f v dy.$$

$$(4.1)$$

Taking  $v = \phi_l(y), l = 0, 1, \dots, N_y$ , we obtain

$$\int_{0}^{1} \frac{\partial u}{\partial t} \phi_{l}(y) dy + \int_{0}^{1} \frac{\partial (au)}{\partial x} \phi_{l}(y) dy - \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} \frac{\partial^{2} (b^{2}u)}{\partial x^{2}} \phi_{l}(y) dy$$
$$+ \int_{0}^{1} \frac{\partial c}{\partial y} u \phi_{l}(y) dy + \int_{0}^{1} c \frac{\partial u}{\partial y} \phi_{l}(y) dy + \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} \frac{\partial (d^{2})}{\partial y} u \phi_{l}'(y) dy$$
$$+ \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} d^{2} \frac{\partial u}{\partial y} \phi_{l}'(y) dy = \int_{0}^{1} f \phi_{l}(y) dy.$$
(4.2)

We approximate u(x, y, t) by

$$u(x, y, t) \approx \sum_{j=0}^{N_y} \alpha_j(x, t) \phi_j(y).$$
(4.3)

From (4.2), we obtain

$$\begin{split} &\sum_{j=0}^{N_{\mathbf{y}}} \frac{\partial \alpha_{j}(x,t)}{\partial t} \int_{0}^{1} \phi_{l}(y)\phi_{j}(y)dy = -\sum_{j=0}^{N_{\mathbf{y}}} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{\partial (a\alpha_{j}(x,t))}{\partial x} \phi_{l}(y)\phi_{j}(y)dy \\ &+ \frac{1}{2} \sum_{j=0}^{N_{\mathbf{y}}} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{\partial^{2}(b^{2}\alpha_{j}(x,t))}{\partial x^{2}} \phi_{l}(y)\phi_{j}(y)dy - \sum_{j=0}^{N_{\mathbf{y}}} \alpha_{j}(x,t) \int_{0}^{1} \frac{\partial c}{\partial y} \phi_{l}(y)\phi_{j}(y)dy \\ &- \sum_{j=0}^{N_{\mathbf{y}}} \alpha_{j}(x,t) \int_{0}^{1} c\phi_{l}(y)\phi_{j}'(y)dy - \frac{1}{2} \sum_{j=0}^{N_{\mathbf{y}}} \alpha_{j}(x,t) \int_{0}^{1} \frac{\partial (d^{2})}{\partial y} \phi_{l}'(y)\phi_{j}(y)dy \\ &- \frac{1}{2} \sum_{j=0}^{N_{\mathbf{y}}} \alpha_{j}(x,t) \int_{0}^{1} d^{2}\phi_{l}'(y)\phi_{j}'(y)dy + \int_{0}^{1} f\phi_{l}(y)dy, \end{split}$$
(4.4)

or,

$$\begin{pmatrix} \phi(l,0) & \phi(l,1) & \cdots & \phi(l,N_y) \end{pmatrix} \begin{pmatrix} \frac{\partial \alpha_0(x,t)}{\partial t} \\ \frac{\partial \alpha_1(x,t)}{\partial t} \\ \vdots \\ \frac{\partial \alpha_N_y(x,t)}{\partial t} \end{pmatrix}$$

$$= -\sum_{j=0}^{N_y} \int_0^1 \frac{\partial (a\alpha_j(x,t))}{\partial x} \phi_l(y) \phi_j(y) dy$$

$$+ \frac{1}{2} \sum_{j=0}^{N_y} \int_0^1 \frac{\partial^2 (b^2 \alpha_j(x,t))}{\partial x^2} \phi_l(y) \phi_j(y) dy - \sum_{j=0}^{N_y} \alpha_j(x,t) \int_0^1 \frac{\partial c}{\partial y} \phi_l(y) \phi_j(y) dy$$

$$- \sum_{j=0}^{N_y} \alpha_j(x,t) \int_0^1 c \phi_l(y) \phi_j'(y) dy - \frac{1}{2} \sum_{j=0}^{N_y} \alpha_j(x,t) \int_0^1 \frac{\partial (d^2)}{\partial y} \phi_l'(y) \phi_j(y) dy$$

$$- \frac{1}{2} \sum_{j=0}^{N_y} \alpha_j(x,t) \int_0^1 d^2 \phi_l'(y) \phi_j'(y) dy + \int_0^1 f \phi_l(y) dy,$$

$$(4.5)$$

where  $\phi(l,j) = \int_0^1 \phi_l(y) \phi_j(y) dy$ . Thus

$$\begin{pmatrix} \phi(0,0) & \phi(0,1) & \cdots & \phi(0,N_y) \\ & & & \\ \phi(1,0) & \phi(1,1) & \cdots & \phi(1,N_y) \\ \vdots & \vdots & \cdots & \vdots \\ \phi(N_y,0) & \phi(N_y,1) & \cdots & \phi(N_y,N_y) \end{pmatrix} \begin{pmatrix} \frac{\partial \alpha_0(x,t)}{\partial t} \\ \frac{\partial \alpha_1(x,t)}{\partial t} \\ \vdots \\ \frac{\partial \alpha_1(x,t)}{\partial t} \\ \frac{\partial \alpha_1(x,t)}{\partial t} \end{pmatrix}$$

$$= - \left( \begin{array}{c} \sum_{j=0}^{N_{\mathbf{y}}} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{\partial(a\alpha_{j}(x,t))}{\partial x} \phi_{0}(y)\phi_{j}(y)dy \\ \sum_{j=0}^{N_{\mathbf{y}}} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{\partial(a\alpha_{j}(x,t))}{\partial x} \phi_{1}(y)\phi_{j}(y)dy \\ \vdots \\ \sum_{j=0}^{N_{\mathbf{y}}} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{\partial(a\alpha_{j}(x,t))}{\partial x} \phi_{N_{\mathbf{y}}}(y)\phi_{j}(y)dy \end{array} \right)$$
(4.6)

$$+ \begin{pmatrix} \frac{1}{2} \sum_{j=0}^{N_{\psi}} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{\partial^{2}(b^{2}\alpha_{j}(x,t))}{\partial x^{2}} \phi_{0}(y)\phi_{j}(y)dy \\ \frac{1}{2} \sum_{j=0}^{N_{\psi}} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{\partial^{2}(b^{2}\alpha_{j}(x,t))}{\partial x^{2}} \phi_{1}(y)\phi_{j}(y)dy \\ \vdots \\ \frac{1}{2} \sum_{j=0}^{N_{\psi}} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{\partial^{2}(b^{2}\alpha_{j}(x,t))}{\partial x^{2}} \phi_{N_{\psi}}(y)\phi_{j}(y)dy \end{pmatrix}$$

$$+ \left( \begin{array}{c} \sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}} \alpha_{j}(x,t) \int_{0}^{1} \frac{\partial c}{\partial y} \phi_{0}(y) \phi_{j}(y) dy \\ \sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}} \alpha_{j}(x,t) \int_{0}^{1} \frac{\partial c}{\partial y} \phi_{1}(y) \phi_{j}(y) dy \\ \vdots \\ \sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}} \alpha_{j}(x,t) \int_{0}^{1} \frac{\partial c}{\partial y} \phi_{N_{y}}(y) \phi_{j}(y) dy \\ \vdots \\ \frac{1}{2} \sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}} \alpha_{j} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{\partial (d^{2})}{\partial y} \phi_{0}'(y) \phi_{j}(y) dy \\ \vdots \\ \frac{1}{2} \sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}} \alpha_{j} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{\partial (d^{2})}{\partial y} \phi_{1}'(y) \phi_{j}(y) dy \\ \vdots \\ \frac{1}{2} \sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}} \alpha_{j} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{\partial (d^{2})}{\partial y} \phi_{N_{y}}'(y) \phi_{j}(y) dy \\ \vdots \\ \frac{1}{2} \sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}} \alpha_{j} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{\partial (d^{2})}{\partial y} \phi_{N_{y}}'(y) \phi_{j}(y) dy \\ \vdots \\ \frac{1}{2} \sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}} \alpha_{j} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{\partial (d^{2})}{\partial y} \phi_{N_{y}}'(y) \phi_{j}(y) dy \\ \vdots \\ \int_{0}^{1} f \phi_{0}(y) dy \\ \vdots \\ \int_{0}^{1} f \phi_{0}(y) dy \\ \end{array} \right) + \left( \begin{array}{c} \int_{0}^{1} f \phi_{0}(y) dy \\ \int_{0}^{1} f \phi_{0}(y) dy \\ \vdots \\ \int_{0}^{1} f \phi_{0}(y) dy \\ \vdots \\ \int_{0}^{1} f \phi_{0}(y) dy \\ \end{array} \right)$$

And

$$\begin{pmatrix} \frac{\partial \alpha_0(x,t)}{\partial t} \\ \frac{\partial \alpha_1(x,t)}{\partial t} \\ \vdots \\ \frac{\partial \alpha_{N_{\mathbf{y}}}(x,t)}{\partial t} \end{pmatrix} = -\Phi^{-1} \begin{pmatrix} \sum_{j=0}^{N_{\mathbf{y}}} \int_0^1 \frac{\partial (a\alpha_j(x,t))}{\partial x} \phi_0(y) \phi_j(y) dy \\ \sum_{j=0}^{N_{\mathbf{y}}} \int_0^1 \frac{\partial (a\alpha_j(x,t))}{\partial x} \phi_1(y) \phi_j(y) dy \\ \vdots \\ \sum_{j=0}^{N_{\mathbf{y}}} \int_0^1 \frac{\partial (a\alpha_j(x,t))}{\partial x} \phi_{N_{\mathbf{y}}}(y) \phi_j(y) dy \end{pmatrix}$$

$$+\Phi^{-1} \begin{pmatrix} \frac{1}{2} \sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{\partial^{2}(b^{2}\alpha_{j}(x,t))}{\partial x^{2}} \phi_{0}(y)\phi_{j}(y)dy \\ \frac{1}{2} \sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{\partial^{2}(b^{2}\alpha_{j}(x,t))}{\partial x^{2}} \phi_{1}(y)\phi_{j}(y)dy \\ \vdots \\ \frac{1}{2} \sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{\partial^{2}(b^{2}\alpha_{j}(x,t))}{\partial x^{2}} \phi_{N_{y}}(y)\phi_{j}(y)dy \end{pmatrix}$$
(4.7)

$$-\Phi^{-1} \left( \begin{array}{c} \sum_{j=0}^{N_{\mathbf{y}}} \alpha_{j}(x,t) \int_{0}^{1} \frac{\partial c}{\partial y} \phi_{0}(y) \phi_{j}(y) dy \\ \sum_{j=0}^{N_{\mathbf{y}}} \alpha_{j}(x,t) \int_{0}^{1} \frac{\partial c}{\partial y} \phi_{1}(y) \phi_{j}(y) dy \\ \vdots \\ \sum_{j=0}^{N_{\mathbf{y}}} \alpha_{j}(x,t) \int_{0}^{1} \frac{\partial c}{\partial y} \phi_{N_{\mathbf{y}}}(y) \phi_{j}(y) dy \end{array} \right)$$

$$\begin{split} &-\Phi^{-1} \left( \begin{array}{c} \sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}} \alpha_{j}(x,t) \int_{0}^{1} c\phi_{0}(y)\phi_{j}'(y)dy \\ &\sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}} \alpha_{j}(x,t) \int_{0}^{1} c\phi_{1}(y)\phi_{j}'(y)dy \\ &\vdots \\ &\sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}} \alpha_{j}(x,t) \int_{0}^{1} c\phi_{N_{y}}(y)\phi_{j}'(y)dy \\ &\frac{1}{2} \sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}} \alpha_{j} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{\partial(d^{2})}{\partial y}\phi_{0}'(y)\phi_{j}(y)dy \\ &\vdots \\ &\frac{1}{2} \sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}} \alpha_{j} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{\partial(d^{2})}{\partial y}\phi_{1}'(y)\phi_{j}(y)dy \\ &\vdots \\ &\frac{1}{2} \sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}} \alpha_{j} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{\partial(d^{2})}{\partial y}\phi_{N_{y}}'(y)\phi_{j}(y)dy \\ &\vdots \\ &\frac{1}{2} \sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}} \alpha_{j} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{\partial(d^{2})}{\partial y}\phi_{N_{y}}'(y)\phi_{j}(y)dy \\ &+\Phi^{-1} \left( \begin{array}{c} \int_{0}^{1} f\phi_{0}(y)dy \\ &\int_{0}^{1} f\phi_{0}(y)dy \\ &\vdots \\ &\int_{0}^{1} f\phi_{0}(y)dy \\ &\vdots \\ &\int_{0}^{1} f\phi_{0}(y)dy \end{array} \right). \end{split}$$

Define

$$\vec{\alpha}(x,t) = (\alpha_0(x,t), \alpha_1(x,t), \cdots, \alpha_{N_y}(x,t))^T$$
(4.8)

and let  $L_1$  be defined by (4.7), we can write (4.7) as

$$\frac{\partial \vec{\alpha}(x,t)}{\partial t} = L_1 \vec{\alpha}(x,t). \tag{4.9}$$

Using (4.3), we obtain

$$\int_{0}^{1} u(x, y, 0)\phi_{l}(y)dy$$

$$= \int_{0}^{1} \sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}} \alpha_{j}(x, 0)\phi_{j}(y)\phi_{l}(y)dy$$

$$= \sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}} \alpha_{j}(x, 0) \int_{0}^{1} \phi_{l}(y)\phi_{j}(y)dy$$

$$= \sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}} \alpha_{j}(x, 0)\phi(l, j).$$
(4.10)

That is,

$$\int_0^1 u(x,y,0)\phi_l(y)dy = \left(\begin{array}{ccc} \phi(l,0) & \phi(l,1) & \cdots & \phi(l,N_y) \end{array}\right) \left(\begin{array}{c} \alpha_0(x,0) \\ \alpha_1(x,0) \\ \vdots \\ \alpha_{N_y}(x,0) \end{array}\right)$$

$$\begin{pmatrix} \int_{0}^{1} u(x,y,0)\phi_{0}(y)dy \\ \int_{0}^{1} u(x,y,0)\phi_{1}(y)dy \\ \vdots \\ \int_{0}^{1} u(x,y,0)\phi_{N_{y}}(y)dy \end{pmatrix} = \begin{pmatrix} \phi(0,0) & \phi(0,1) & \cdots & \phi(0,N_{y}) \\ \phi(1,0) & \phi(1,1) & \cdots & \phi(1,N_{y}) \\ \vdots & \vdots & \vdots & \vdots \\ \phi(N_{y},0) & \phi(N_{y},1) & \cdots & \phi(N_{y},N_{y}) \end{pmatrix} \begin{pmatrix} \alpha_{0}(x,0) \\ \alpha_{1}(x,0) \\ \vdots \\ \alpha_{N_{y}}(x,0) \end{pmatrix}$$
(4.11)

$$\begin{array}{c} \alpha_{0}(x,0) \\ \alpha_{1}(x,0) \\ \vdots \\ \alpha_{N_{y}}(x,0) \end{array} \right) = \Phi^{-1} \left( \begin{array}{c} \int_{0}^{1} u(x,y,0)\phi_{0}(y)dy \\ \int_{0}^{1} u(x,y,0)\phi_{1}(y)dy \\ \vdots \\ \int_{0}^{1} u(x,y,0)\phi_{N_{y}}(y)dy \end{array} \right).$$
(4.12)

## 4.2 Gauss-Galerkin Approximation in the x Variable

We approximate  $\alpha_j(x,t)dx$  by

$$d\mu_j^n(x,t) = \sum_{i=1}^n \omega_{ij}(t)\delta(x-x_{ij})(t)dx, \quad j = 0, 1, \cdots, N_y,$$
(4.13)

i.e., each  $\alpha_j(x, t)$  is associated with an n-point discrete Dirac-delta function, or "measure",  $x_{ij}(t), 1 \leq i \leq n$ , are the n "nodes" and  $\omega_{ij}(t), 1 \leq i \leq n$ , are the corresponding "weights". We choose  $x^k, 0 \leq k \leq 2n - 1$  as test functions.

Multiplying by  $x^k, k = 0, 1, \dots, 2n - 1$ , and integrating over [0, 1] in (4.2) we obtain

$$\int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{\partial u}{\partial t} \phi_{l}(y) x^{k} dx dy + \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{\partial (au)}{\partial x} \phi_{l}(y) x^{k} dx dy - \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} \frac{\partial^{2} (b^{2}u)}{\partial x^{2}} \phi_{l}(y) x^{k} dx dy + \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{\partial (au)}{\partial x} \phi_{l}(y) x^{k} dx dy + \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} \frac{\partial (d^{2})}{\partial y} \phi_{l}(y) x^{k} dx dy + \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} \frac{\partial (d^{2})}{\partial y} u \phi_{l}'(y) x^{k} dx dy + \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} \frac{\partial (d^{2})}{\partial y} u \phi_{l}'(y) x^{k} dx dy + \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} \frac{\partial (d^{2})}{\partial y} u \phi_{l}'(y) x^{k} dx dy + \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} \frac{\partial (d^{2})}{\partial y} u \phi_{l}'(y) x^{k} dx dy + \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} \frac{\partial (d^{2})}{\partial y} u \phi_{l}'(y) x^{k} dx dy$$

$$+ \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} d^{2} \frac{\partial u}{\partial y} \phi_{l}'(y) x^{k} dx dy = \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} f \phi_{l}(y) x^{k} dx dy$$

$$(4.14)$$

Using integration by parts, we obtain

$$\int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{\partial u}{\partial t} \phi_{l}(y) + \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{\partial c}{\partial y} u \phi_{l}(y) dx dy + \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} c \frac{\partial u}{\partial y} \phi_{l}(y) dx dy + \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} \frac{\partial (d^{2})}{\partial y} u \phi_{l}'(y) dx dy + \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} d^{2} \frac{\partial u}{\partial y} \phi_{l}'(y) dx dy$$

$$+ \int_{0}^{1} \left\{ au - \frac{1}{2} \frac{\partial (b^{2}u)}{\partial x} \right\} \Big|_{x=0}^{1} \phi_{l}(y) dy = \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} f \phi_{l}(y) dx dy \quad (k=0).$$
(4.15)

and

$$\begin{split} &\int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{\partial u}{\partial t} \phi_{l} x^{k} dx dy - \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} kau x^{k-1} \phi_{l} dx dy - \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} k(k-1) b^{2} u x^{k-2} \phi_{l} dx dy \\ &+ \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{\partial c}{\partial y} u \phi_{l}(y) x^{k} dx dy + \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} c \frac{\partial u}{\partial y} \phi_{l}(y) x^{k} dx dy + \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} \frac{\partial (d^{2})}{\partial y} u \phi_{l}'(y) x^{k} dx dy \\ &+ \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} d^{2} \frac{\partial u}{\partial y} \phi_{l}'(y) x^{k} dx dy + \int_{0}^{1} \left\{ au x^{k} - \frac{1}{2} \frac{\partial (b^{2} u)}{\partial x} x^{k} + k b^{2} u x^{k-1} \right\} \Big|_{x=0}^{1} \phi_{l}(y) dy \\ &= \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} f \phi_{l}(y) x^{k} dx dy \quad (k \ge 1). \end{split}$$

$$(4.16)$$

By the assumed boundary condition (3.13) and (3.14), the boundary terms above drop out in all except the special case when p = q = 1 and a = 0 at x = 0 and x = 1. We shall assume in the subsequent analysis that we are not in this special case. Problems in which

special case occurs will be handled separately. (See, e.g., the test problem in Section 6.2).

Thus, we have

$$\int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{\partial u}{\partial t} \phi_{l} dx dy + \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{\partial c}{\partial y} u \phi_{l} dx dy + \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} c \frac{\partial u}{\partial y} \phi_{l} dx dy$$
$$+ \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} \frac{\partial (d^{2})}{\partial y} u \phi_{l}' dx dy + \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} d^{2} \frac{\partial u}{\partial y} \phi_{l}' dx dy = \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} f \phi_{l} dx dy \quad (k = 0)$$

$$(4.17)$$

and

$$\int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{\partial u}{\partial t} \phi_{l} x^{k} dx dy - \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} kau x^{k-1} \phi_{l} dx dy - \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} k(k-1) b^{2} u x^{k-2} \phi_{l} dx dy$$
$$+ \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{\partial c}{\partial y} u \phi_{l} x^{k} dx dy + \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} c \frac{\partial u}{\partial y} \phi_{l} x^{k} dx dy + \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} \frac{\partial (d^{2})}{\partial y} u \phi_{l}' x^{k} dx dy$$
$$+ \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} d^{2} \frac{\partial u}{\partial y} \phi_{l}'(y) x^{k} dx dy = \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} f \phi_{l}(y) x^{k} dx dy \quad (k \ge 1).$$
(4.18)

We get the following by using (4.3), (4.18) and (4.17),

$$\begin{split} \sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}} \frac{d}{dt} \int_{0}^{1} \alpha_{j}(x,t) x^{k} dx \int_{0}^{1} \phi_{l}(y) \phi_{j}(y) dy \\ &= \sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} ka \alpha_{j} x^{k-1} \phi_{l} \phi_{j} dx dy + \sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} k(k-1) b^{2} \alpha_{j} x^{k-2} \phi_{l} \phi_{j} dx dy \\ &- \sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{\partial c}{\partial y} \alpha_{j}(x,t) \phi_{l}(y) \phi_{j}(y) x^{k} dx dy - \sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} c \alpha_{j}(x,t) \phi_{l}(y) \phi_{j}'(y) x^{k} dx dy \\ &- \sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} \frac{\partial (d^{2})}{\partial y} \alpha_{j} \phi_{l}' \phi_{j} x^{k} dx dy - \sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} d^{2} \alpha_{j} \phi_{l}' \phi_{j}' x^{k} dx dy \\ &+ \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} f \phi_{l}(y) x^{k} dx dy \quad (k \ge 0). \end{split}$$

$$(4.19)$$

From (4.19) we obtain

$$\left(\begin{array}{ccc}\phi(l,0) & \phi(l,1) & \cdots & \phi(l,N_y)\end{array}\right) \left(\begin{array}{ccc} \frac{d}{dt} \int_0^1 \alpha_0(x,t) x^k dx \\ \\ \frac{d}{dt} \int_0^1 \alpha_1(x,t) x^k dx \\ \\ \\ \vdots \\ \\ \frac{d}{dt} \int_0^1 \alpha_{N_y}(x,t) x^k dx \end{array}\right)$$

$$=\sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}}\int_{0}^{1}\int_{0}^{1}ka\alpha_{j}x^{k-1}\phi_{l}\phi_{j}dxdy+\sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}}\int_{0}^{1}\int_{0}^{1}\frac{1}{2}k(k-1)b^{2}\alpha_{j}x^{k-2}\phi_{l}\phi_{j}dxdy$$

$$-\sum_{j=0}^{N_{\mathbf{y}}} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{\partial c}{\partial y} \alpha_{j}(x,t) \phi_{l}(y) \phi_{j}(y) x^{k} dx dy - \sum_{j=0}^{N_{\mathbf{y}}} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} c \alpha_{j}(x,t) \phi_{l}(y) \phi_{j}'(y) x^{k} dx dy - \sum_{j=0}^{N_{\mathbf{y}}} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} \frac{\partial (d^{2})}{\partial y} \alpha_{j} \phi_{l}'(y) \phi_{j}(y) x^{k} dx dy - \sum_{j=0}^{N_{\mathbf{y}}} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} d^{2} \alpha_{j} \phi_{l}'(y) \phi_{j}'(y) x^{k} dx dy$$

$$+\int_0^1\int_0^1f\phi_l(y)x^kdxdy.$$

or,

$$\begin{pmatrix} \phi(0,0) & \phi(0,1) & \cdots & \phi(0,N_{y}) \\ \phi(1,0) & \phi(1,1) & \cdots & \phi(1,N_{y}) \\ \vdots & \vdots & \cdots & \vdots \\ \phi(N_{y},0) & \phi(N_{y},1) & \cdots & \phi(N_{y},N_{y}) \end{pmatrix} \begin{pmatrix} \frac{d}{dt} \int_{0}^{1} \alpha_{0}(x,t)x^{k}dx \\ \frac{d}{dt} \int_{0}^{1} \alpha_{1}(x,t)x^{k}dx \\ \vdots \\ \frac{d}{dt} \int_{0}^{1} \alpha_{N_{y}}(x,t)x^{k}dx \end{pmatrix}$$
(4.20)

$$= \left(\begin{array}{c} \sum_{j=0}^{N_{\mathbf{y}}} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} ka\alpha_{j}(x,t) x^{k-1} \phi_{0}(y) \phi_{j}(y) dx dy \\ \sum_{j=0}^{N_{\mathbf{y}}} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} ka\alpha_{j}(x,t) x^{k-1} \phi_{1}(y) \phi_{j}(y) dx dy \\ \vdots \\ \sum_{j=0}^{N_{\mathbf{y}}} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} ka\alpha_{j}(x,t) x^{k-1} \phi_{N_{\mathbf{y}}}(y) \phi_{j}(y) dx dy \end{array}\right)$$

$$+ \left(\begin{array}{c} \sum_{j=0}^{N_{\mathbf{y}}} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} k(k-1) b^{2} \alpha_{j}(x,t) x^{k-2} \phi_{0}(y) \phi_{j}(y) dx dy \\ \sum_{j=0}^{N_{\mathbf{y}}} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} k(k-1) b^{2} \alpha_{j}(x,t) x^{k-2} \phi_{1}(y) \phi_{j}(y) dx dy \\ \vdots \\ \sum_{j=0}^{N_{\mathbf{y}}} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} k(k-1) b^{2} \alpha_{j}(x,t) x^{k-2} \phi_{N_{\mathbf{y}}}(y) \phi_{j}(y) dx dy \end{array}\right)$$

$$- \left( \begin{array}{c} \sum_{j=0}^{N_{\mathbf{y}}} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{\partial c}{\partial y} \alpha_{j}(x,t) \phi_{0}(y) \phi_{j}(y) x^{k} dx dy \\ \sum_{j=0}^{N_{\mathbf{y}}} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{\partial c}{\partial y} \alpha_{j}(x,t) \phi_{1}(y) \phi_{j}(y) x^{k} dx dy \\ \vdots \\ \sum_{j=0}^{N_{\mathbf{y}}} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{\partial c}{\partial y} \alpha_{j}(x,t) \phi_{N_{\mathbf{y}}}(y) \phi_{j}(y) x^{k} dx dy \end{array} \right)$$

$$- \left( \begin{array}{c} \sum_{j=0}^{N_{v}} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} c\alpha_{j}(x,t)\phi_{0}(y)\phi_{j}'(y)x^{k}dxdy \\ \sum_{j=0}^{N_{v}} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} c\alpha_{j}(x,t)\phi_{1}(y)\phi_{j}'(y)x^{k}dxdy \\ \vdots \\ \sum_{j=0}^{N_{v}} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} c\alpha_{j}(x,t)\phi_{N_{v}}(y)\phi_{j}'(y)x^{k}dxdy \\ \end{array} \right) \\ - \left( \begin{array}{c} \sum_{j=0}^{N_{v}} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} \frac{\partial(d^{2})}{\partial y} \alpha_{j}(x,t)\phi_{0}'(y)\phi_{j}(y)x^{k}dxdy \\ \vdots \\ \sum_{j=0}^{N_{v}} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} \frac{\partial(d^{2})}{\partial y} \alpha_{j}(x,t)\phi_{1}'(y)\phi_{j}(y)x^{k}dxdy \\ \vdots \\ \sum_{j=0}^{N_{v}} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} \frac{\partial(d^{2})}{\partial y} \alpha_{j}(x,t)\phi_{N_{v}}'(y)\phi_{j}(y)x^{k}dxdy \\ \end{array} \right) \\ - \left( \begin{array}{c} \sum_{j=0}^{N_{v}} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} \frac{\partial(d^{2})}{\partial y} \alpha_{j}(x,t)\phi_{N_{v}}'(y)\phi_{j}(y)x^{k}dxdy \\ \vdots \\ \sum_{j=0}^{N_{v}} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} d^{2}\alpha_{j}\phi_{0}'\phi_{j}'x^{k}dxdy \\ \vdots \\ \sum_{j=0}^{N_{v}} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} d^{2}\alpha_{j}\phi_{N_{v}}'\phi_{j}'x^{k}dxdy \\ \vdots \\ \sum_{j=0}^{N_{v}} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} d^{2}\alpha_{j}\phi_{N_{v}}'\phi_{j}'x^{k}dxdy \\ \end{array} \right) + \left( \begin{array}{c} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} f\phi_{0}(y)x^{k}dxdy \\ \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} f\phi_{0}(y)x^{k}dxdy \\ \vdots \\ \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} f\phi_{N_{v}}(y)x^{k}dxdy \\ \end{array} \right) .$$

Thus,

$$\left( \begin{array}{c} \frac{d}{dt} \int_{0}^{1} \alpha_{0}(x,t)x^{k} dx \\ \frac{d}{dt} \int_{0}^{1} \alpha_{1}(x,t)x^{k} dx \\ \vdots \\ \frac{d}{dt} \int_{0}^{1} \alpha_{N_{\mathbf{y}}}(x,t)x^{k} dx \end{array} \right)$$

$$= \Phi^{-1} \left( \begin{array}{c} \sum_{j=0}^{N_{\mathbf{y}}} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} ka\alpha_{j}(x,t)x^{k-1}\phi_{0}(y)\phi_{j}(y)dxdy \\ \sum_{j=0}^{N_{\mathbf{y}}} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} ka\alpha_{j}(x,t)x^{k-1}\phi_{1}(y)\phi_{j}(y)dxdy \\ \vdots \\ \sum_{j=0}^{N_{\mathbf{y}}} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} ka\alpha_{j}(x,t)x^{k-1}\phi_{N_{\mathbf{y}}}(y)\phi_{j}(y)dxdy \right)$$

$$+ \Phi^{-1} \left( \begin{array}{c} \sum_{j=0}^{N_{\mathbf{y}}} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2}k(k-1)b^{2}\alpha_{j}(x,t)x^{k-2}\phi_{0}(y)\phi_{j}(y)dxdy \\ \sum_{j=0}^{N_{\mathbf{y}}} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2}k(k-1)b^{2}\alpha_{j}(x,t)x^{k-2}\phi_{1}(y)\phi_{j}(y)dxdy \end{array} \right)$$

$$+ \Phi^{-1} \left( \begin{array}{c} \sum_{j=0}^{N_{\mathbf{y}}} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2}k(k-1)b^{2}\alpha_{j}(x,t)x^{k-2}\phi_{1}(y)\phi_{j}(y)dxdy \\ \sum_{j=0}^{N_{\mathbf{y}}} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2}k(k-1)b^{2}\alpha_{j}(x,t)x^{k-2}\phi_{1}(y)\phi_{j}(y)dxdy \end{array} \right)$$

$$\left\{\sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}}\int_{0}^{1}\int_{0}^{1}\frac{1}{2}k(k-1)b^{2}\alpha_{j}(x,t)x^{k-2}\phi_{N_{y}}(y)\phi_{j}(y)dxdy\right\}$$

$$-\Phi^{-1} \left( \begin{array}{c} \sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{\partial c}{\partial y} \alpha_{j}(x,t) \phi_{0}(y) \phi_{j}(y) x^{k} dx dy \\ \sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{\partial c}{\partial y} \alpha_{j}(x,t) \phi_{1}(y) \phi_{j}(y) x^{k} dx dy \\ \vdots \\ \sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{\partial c}{\partial y} \alpha_{j}(x,t) \phi_{N_{y}}(y) \phi_{j}(y) x^{k} dx dy \end{array} \right)$$
$$-\Phi^{-1} \left( \begin{array}{c} \sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} c \alpha_{j}(x,t) \phi_{0}(y) \phi_{j}'(y) x^{k} dx dy \\ \sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} c \alpha_{j}(x,t) \phi_{1}(y) \phi_{j}'(y) x^{k} dx dy \\ \vdots \\ \sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} c \alpha_{j}(x,t) \phi_{N_{y}}(y) \phi_{j}'(y) x^{k} dx dy \end{array} \right)$$

$$-\Phi^{-1} \left( \begin{array}{c} -\sum\limits_{j=0}^{N_{\mathbf{y}}} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} \frac{\partial(d^{2})}{\partial y} \alpha_{j}(x,t) \phi_{0}'(y) \phi_{j}(y) x^{k} dx dy \\ -\sum\limits_{j=0}^{N_{\mathbf{y}}} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} \frac{\partial(d^{2})}{\partial y} \alpha_{j}(x,t) \phi_{1}'(y) \phi_{j}(y) x^{k} dx dy \\ \vdots \\ -\sum\limits_{j=0}^{N_{\mathbf{y}}} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} \frac{\partial(d^{2})}{\partial y} \alpha_{j}(x,t) \phi_{N_{\mathbf{y}}}'(y) \phi_{j}(y) x^{k} dx dy \end{array} \right)$$

$$-\Phi^{-1} \left( \begin{array}{c} \sum_{j=0}^{N_{\mathbf{y}}} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} d^{2} \alpha_{j}(x,t) \phi_{0}'(y) \phi_{j}'(y) x^{k} dx dy \\ \\ \sum_{j=0}^{N_{\mathbf{y}}} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} d^{2} \alpha_{j}(x,t) \phi_{1}'(y) \phi_{j}'(y) x^{k} dx dy \\ \\ \\ \vdots \\ \\ \\ \sum_{j=0}^{N_{\mathbf{y}}} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} d^{2} \alpha_{j}(x,t) \phi_{N_{\mathbf{y}}}'(y) \phi_{j}'(y) x^{k} dx dy \end{array} \right)$$

$$+\Phi^{-1} \left( \begin{array}{c} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} f\phi_{0}(y) x^{k} dx dy \\ \\ \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} f\phi_{1}(y) x^{k} dx dy \\ \\ \\ \vdots \\ \\ \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} f\phi_{N_{y}}(y) x^{k} dx dy \end{array} \right).$$

where

$$\Phi = \begin{pmatrix} \phi(0,0) & \phi(0,1) & \cdots & \phi(0,N_y) \\ \phi(1,0) & \phi(1,1) & \cdots & \phi(1,N_y) \\ \vdots & \vdots & \vdots & \vdots \\ \phi(N_y,0) & \phi(N_y,1) & \cdots & \phi(N_y,N_y) \end{pmatrix}$$

and

$$\Phi^{-1} = \begin{pmatrix} \tilde{\phi}(0,0) & \tilde{\phi}(0,1) & \cdots & \tilde{\phi}(0,N_y) \\ \tilde{\phi}(1,0) & \tilde{\phi}(1,1) & \cdots & \tilde{\phi}(1,N_y) \\ \vdots & \vdots & \vdots & \vdots \\ \tilde{\phi}(N_y,0) & \tilde{\phi}(N_y,1) & \cdots & \tilde{\phi}(N_y,N_y) \end{pmatrix}$$

Let  $L_1^*$  be the formal adjoint operator of  $L_1$  given by (4.21), we can write (4.21) as

$$\frac{d}{dt}(\vec{\alpha}(x,t),x^k) = \int_0^1 (\vec{\alpha}(x,t), L_1^*(x^k)).$$
(4.22)

•



From (4.13) and (4.21), we have

$$\begin{pmatrix} \frac{d}{dt} \int_{0}^{1} \sum_{i=1}^{n} \omega_{i0}(t) \delta(x - x_{i0}(t)) x^{k} dx \\ \frac{d}{dt} \int_{0}^{1} \sum_{i=1}^{n} \omega_{i1}(t) \delta(x - x_{i1}(t)) x^{k} dx \\ \vdots \\ \frac{d}{dt} \int_{0}^{1} \sum_{i=1}^{n} \omega_{iNy}(t) \delta(x - x_{i0}(t)) x^{k} dx \end{pmatrix}$$

$$= \Phi^{-1} \begin{pmatrix} \sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} ka \sum_{i=1}^{n} \omega_{ij}(t) \delta(x - x_{ij}(t)) x^{k-1} \phi_{0}(y) \phi_{j}(y) dx dy \\ \vdots \\ \sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} ka \sum_{i=1}^{n} \omega_{ij}(t) \delta(x - x_{ij}(t)) x^{k-1} \phi_{1}(y) \phi_{j}(y) dx dy \\ \vdots \\ \sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} k(k-1) b^{2} \sum_{i=1}^{n} \omega_{ij}(t) \delta(x - x_{ij}(t)) x^{k-2} \phi_{0}(y) \phi_{j}(y) dx dy \\ \vdots \\ \sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} k(k-1) b^{2} \sum_{i=1}^{n} \omega_{ij}(t) \delta(x - x_{ij}(t)) x^{k-2} \phi_{0}(y) \phi_{j}(y) dx dy \\ \vdots \\ \sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} k(k-1) b^{2} \sum_{i=1}^{n} \omega_{ij}(t) \delta(x - x_{ij}(t)) x^{k-2} \phi_{1}(y) \phi_{j}(y) dx dy \\ \vdots \\ \sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} k(k-1) b^{2} \sum_{i=1}^{n} \omega_{ij}(t) \delta(x - x_{ij}(t)) x^{k-2} \phi_{1}(y) \phi_{j}(y) dx dy \end{pmatrix}$$

$$-\Phi^{-1} \left( \begin{array}{c} \sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} \frac{\partial(d^{2})}{\partial y} \sum_{i=1}^{n} \omega_{ij}(t) \delta(x - x_{ij}(t)) \phi_{0}'(y) \phi_{j}(y) x^{k} dx dy \\ \\ \sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} \frac{\partial(d^{2})}{\partial y} \sum_{i=1}^{n} \omega_{ij}(t) \delta(x - x_{ij}(t)) \phi_{1}'(y) \phi_{j}(y) x^{k} dx dy \\ \\ \\ \vdots \\ \\ \\ \sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} \frac{\partial(d^{2})}{\partial y} \sum_{i=1}^{n} \omega_{ij}(t) \delta(x - x_{ij}(t)) \phi_{N_{y}}'(y) \phi_{j}(y) x^{k} dx dy \end{array} \right)$$

$$= \Phi^{-1} \left( \begin{array}{c} \sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}} \sum_{i=1}^{n} \omega_{ij}(t) x_{ij}^{k-1}(t) \int_{0}^{1} ka(x_{ij}(t), y, t) \phi_{0}(y) \phi_{j}(y) dy \\ \sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}} \sum_{i=1}^{n} \omega_{ij}(t) x_{ij}^{k-1}(t) \int_{0}^{1} ka(x_{ij}(t), y, t) \phi_{1}(y) \phi_{j}(y) dy \\ \vdots \\ \sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}} \sum_{i=1}^{n} \omega_{ij}(t) x_{ij}^{k-1}(t) \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} k(k-1) b^{2}(x_{ij}(t), y, t) \phi_{0}(y) \phi_{j}(y) dy \\ + \Phi^{-1} \left( \begin{array}{c} \sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}} \sum_{i=1}^{n} \omega_{ij}(t) x_{ij}^{k-2}(t) \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} k(k-1) b^{2}(x_{ij}(t), y, t) \phi_{0}(y) \phi_{j}(y) dy \\ \\ \sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}} \sum_{i=1}^{n} \omega_{ij}(t) x_{ij}^{k-2}(t) \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} k(k-1) b^{2}(x_{ij}(t), y, t) \phi_{1}(y) \phi_{j}(y) dy \\ \\ \\ \vdots \\ \\ \sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}} \sum_{i=1}^{n} \omega_{ij}(t) x_{ij}^{k-2}(t) \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} k(k-1) b^{2}(x_{ij}(t), y, t) \phi_{N_{y}}(y) \phi_{j}(y) dy \end{array} \right)$$

$$(4.23)$$

$$-\Phi^{-1} \left( \begin{array}{c} \sum_{j=0}^{N_{\mathbf{y}}} \sum_{i=1}^{n} \omega_{ij}(t) x_{ij}^{k}(t) \int_{0}^{1} \frac{\partial c(x_{ij}(t), y, t)}{\partial y} \phi_{0}(y) \phi_{j}(y) dy \\ \sum_{j=0}^{N_{\mathbf{y}}} \sum_{i=1}^{n} \omega_{ij}(t) x_{ij}^{k}(t) \int_{0}^{1} \frac{\partial c(x_{ij}(t), y, t)}{\partial y} \phi_{1}(y) \phi_{j}(y) dy \\ \vdots \\ \sum_{j=0}^{N_{\mathbf{y}}} \sum_{i=1}^{n} \omega_{ij}(t) x_{ij}^{k}(t) \int_{0}^{1} \frac{\partial c(x_{ij}(t), y, t)}{\partial y} \phi_{N_{\mathbf{y}}}(y) \phi_{j}(y) dy \end{array} \right)$$

$$\begin{split} &-\Phi^{-1} \left( \begin{array}{c} \sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}} \sum_{i=1}^{n} \omega_{ij}(t) x_{ij}^{k}(t) \int_{0}^{1} c(x_{ij}(t), y, t) \phi_{0}(y) \phi_{j}'(y) dy \\ &\sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}} \sum_{i=1}^{n} \omega_{ij}(t) x_{ij}^{k}(t) \int_{0}^{1} c(x_{ij}(t), y, t) \phi_{1}(y) \phi_{j}'(y) dy \\ &\vdots \\ &\sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}} \sum_{i=1}^{n} \omega_{ij}(t) x_{ij}^{k}(t) \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} \frac{\partial (d^{2}(x_{ij}(t), y, t))}{\partial y} \phi_{0}'(y) \phi_{j}(y) dy \\ &\sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}} \sum_{i=1}^{n} \omega_{ij}(t) x_{ij}^{k}(t) \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} \frac{\partial (d^{2}(x_{ij}(t), y, t))}{\partial y} \phi_{0}'(y) \phi_{j}(y) dy \\ &\sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}} \sum_{i=1}^{n} \omega_{ij}(t) x_{ij}^{k}(t) \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} \frac{\partial (d^{2}(x_{ij}(t), y, t))}{\partial y} \phi_{1}'(y) \phi_{j}(y) dy \\ &\vdots \\ &\sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}} \sum_{i=1}^{n} \omega_{ij}(t) x_{ij}^{k}(t) \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} \frac{\partial (d^{2}(x_{ij}(t), y, t))}{\partial y} \phi_{N_{y}}'(y) \phi_{j}(y) dy \\ &\vdots \\ &\sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}} \sum_{i=1}^{n} \omega_{ij}(t) x_{ij}^{k}(t) \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} d^{2} \phi_{0}' \phi_{j}' dy \\ &\vdots \\ &\sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}} \sum_{i=1}^{n} \omega_{ij}(t) x_{ij}^{k}(t) \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} d^{2} \phi_{1}' \phi_{j}' dy \\ &\vdots \\ &\sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}} \sum_{i=1}^{n} \omega_{ij}(t) x_{ij}^{k}(t) \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} d^{2} \phi_{N_{y}}' \phi_{j}' dy \\ &\vdots \\ &\sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}} \sum_{i=1}^{n} \omega_{ij}(t) x_{ij}^{k}(t) \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} d^{2} \phi_{N_{y}}' \phi_{j}' dy \\ &\vdots \\ &\sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}} \sum_{i=1}^{n} \omega_{ij}(t) x_{ij}^{k}(t) \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} d^{2} \phi_{N_{y}}' \phi_{j}' dy \\ &\vdots \\ &\sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}} \sum_{i=1}^{n} \omega_{ij}(t) x_{ij}^{k}(t) \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} d^{2} \phi_{N_{y}}' \phi_{j}' dy \\ &\vdots \\ &\int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} f \phi_{1}(y) x^{k} dx dy \\ &i \\ &\int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} f \phi_{N_{y}}(y) x^{k} dx dy \\ &\int$$

This is a system of  $2n \times (N_y + 1)$  ordinary differential equations for the  $n(N_y + 1)$ nodes and  $n(N_y + 1)$  weights. Next, we shall pose the initial conditions for solving equation (4.23). From (4.13), we have

$$\int_0^1 \alpha_j(x,0) x^k dx = \int_0^1 \sum_{i=1}^n \omega_{ij}(0) \delta(x - x_{ij}(0)) x^k dx = \sum_{i=1}^n \omega_{ij}(0) x^k_{ij}(0)$$
(4.24)

$$\begin{pmatrix} \int_{0}^{1} \alpha_{0}(x,0)x^{k}dx \\ \int_{0}^{1} \alpha_{1}(x,0)x^{k}dx \\ \vdots \\ \int_{0}^{1} \alpha_{N_{y}}(x,0)x^{k}dx \end{pmatrix} = \begin{pmatrix} \sum_{i=1}^{n} \omega_{i0}(0)x_{i0}^{k}(0) \\ \sum_{i=1}^{n} \omega_{i1}(0)x_{i1}^{k}(0) \\ \vdots \\ \sum_{i=1}^{n} \omega_{im}(0)x_{iN_{y}}^{k}(0) \end{pmatrix}$$
(4.25)

By (4.3) and (4.13), we obtain

$$u(x, y, t) \approx \sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}} \sum_{i=1}^{n} \omega_{ij}(t) \delta(x - x_{ij}(t)) \phi_{j}(y).$$
(4.26)

Therefore,

$$\begin{split} &\int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} u(x, y, 0) x^{k} \phi_{l}(y) dx dy \\ &= \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}} \sum_{i=1}^{n} \omega_{ij}(0) \delta(x - x_{ij}(0)) \phi_{j}(y) x^{k} \phi_{l}(y) dx dy \\ &= \sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}} \sum_{i=1}^{n} \int_{0}^{1} \omega_{ij}(0) \delta(x - x_{ij}(0)) x^{k} dx \int_{0}^{1} \phi_{l}(y) \phi_{j}(y) dy \\ &= \sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}} \left( \sum_{i=1}^{n} \omega_{ij}(0) x_{ij}^{k}(0) \right) \int_{0}^{1} \phi_{l}(y) \phi_{j}(y) dy \\ &= \sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}} \left( \sum_{i=1}^{n} \omega_{ij}(0) x_{ij}^{k}(0) \right) \phi(l, j). \end{split}$$

$$\int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} u(x, y, 0) x^{k} \phi_{l}(y) dx dy$$

$$= \left( \phi(l, 0) \quad \phi(l, 1) \quad \cdots \quad \phi(l, N_{y}) \right) \left( \begin{array}{c} \sum_{i=1}^{n} \omega_{i0}(0) x_{i0}^{k}(0) \\ \sum_{i=1}^{n} \omega_{i1}(0) x_{i1}^{k}(0) \\ \vdots \\ \sum_{i=1}^{n} \omega_{iN_{y}}(0) x_{iN_{y}}^{k}(0) \end{array} \right).$$

or,

$$\begin{pmatrix} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} u(x, y, 0) x^{k} \phi_{0}(y) dx dy \\ \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} u(x, y, 0) x^{k} \phi_{1}(y) dx dy \\ \vdots \\ \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} u(x, y, 0) x^{k} \phi_{N_{y}}(y) dx dy \end{pmatrix}$$

$$= \begin{pmatrix} \phi(0, 0) \quad \phi(0, 1) \quad \cdots \quad \phi(0, N_{y}) \\ \phi(1, 0) \quad \phi(1, 1) \quad \cdots \quad \phi(1, N_{y}) \\ \vdots \quad \vdots \quad \cdots \quad \vdots \\ \phi(N_{y}, 0) \quad \phi(N_{y}, 1) \quad \cdots \quad \phi(N_{y}, N_{y}) \end{pmatrix} \begin{pmatrix} \sum_{i=1}^{n} \omega_{i0}(0) x_{i0}^{k}(0) \\ \sum_{i=1}^{n} \omega_{i1}(0) x_{i1}^{k}(0) \\ \vdots \\ \sum_{i=1}^{n} \omega_{iN_{y}}(0) x_{iN_{y}}^{k}(0) \end{pmatrix}$$

$$(4.28)$$

$$= \Phi \begin{pmatrix} \sum_{i=1}^{n} \omega_{i0}(0) x_{i0}^{k}(0) \\ \sum_{i=1}^{n} \omega_{i1}(0) x_{i1}^{k}(0) \\ \vdots \\ \sum_{i=1}^{n} \omega_{iN_{y}}(0) x_{iN_{y}}^{k}(0) \end{pmatrix}$$

Therefore,

$$\begin{pmatrix} \sum_{\substack{i=1\\n}}^{n} \omega_{i0}(0) x_{i0}^{k}(0) \\ \sum_{\substack{i=1\\i=1}}^{n} \omega_{i1}(0) x_{i1}^{k}(0) \\ \vdots \\ \sum_{\substack{i=1\\i=1}}^{n} \omega_{iN_{y}}(0) x_{iN_{y}}^{k}(0) \end{pmatrix} = \Phi^{-1} \begin{pmatrix} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} u(x, y, 0) x^{k} \phi_{0}(y) dx dy \\ \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} u(x, y, 0) x^{k} \phi_{1}(y) dx dy \\ \vdots \\ \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} u(x, y, 0) x^{k} \phi_{N_{y}}(y) dx dy \end{pmatrix}.$$
(4.29)

.

#### CHAPTER 5

#### **Convergence Results**

## 5.1 Convergence of Semi-Discrete Finite Element Approximation in y

Let  $V_h \in H_0^1(0,1)$  be a finite dimensional subspace as defined in Section 4.1. Given  $f \in L^2(0,1)$  and  $u_{0,h} \in V_h$ , a suitable approximation of the initial datum  $u_0 \in L^2([0,1])$ , for each  $t \in [0,T]$ , we attempt to find  $u_h(t) \in V_h$  such that

$$\begin{cases} \begin{pmatrix} \frac{\partial u_h}{\partial t}, v_h \end{pmatrix} + a(u_h, v_h) = (f, v_h) \quad \forall v_h \in V_h, \quad t \in (0, T), \\ u_h(0) = u_{0,h}. \end{cases}$$
(5.1)

**Lemma 5.1.1** For fixed x and t, let  $\pi_h$  be the linear interpolant of u, that is,  $\pi_h \in V_h$ ,  $\pi_h(y_j) = u(y_j), 0 \le j \le N_y$ . Then

$$\|u' - \pi_h'\|_0 \le h \|u''\|_0 \tag{5.2}$$

Proof. For any  $y \in (y_j, y_{j+1})$ ,

$$\begin{split} u'(y) - \pi'_{h}(y) &= u'(y) - \frac{u(y_{j+1}) - u(y_{j})}{h} \\ &= \frac{1}{h} \int_{y_{j}}^{y_{j+1}} u'(y)dz - \frac{1}{h} \int_{y_{j}}^{y_{j+1}} u'(z)dz \\ &= \frac{1}{h} \int_{y_{j}}^{y_{j+1}} (u'(y) - u'(z))dz \\ &= \frac{1}{h} \int_{y_{j}}^{y_{j+1}} \int_{z}^{y} u''(w)dwdz \\ \|u' - \pi'_{h}\|_{0}^{2} &= \int_{0}^{1} (u'(y) - \pi'_{h}(y))^{2}dy \\ &= \sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}-1} \int_{y_{j}}^{y_{j+1}} \left\{ \int_{y_{j}}^{y_{j+1}} \int_{z}^{y} u''(w)dwdz \right\}^{2} dy \\ &\leq \frac{1}{h^{2}} \sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}-1} \int_{y_{j}}^{y_{j+1}} \left\{ \int_{y_{j}}^{y_{j+1}} \int_{z}^{y} |u''(w)|^{2}dwdz \right\} \left\{ \int_{y_{j}}^{y_{j+1}} \int_{z}^{y} dwdz \right\} dy \\ &\leq \frac{1}{h^{2}} \sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}-1} \int_{y_{j}}^{y_{j+1}} \left\{ \int_{y_{j}}^{y_{j+1}} \int_{z}^{y} |u''(w)|^{2}dwdz \right\} h^{2}dy \\ &\leq \sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}-1} \int_{y_{j}}^{y_{j+1}} \left\{ \int_{y_{j}}^{y_{j+1}} \int_{y_{j}}^{y_{j+1}} |u''(w)|^{2}dwdz \right\} dy \\ &= h^{2} \sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}-1} \int_{y_{j}}^{y_{j+1}} |u''(w)|^{2}dw \\ &= h^{2} \int_{0}^{1} |u''(w)|^{2}dw \\ &= h^{2} \int_{0}^{1} |u''(w)|^{2}dw \\ &= h^{2} \|u''\|_{0}^{2}. \end{split}$$

**Lemma 5.1.2** Let  $\pi_h$  be the linear interpolant of u, that is,  $\pi_h \in V_h, \pi_h(y_j) = u(y_j), \forall j$ . Then

$$||u - \pi_h||_0 \le h^2 ||u''||_0.$$
(5.3)

*Proof.* For  $y \in (y_j, y_{j+1})$ , since  $u(y_j) = \pi_h(y_j)$ , we have

$$\begin{split} u(y) - \pi_{h}(y) &= \int_{y_{j}}^{y} (u'(z) - \pi_{h}'(z)) dz \\ |u(y) - \pi_{h}(y)|^{2} &= \left( \int_{y_{j}}^{y} (u'(z) - \pi_{h}'(z)) dz \right)^{2} \\ &\leq \int_{y_{j}}^{y} |u'(z) - \pi_{h}'(z)|^{2} dz \int_{y_{j}}^{y} dz \\ &= (y - y_{j}) \int_{y_{j}}^{y_{j+1}} |u'(z) - \pi_{h}'(z)|^{2} dz \\ ||u - \pi_{h}||_{0}^{2} &= \int_{0}^{1} |u(y) - \pi_{h}(y)|^{2} dy \\ &= \sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}-1} \int_{y_{j}}^{y_{j+1}} |u(y) - \pi_{h}(y)|^{2} dy \\ &\leq \sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}-1} \int_{y_{j}}^{y_{j+1}} (y - y_{j}) \int_{y_{j}}^{y_{j+1}} |u'(z) - \pi_{h}'(z)|^{2} dz dy \\ &= \frac{h^{2}}{2} \sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}-1} \int_{y_{j}}^{y_{j+1}} |u'(z) - \pi_{h}'(z)|^{2} dz \\ &= \frac{h^{2}}{2} \int_{0}^{1} |u'(z) - \pi_{h}'(z)|^{2} dz \\ &= \frac{h^{2}}{2} ||u' - \pi_{h}'||_{0}^{2}. \end{split}$$

Inequality (5.3) follows at once from (5.2).

**Theorem 5.1.1** If  $u_0 \in H^1_0(0,1)$ ,  $f \in L^2(0,1)$  and u satisfies the following condition,

$$\|u(x,\cdot,t)\|_{2}^{2} \leq C(\|Lu(x,\cdot,t)\|_{0}^{2} + \|u(x,\cdot,t)\|_{1}^{2}),$$
(5.4)

then the energy estimate

$$\max_{0 \le t \le T} ||u(t) - u_h(t)||_0^2 + \alpha \int_0^T ||u(t) - u_h(t)||_1^2$$
  
$$\leq ||u_0 - u_{0,h}||_0^2 + C_{\alpha,\gamma} h^2 \left( ||u_{0,h}||_1^2 + ||u_0||_1^2 + \int_0^T ||f||_0^2 dt \right)$$
(5.5)

holds; where  $C_{\alpha,\gamma} > 0$  is a constant independent of h.

*Proof.* For each  $t \in (0, T]$  define  $e_h(t) = u(t) - u_h(t)$ . Taking  $v = v_h$  in (3.21), we get the weak form

$$(u_t, v_h) + a(u, v_h) = (f, v_h)$$
(5.6)

Subtracting (5.1) from (5.6), we obtain

$$\left(\frac{\partial(u-u_h)}{\partial t}, v_h\right) + a(u-u_h, v_h) = 0,$$

$$\left(\frac{\partial e_h(t)}{\partial t}, v_h\right) + a(e_h(t), v_h) = 0.$$
(5.7)

For almost any fixed t, choose  $v_h = u_h(t) - w_h$ ,  $w_h \in V_h$  in (5.7). For each  $\epsilon > 0$  and for almost any  $t \in [0, T]$  we find

$$\begin{aligned} \frac{1}{2} \frac{\partial}{\partial t} (e_h(t), e_h(t)) + a(e_h(t), e_h(t)) \\ &= \frac{1}{2} \left( \frac{\partial e_h(t)}{\partial t}, e_h(t) \right) + \frac{1}{2} \left( e_h(t), \frac{\partial e_h(t)}{\partial t} \right) + a(e_h(t), e_h(t)) \\ &= \left( \frac{\partial e_h(t)}{\partial t}, e_h(t) \right) + a(e_h(t), e_h(t)) \\ &= \left( \frac{\partial e_h(t)}{\partial t}, u - u_h(t) \right) + a(e_h(t), u - u_h(t)) \\ &= \left( \frac{\partial e_h(t)}{\partial t}, u - w_h + w_h - u_h(t) \right) + a(e_h(t), u - w_h + w_h - u_h(t)) \\ &= \left( \frac{\partial e_h(t)}{\partial t}, u - w_h \right) + a(e_h(t), u - w_h) + \left( \frac{\partial e_h(t)}{\partial t}, w_h - u_h \right) + a(e_h(t), w_h - u_h). \end{aligned}$$

By (5.7)  
$$\left(\frac{\partial e_h(t)}{\partial t}, w_h - u_h\right) + a(e_h(t), w_h - u_h) = 0$$

Therefore, we have

$$\begin{aligned} &\frac{1}{2}\frac{\partial}{\partial t}(e_h(t),e_h(t))+a(e_h(t),e_h(t))\\ &= \left(\frac{\partial e_h(t)}{\partial t},u-w_h\right)+a(e_h(t),u-w_h)\\ &\leq \left\|\frac{\partial e_h(t)}{\partial t}\right\|_0 \|u-w_h\|_0+c\|e_h(t)\|_1 \|u(t)-w_h\|_1\\ &\leq \left\|\frac{\partial e_h}{\partial t}\right\|_0 \|u-w_h\|_0+\frac{c^2}{4\epsilon}\|u-w_h\|_1^2+\epsilon\|e_h(t)\|_1^2.\end{aligned}$$

Let  $w_h = \pi_h(u(t))$  be the linear interpolant of u, for  $t \in [0, T]$ . By Lemma 5.1.1 and Lemma 5.1.2, we have

$$\|u(t) - \pi_h(u(t))\|_0 \le \gamma h^2 \|u(t)\|_2$$
(5.8)

and

$$\|u(t) - \pi_h(u(t))\|_1^2 \le \gamma^2 h^2 \|u(t)\|_2^2.$$
(5.9)

We thus obtain

$$\frac{1}{2}\frac{\partial}{\partial t}(e_h(t), e_h(t)) + a(e_h(t), e_h(t)) \le \left\|\frac{\partial e_h}{\partial t}\right\|_0 \gamma h^2 \|u\|_2 + \frac{c^2}{4\epsilon}\gamma^2 h^2 \|u(t)\|_2^2 + \epsilon \|e_h(t)\|_1^2.$$
(5.10)

Using (3.28), we have  $a(e_h(t), e_h(t)) \ge \alpha ||e_h(t)||_1^2$ . If we choose  $\epsilon = \frac{\alpha}{2}$ , then

$$\frac{1}{2} \frac{\partial}{\partial t} (e_h(t), e_h(t)) + \alpha \|e_h(t)\|_1^2 
\leq \frac{1}{2} \frac{\partial}{\partial t} (e_h(t), e_h(t)) + a(e_h(t), e_h(t)) 
\leq \left\| \frac{\partial e_h}{\partial t} \right\|_0 \gamma h^2 \|u\|_2 + \frac{c^2}{2\alpha} \gamma^2 h^2 \|u(t)\|_2^2 + \frac{\alpha}{2} \|e_h(t)\|_1^2.$$
(5.11)

So

$$\frac{1}{2}\frac{d}{dt}\|e_{h}(t)\|_{0}^{2} + \frac{\alpha}{2}\|e_{h}(t)\|_{1}^{2} \leq \left\|\frac{\partial e_{h}}{\partial t}\right\|_{0}\gamma h^{2}\|u\|_{2} + \frac{c^{2}}{2\alpha}\gamma^{2}h^{2}\|u(t)\|_{2}^{2}.$$
(5.12)

Integrating over (0, t) for  $t \in (0, T]$ , we obtain

$$\begin{split} &\frac{1}{2} \int_{0}^{t} \frac{d}{d\tau} \|e_{h}(\tau)\|_{0}^{2} d\tau + \frac{\alpha}{2} \int_{0}^{t} \|e_{h}(\tau)\|_{1}^{2} d\tau \\ &\leq \int_{0}^{t} \left\| \frac{\partial e_{h}(\tau)}{\partial \tau} \right\|_{0}^{2} \gamma h^{2} \|u(\tau)\|_{2} d\tau + \frac{c^{2}}{2\alpha} \gamma^{2} h^{2} \int_{0}^{\tau} \|u(\tau)\|_{2}^{2} d\tau \\ &\leq \gamma h^{2} \int_{0}^{t} \left( \left\| \frac{\partial e_{h}(\tau)}{\partial \tau} \right\|_{0}^{2} + \|u(\tau)\|_{2}^{2} \right) d\tau + \gamma^{2} h^{2} \frac{c^{2}}{2\alpha} \int_{0}^{\tau} \|u(\tau)\|_{2}^{2} d\tau \\ &= \gamma h^{2} \int_{0}^{T} \left( \left\| \frac{\partial e_{h}(\tau)}{\partial \tau} \right\|_{0}^{2} + \left( 1 + \frac{\gamma c^{2}}{2\alpha} \right) \|u(\tau)\|_{2}^{2} \right) d\tau \\ &\leq \frac{1}{2} C_{\alpha,\gamma} h^{2} \int_{0}^{T} \left( \left\| \frac{\partial e_{h}(\tau)}{\partial \tau} \right\|_{0}^{2} + \|u(\tau)\|_{2}^{2} \right) d\tau. \end{split}$$

So

$$\frac{1}{2} \|e_h(t)\|_0^2 - \frac{1}{2} \|e_h(0)\|_0^2 + \frac{\alpha}{2} \int_0^t \|e_h(\tau)\|_1^2 d\tau \le \frac{1}{2} C_{\alpha,\gamma} h^2 \left( \int_0^T \left\| \frac{\partial e_h(\tau)}{\partial \tau} \right\|_0^2 + \|u(\tau)\|_2^2 \right) d\tau.$$

Since

$$||e_h(0)||_0^2 = ||u_0 - u_{h,0}||_0^2$$

and

$$\left\|\frac{\partial e_h(t)}{\partial t}\right\|_0^2 = \left\|\frac{\partial u(t)}{\partial t} - \frac{\partial u_h(t)}{\partial t}\right\|_0^2 \le \left\|\frac{\partial u(t)}{\partial t}\right\|_0^2 + \left\|\frac{\partial u_h(t)}{\partial t}\right\|_0^2,$$

it follows that

$$\|e_{h}(t)\|_{0}^{2} + \alpha \int_{0}^{t} \|e_{h}(\tau)\|_{1}^{2} d\tau \leq \|u_{0} - u_{h,0}\|_{0}^{2} + C_{\alpha,\gamma}h^{2} \int_{0}^{T} \left( \left\| \frac{\partial u}{\partial t} \right\|_{0}^{2} + \left\| \frac{\partial u_{h}}{\partial t} \right\|_{0}^{2} + \|u\|_{2}^{2} \right) dt.$$

As in (3.31), we have

$$\int_0^t \left\| \frac{\partial u_h}{\partial t} \right\|_0^2 d\tau \le C_\alpha \left\{ \|u_{0,h}\|_1^2 + \int_0^t \|f\|_0^2 ds \right\}.$$
Therefore,

$$\begin{aligned} \|e_{h}(t)\|_{0}^{2} + \alpha \int_{0}^{t} \|e_{h}(\tau)\|_{1}^{2} d\tau \\ \leq \|u_{0} - u_{h,0}\|_{0}^{2} + C_{\alpha,\gamma}h^{2} \int_{0}^{T} \left( \left\| \frac{\partial u(t)}{\partial t} \right\|_{0}^{2} + \|u_{0,h}\|_{1}^{2} + \int_{0}^{t} \|f\|_{0}^{2} + \|u(t)\|_{2}^{2} \right) dt. \end{aligned}$$

Using (3.29), (3.31) and (3.32), we obtain

$$\|e_{h}(t)\|_{0}^{2} + \alpha \int_{0}^{t} \|e_{h}(\tau)\|_{1}^{2} d\tau \leq \|u_{0} - u_{h,0}\|_{0}^{2} + C_{\alpha,\gamma}h^{2} \left\{ \|u_{0}\|_{1}^{2} + \|u_{0,h}\|_{1}^{2} + \int_{0}^{t} \|f\|_{0}^{2} dt \right\}$$

So

$$\max_{0 \le t \le T} \|u(t) - u_h(t)\|_0^2 + \alpha \int_0^T \|u(t) - u_h(t)\|_1^2 \\ \le \|u_0 - u_{0,h}\|_0^2 + C_{\alpha,\gamma} \left( \|u_{0,h}\|_1^2 + \|u_0\|_1^2 + \int_0^T \|f\|_0^2 ds \right)$$

# 5.2 Convergence of the Gauss-Galerkin Approximations in x

In Section 4.2, we replaced  $\alpha_j(x,t)dx$  by an n-point dirac-delta function, i.e.,

$$d\mu_{j}^{n}(x,t) = \sum_{i=1}^{n} \omega_{ij}(t)\delta(x - x_{ij}(t))dx$$
(5.13)

Now we define moments of the discrete measures by

$$m_{j,n}^{l}(t) = \int_{0}^{1} x^{l} d\mu_{j}^{n}(x,t), \quad t \in [0,T].$$
(5.14)

Substituting (5.13) into (5.14), we obtain

$$m_{j,n}^{l}(t) = \sum_{i=1}^{n} \omega_{ij}(t) x_{ij}^{l}(t)$$
(5.15)

Define

$$d\vec{\mu}^{n}(x,t) = (d\mu_{0}^{n}(x,t), d\mu_{1}^{n}(x,t), \cdots, d\mu_{N_{y}}^{n}(x,t))^{T}$$
(5.16)

and

$$\vec{m}_{n}^{l}(t) = (m_{0,n}^{l}(t), m_{1,n}^{l}(t), \cdots, m_{N_{y},n}^{l}(t))^{T}.$$
(5.17)

For given u(x, y, 0), as in (4.29), we can calculate  $\vec{m}_n^l(0)$  as follows:

We assume that

$$\begin{aligned} |a(x, y, t)| &\leq a_1 x + a_0 \\ |b^2(x, y, t)| &\leq b_2 x^2 + b_1 x + b_0 \\ |c(x, y, t)| &\leq c_0 \\ \left| \frac{\partial c(x, y, t)}{\partial y} \right| &\leq c_1 \\ \left| \frac{\partial (d^2(x, y, t))}{\partial y} \right| &\leq d_1 \\ \left| d^2(x, y, t) \right| &\leq d_0. \end{aligned}$$

$$(5.19)$$

**Lemma 5.2.1** Let l be any positive integer. The set  $\{\vec{m}_n^l(t) : n \ge \frac{1}{2}(l+1)\}$  is uniformly bounded and equicontinuous in  $t \in [0,T]$  for each l.

Proof. We have by (4.23)

$$\begin{split} \frac{d}{dt} m_{p,n}^{l}(t) &= \sum_{s=0}^{N_{y}} \tilde{\phi}(p,s) \sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}} \sum_{i=1}^{n} \left( \omega_{ij}(t) x_{ij}^{l-1}(t) \int_{0}^{1} la(x_{ij}(t), y, t) \phi_{s}(y) \phi_{j}(y) dy \right) \\ &+ \sum_{s=0}^{N_{y}} \tilde{\phi}(p,s) \sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}} \sum_{i=1}^{n} \left( \omega_{ij}(t) x_{ij}^{l-2}(t) \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} l(l-1) b^{2}(x_{ij}(t), y, t) \phi_{s}(y) \phi_{j}(y) dy \right) \\ &- \sum_{s=0}^{N_{y}} \tilde{\phi}(p,s) \sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}} \sum_{i=1}^{n} \left( \omega_{ij}(t) x_{ij}^{l}(t) \int_{0}^{1} \frac{\partial c(x_{ij}(t), y, t)}{\partial y} \phi_{s}(y) \phi_{j}(y) dy \right) \\ &- \sum_{s=0}^{N_{y}} \tilde{\phi}(p,s) \sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}} \sum_{i=1}^{n} \left( \omega_{ij}(t) x_{ij}^{l}(t) \int_{0}^{1} c(x_{ij}(t), y, t) \phi_{s}(y) \phi_{j}'(y) dy \right) \\ &- \sum_{s=0}^{N_{y}} \tilde{\phi}(p,s) \sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}} \sum_{i=1}^{n} \left( \omega_{ij}(t) x_{ij}^{l}(t) \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} \frac{\partial (d^{2}(x_{ij}(t), y, t))}{\partial y} \phi_{s}'(y) \phi_{j}(y) dy \right) \\ &- \sum_{s=0}^{N_{y}} \tilde{\phi}(p,s) \sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}} \sum_{i=1}^{n} \left( \omega_{ij}(t) x_{ij}^{l}(t) \int_{0}^{1} \frac{1}{2} d^{2}(x_{ij}(t), y, t) \phi_{s}'(y) \phi_{j}'(y) dy \right) \\ &+ \sum_{s=0}^{N_{y}} \tilde{\phi}(p,s) \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} f \phi_{s}(y) x^{k} dx dy. \end{split}$$

Since  $|\phi_j(y)| \leq 1, \ |\phi_j'(y)| \leq 1$  and

$$\int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} |f\phi_{s}(y)x^{k}| dx dy \leq \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} |f| dx dy \\
\leq \left\{ \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} |f|^{2} dx dy \right\}^{\frac{1}{2}} \left\{ \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} dx dy \right\}^{\frac{1}{2}} = ||f(t)||_{0},$$
(5.21)

we have

$$\begin{split} &\frac{d}{dt}m_{p,n}^{l}(t) \\ &\leq \rho_{1}\sum_{s=0}^{N_{y}}\sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}}\sum_{i=1}^{n}\left(\omega_{ij}(t)x_{ij}^{l-1}(t)\int_{0}^{1}l|(a_{1}x_{ij}(t)+a_{0})\phi_{s}(y)\phi_{j}(y)|dy\right) \\ &+\rho_{1}\sum_{s=0}^{N_{y}}\sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}}\sum_{i=1}^{n}\left(\omega_{ij}(t)x_{ij}^{l-2}(t)\int_{0}^{1}\frac{1}{2}l(l-1)|(b_{2}x_{ij}^{2}(t)+b_{1}x_{ij}(t)+b_{0})\phi_{s}(y)\phi_{j}(y)|dy\right) \\ &+\rho_{1}\sum_{s=0}^{N_{y}}\sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}}\sum_{i=1}^{n}\left(\omega_{ij}(t)x_{ij}^{l}(t)\int_{0}^{1}c_{1}|\phi_{s}(y)\phi_{j}(y)|dy\right) \\ &+\rho_{1}\sum_{s=0}^{N_{y}}\sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}}\sum_{i=1}^{n}\left(\omega_{ij}(t)x_{ij}^{l}(t)\int_{0}^{1}\frac{1}{2}d_{1}|\phi_{s}'(y)\phi_{j}(y)|dy\right) \\ &+\rho_{1}\sum_{s=0}^{N_{y}}\sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}}\sum_{i=1}^{n}\left(\omega_{ij}(t)x_{ij}^{l}(t)\int_{0}^{1}\frac{1}{2}d_{0}|\phi_{s}'(y)\phi_{j}'(y)|dy\right) \\ &+\rho_{1}\sum_{s=0}^{N_{y}}\int_{j=0}^{N_{y}}\sum_{i=1}^{n}\left(\omega_{ij}(t)x_{ij}^{l}(t)\int_{0}^{1}\frac{1}{2}d_{0}|\phi_{s}'(y)\phi_{j}'(y)|dy\right) \\ &+\rho_{1}\sum_{s=0}^{N_{y}}\int_{j=0}^{N_{y}}\sum_{i=1}^{n}\left(\omega_{ij}(t)x_{ij}^{l-1}(t)l(a_{1}x_{ij}(t)+a_{0})\right) \\ &+\rho_{1}\sum_{s=0}^{N_{y}}\sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}}\sum_{i=1}^{n}\left(\omega_{ij}(t)x_{ij}^{l-2}(t)\frac{1}{2}l(l-1)(b_{2}x_{ij}^{2}(t)+b_{1}x_{ij}(t)+b_{0})\right) \\ &+\rho_{1}\sum_{s=0}^{N_{y}}\sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}}\sum_{i=1}^{n}\left(\omega_{ij}(t)x_{ij}^{l}(t)c_{1}\right) \\ &+\rho_{1}\sum_{s=0}^{N_{y}}\sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}}\sum_{i=1}^{n}\left(\omega_{ij}(t)x_{ij}^{l}(t)c_{0}\right) \\ &+\rho_{1}\sum_{s=0}^{N_{y}}\sum_{j=0}^{n}\sum_{i=1}^{n}\left(\omega_{ij}(t)x_{ij}^{l}(t)c_{0}\right) \\ &+\rho_{1}\sum_{s=0}^{N_{y}}\sum_{j=0}^{n}\sum_{i=1}^{n}\left(\omega_{ij}(t)x_{ij}^{l}(t)\frac{1}{2}d_{1}\right) \\ &+\rho_{1}\sum_{s=0}^{N_{y}}\sum_{j=0}^{n}\sum_{i=1}^{n}\left(\omega_{ij}(t)x_{ij}^{l}(t)\frac{1}{2}d_{0}\right) \\ &+\rho_{1}\sum_{s=0}^{N_{y}}\sum_{j=0}^{n}\sum_{i=1}^{n}\left(\omega_{ij}(t)x_{ij}^{l}(t)\frac{1}{2}d_{0}\right) \\ &+\rho_{1}\sum_{s=0}^{N_{y}}\left||f(t)||_{0}\end{array}$$

(5.22)

where  $\rho_1 = \max_{0 \le s, p \le N_y} |\widetilde{\phi}(p, s)|$ . So we have

$$\begin{split} \frac{d}{dt}m_{p,n}^{l}(t) \\ &\leq (N_{y}+1)l\rho_{1}\sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}}\sum_{i=1}^{n}\left(\omega_{ij}(t)x_{ij}^{l-1}(t)(a_{1}x_{ij}(t)+a_{0})\right) \\ &+\frac{1}{2}(N_{y}+1)l(l-1)\rho_{1}\sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}}\sum_{i=1}^{n}\left(\omega_{ij}(t)x_{ij}^{l-2}(t)(b_{2}x_{ij}^{2}(t)+b_{1}x_{ij}(t)+b_{0})\right) \\ &+(N_{y}+1)\rho_{1}c_{1}\sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}}\sum_{i=1}^{n}\left(\omega_{ij}(t)x_{ij}^{l}(t)\right) \\ &+(N_{y}+1)\rho_{1}c_{0}\sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}}\sum_{i=1}^{n}\left(\omega_{ij}(t)x_{ij}^{l}(t)\right) \\ &+\frac{1}{2}(N_{y}+1)\rho_{1}d_{0}\sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}}\sum_{i=1}^{n}\left(\omega_{ij}(t)x_{ij}^{l}(t)\right) \\ &+\frac{1}{2}(N_{y}+1)\rho_{1}d_{0}\sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}}\sum_{i=1}^{n}\left(\omega_{ij}(t)x_{ij}^{l}(t)\right) \\ &+(N_{y}+1)\rho_{1}\|f(t)\|_{0} \\ &\leq (N_{y}+1)l(l-1)\rho_{1}\sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}}\left(b_{2}m_{j,n}^{l}(t)+b_{1}m_{j,n}^{l-1}(t)+b_{0}m_{j,n}^{l-2}(t)\right) \\ &+(N_{y}+1)\rho_{1}(c_{1}+c_{0}+\frac{1}{2}d_{2}+\frac{1}{2}d_{1}+\frac{1}{2}d_{0})\sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}}m_{j,n}^{l}(t) \\ &+(N_{y}+1)\rho_{1}\|f(t)\|_{0} \\ &=\eta_{1}\sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}}m_{j,n}^{l}(t)+\eta_{2}\sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}}m_{j,n}^{l-1}(t)+\eta_{3}\sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}}m_{j,n}^{l-2}(t)+\eta_{4}\|f(t)\|_{0} \end{split}$$

 $= \vec{\eta}_1^T \vec{m}_n^l(t) + \vec{\eta}_2^T \vec{m}_n^{l-1}(t) + \vec{\eta}_3^T \vec{m}_n^{l-2}(t) + \eta_4 \|f(t)\|_0,$ 

where

$$\eta_{1} = (N_{y} + 1)\rho_{1} \left( la_{1} + \frac{1}{2}l(l-1)b_{2} + c_{1} + c_{0} + \frac{1}{2}d_{2} + \frac{1}{2}d_{1} + \frac{1}{2}d_{0} \right)$$
  

$$\eta_{2} = (N_{y} + 1)l\rho_{1} \left( a_{0} + \frac{1}{2}(l-1)b_{1} \right)$$
  

$$\eta_{3} = \frac{1}{2}(N_{y} + 1)l(l-1)\rho_{1}b_{0}$$
  

$$\bar{\eta}_{i}^{T} = (\eta_{i}, \eta_{i}, \cdots, \eta_{i}), \quad i = 1, 2, 3$$
  

$$\eta_{4} = (N_{y} + 1)\rho_{1}.$$
  
(5.24)

We define  $K_i$  by

$$K_{i} = \begin{pmatrix} \vec{\eta}_{i}^{T} \\ \vec{\eta}_{i}^{T} \\ \vdots \\ \vec{\eta}_{i}^{T} \end{pmatrix}_{(N_{y}+1) \times (N_{y}+1)} \qquad i = 1, 2, 3 \qquad \vec{\eta}_{4} = \begin{pmatrix} \eta_{4} \\ \eta_{4} \\ \vdots \\ \eta_{4} \end{pmatrix}_{(N_{y}+1) \times 1} \qquad (5.25)$$

Then we have the following differential inequality

$$\frac{d}{dt}\vec{m}_{n}^{l}(t) \leq K_{1}\vec{m}_{n}^{l}(t) + K_{2}\vec{m}_{n}^{l-1}(t) + K_{3}\vec{m}_{n}^{l-2}(t) + \|f(t)\|_{0}\vec{\eta}_{4}.$$
(5.26)

Define

$$\frac{d}{dt}\vec{m}^{l}(t) = K_{1}\vec{m}^{l}(t) + K_{2}\vec{m}^{l-1}(t) + K_{3}\vec{m}^{l-2}(t) + ||f(t)||_{0}\vec{\eta}_{4}$$

$$m_{j}^{l}(0) = m_{j,n}^{l}(0), \quad 0 \le j \le N_{y},$$
(5.27)

where

$$\vec{m}^{-2}(t) = \vec{m}^{-1}(t) = 0.$$

Defining  $\vec{M}_n^l(t) = \vec{m}_n^l(t) - \vec{m}^l(t)$  and subtracting (5.27) from (5.26) we obtain

$$\begin{cases} \frac{d}{dt}\vec{M}_{n}^{l}(t) \leq K_{1}\vec{M}_{n}^{l}(t) + K_{2}\vec{M}_{n}^{l-1}(t) + K_{3}\vec{M}_{n}^{l-2}(t) \\ \vec{M}_{n}^{l}(0) = 0, \quad 0 \leq j \leq N_{y}. \end{cases}$$
(5.28)

There exists  $\vec{R}^l(t) \leq 0$  such that

$$\vec{d}_{n}\vec{d}_{n}\vec{d}_{n}^{l}(t) = K_{1}\vec{M}_{n}^{l}(t) + K_{2}\vec{M}_{n}^{l-1}(t) + K_{3}\vec{M}_{n}^{l-2}(t) + \vec{R}^{l}(t)$$

$$\vec{M}_{n}^{l}(0) = 0, \quad 0 \le j \le N_{y}.$$
(5.29)

•

The solution of (5.29) is

$$\vec{M}_{n}^{l}(t) = e^{K_{1}t}\vec{M}_{n}^{l}(0) + \int_{0}^{t} e^{K_{1}(t-\tau)} \left\{ K_{2}\vec{M}_{n}^{l-1}(\tau) + K_{3}\vec{M}_{n}^{l-2}(\tau) + \vec{R}^{l}(\tau) \right\} d\tau$$

$$= \int_{0}^{t} e^{K_{1}(t-\tau)} \left\{ K_{2}\vec{M}_{n}^{l-1}(\tau) + K_{3}\vec{M}_{n}^{l-2}(\tau) + \vec{R}^{l}(\tau) \right\} d\tau$$

$$\vec{M}_{n}^{1}(t) = \int_{0}^{t} e^{K_{1}(t-\tau)} \left\{ \vec{R}^{1}(\tau)d\tau \right\} \leq 0$$

$$\vec{M}_{n}^{2}(t) = \int_{0}^{t} e^{K_{1}(t-\tau)} \left\{ K_{2}\vec{M}_{n}^{1}(\tau) + \vec{R}^{2}(\tau)d\tau \right\} \leq 0$$

$$\vdots$$

$$(5.30)$$

By induction,  $ec{M}_n^{2n-1}(t) \leq 0.$  Therefore,

$$\vec{m}_n^l(t) \le \vec{m}^l(t), \quad l = 0, 1, 2, \cdots, 2n - 1$$
 (5.31)

Define

We have

$$\frac{d}{dt}\vec{M}^{l}(t) = A\vec{M}^{l}(t) + ||f(t)||_{0}\vec{B}^{l}$$

$$m_{j}^{k}(0) = m_{j,n}^{k}(0), \quad 0 \le j \le m, \quad 0 \le k \le l.$$
(5.34)

The solution of (5.34) is

$$\vec{M}^{l}(t) = e^{At} \vec{M}^{l}(0) + \int_{0}^{t} e^{A(t-\tau)} \|f(\tau)\|_{0} \vec{B}^{l} d\tau.$$
(5.35)

Thus,

$$\|\vec{m}^{l}(t)\|_{\infty} \leq \|\vec{M}^{l}(t)\|_{\infty}$$

$$\leq e^{\|A\|t} \|\vec{M}^{l}(0)\|_{\infty} + \int_{0}^{t} e^{\|A\|(t-\tau)} \|f(\tau)\|_{0} \|\vec{B}^{l}\|_{\infty} d\tau.$$
(5.36)

By (5.25) and (5.32), we have

$$\|\vec{B}^{l}\|_{\infty} = \|\vec{\eta}_{4}\|_{\infty} = \eta_{4}. \tag{5.37}$$

By (5.32) and (5.27) we have

$$\|\vec{M}^{l}(0)\|_{\infty} = \max_{0 \le k \le l} \|\vec{m}^{l}(0)\|_{\infty} = \max_{0 \le k \le l} \|\vec{m}^{l}_{n}(0)\|_{\infty}.$$
(5.38)

By (5.18) we obtain

$$\begin{split} \|\vec{m}_{n}^{l}(0)\|_{\infty} &\leq \|\Phi^{-1}\| \max_{0 \leq s \leq N_{y}} \left| \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} u(x, y, 0) x^{l} \phi_{s}(y) dx dy \right| \\ &\leq \|\Phi^{-1}\| \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} |u(x, y, 0)| dx dy \\ &\leq \|\Phi^{-1}\| \left\{ \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} |u(x, y, 0)|^{2} dx dy \right\}^{\frac{1}{2}} \left\{ \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} dx dy \right\}^{\frac{1}{2}} \\ &= \|\Phi^{-1}\| \|u_{0}\|_{0}. \end{split}$$

$$(5.39)$$

Substituting (5.37), (5.38) and (5.39) into (5.36), we have

$$\begin{split} \|\vec{m}^{l}(t)\|_{\infty} &\leq e^{\|A\|T} \|\Phi^{-1}\| \|u_{0}\|_{0} + \eta_{4} \left\{ \int_{0}^{t} e^{2\|A\|(t-\tau)} d\tau \right\}^{\frac{1}{2}} \left\{ \int_{0}^{t} \|f(\tau)\|_{0}^{2} d\tau \right\}^{\frac{1}{2}} \\ &= e^{\|A\|T} \|\Phi^{-1}\| \|u_{0}\|_{0} + \eta_{4} \left\{ \frac{1}{2\|A\|} \left( e^{2\|A\|t} - 1 \right) \right\}^{\frac{1}{2}} \left\{ \int_{0}^{t} \|f(\tau)\|_{0}^{2} d\tau \right\}^{\frac{1}{2}} \\ &\leq e^{\|A\|T} \|\Phi^{-1}\| \|u_{0}\|_{0} + \eta_{4} \left\{ \frac{1}{2\|A\|} \left( e^{2\|A\|T} - 1 \right) \right\}^{\frac{1}{2}} \left\{ \int_{0}^{t} \|f(\tau)\|_{0}^{2} d\tau \right\}^{\frac{1}{2}} = C(l, N_{y}), \end{split}$$

$$\tag{5.40}$$

where

$$C(l, N_y) = e^{||A||T} ||\Phi^{-1}|| ||u_0||_0 + \eta_4 \left\{ \frac{1}{2||A||} \left( e^{2||A||T} - 1 \right) \right\}^{\frac{1}{2}} \left\{ \int_0^t ||f(\tau)||_0^2 d\tau \right\}^{\frac{1}{2}}$$
(5.41)

So, for each given l,  $\{\vec{m}_n^l(t) : n \ge \frac{1}{2}(l+1)\}$  is uniformly bounded. Now, we consider the equicontinuity of  $\{\vec{m}_n^l(t) : n \ge \frac{1}{2}(l+1)\}$  in [0,T]. By the mean-value theorem,

$$|m_{j,n}^{l}(t_{2}) - m_{j,n}^{l}(t_{1})| = \left|\frac{d}{dt}m_{j,n}^{l}(\xi)\right||t_{2} - t_{1}|, \quad t_{1}, t_{2} \in [0,T], \quad \xi \in (t_{1}, t_{2}).$$
(5.42)

Following the same process leading to (5.26), we also obtain

$$\begin{aligned} \left\| \frac{d}{dt} \vec{m}_{n}^{l}(t) \right\|_{\infty} \\ &\leq \|K_{1}\| \|\vec{m}_{n}^{l}(t)\|_{\infty} + \|K_{2}\| \|\vec{m}_{n}^{l-1}(t)\|_{\infty} + \|K_{3}\| \|\vec{m}_{n}^{l-2}(t)\|_{\infty} + \|f(t)\|_{0}\eta_{4} \\ &\leq (\|K_{1}\| + \|K_{2}\| + \|K_{3}\|)C(l, N_{y}) + \max_{0 \leq t \leq T} \|f(t)\|_{0}\eta_{4} \\ &\leq \tilde{C}(l, N_{y}), \quad n \geq \frac{1}{2}(l+1). \end{aligned}$$

$$(5.43)$$

Therefore,

$$|m_{j,n}^{l}(t_{2}) - m_{j,n}^{l}(t_{1})| \leq \tilde{C}(l, N_{y})|t_{2} - t_{1}|, \quad t_{1}, t_{2} \in [0, T].$$
(5.44)

This proves the equicontinuity of  $\{\vec{m}_n^l(t) : n \ge \frac{1}{2}(l+1)\}$  in [0,T].  $\Box$ 

**Lemma 5.2.2** Given  $N_y$ , there exists a sequence  $k_n, k_n \to \infty$ , and a sequence of functions  $\{\vec{m}_*^l(t)\}$  such that for every fixed integer l, we have

$$\lim_{k_n \to \infty} \vec{m}_{k_n}^l(t) = \vec{m}_*^l(t), \quad \forall t \in [0, T].$$
(5.45)

**Proof.** For each l and j, using the Ascoli-Arzela theorem [17] and Lemma 5.2.1, we get a subsequence of  $\{m_{j,n}^{l}(t) : n \geq \frac{1}{2}(l+1), t \in [0,T]\}$  that converges uniformly to a limit which we denote by  $m_{j,*}^{l}(t)$ . Taking intersections of these subsequences successively with respect to j and applying a diagonal selection principle with respect to l, we obtain a sequence  $k_n$ , such that

$$\lim_{k_n \to \infty} \vec{m}_{k_n}^l(t) = \vec{m}_*^l(t), \quad \forall t \in [0, T] \quad \Box$$

Given a sequence  $\{m_n\}_{n=0}^{\infty}$ , define the following differences

$$\Delta^0 m_n = m_n,$$

$$\Delta^k m_n = \Delta^{k-1} m_n - \Delta^{k-1} m_{n+1}, \quad k = 1, 2, \cdots.$$
(5.46)

We have the following result concerning with the classical moment problem [10].

**Theorem 5.2.1** A necessary and sufficient condition for the existence of a solution of the Hausdorff moment problem, i.e., the existence of a unique nonnegative measure  $\mu$  satisfying

$$m_l=\int_0^1 x^l d\mu, l=0,1,2,\cdots,$$

is that

$$\Delta^k m_l \geq 0, \quad k, l = 0, 1, 2, \cdots.$$

**Lemma 5.2.3** Given  $N_y$ , for each  $0 \le j \le N_y$  and for any  $t \in [0, T]$ , the elements of the sequence  $\{m_{j,*}^l(t)\}_{l=0}^{\infty}$  are the moments of a nonnegative measure, i.e., there exists a nonnegative measure  $dP_{j,*}(x,t)$ , such that for each  $l \ge 0$  and each  $0 \le j \le N_y$ , we have

$$\int_0^1 x^l dP_{j,*}(x,t) = m_{j,*}^l(t), \quad \forall t \in [0,T].$$
(5.47)

*Proof.* For given j and n,  $\{m_{j,n}^{l}(t), l \ge 0\}$  are moments of the measure  $d\mu_{j}^{n}(t)$ . By Theorem 5.2.1, the related differences satisfy

$$0 \leq \bigtriangleup^i \vec{m}_n^l(t), \quad \forall i = 0, 1, 2, \cdots, \text{ and } l \leq 2n - 1.$$

By Lemma 5.2.2, for any l, we have

$$\lim_{k_n \to \infty} \vec{m}_{k_n}^l(t) = \vec{m}_*^l(t), \quad \forall t \in [0, T].$$

Hence

$$0 \le \Delta^i \vec{m}^l_*(t), \quad \forall i, l = 0, 1, 2, \cdots.$$

Thus, for each j, there exists a nonnegative measure  $dP_{j,*}(x,t)$  such that

$$m_{j,*}^{l}(t) = \int_{0}^{1} x^{l} dP_{j,*}(x,t).$$

Let  $d\vec{P}_*(x,t) = (dP_{0,*}(x,t), dP_{1,*}(x,t), \cdots, dP_{m,*}(x,t))^T$ . We have the following corollary.

**Corollary 5.2.1** Given  $N_y$ , for any  $f \in C[0,1]$ , we have

$$\lim_{k_n \to \infty} \int_0^1 f(x) d\vec{\mu}^{k_n}(x,t) = \int_0^1 f(x) d\vec{P}_*(x,t), \quad \forall t \in [0,T].$$
(5.48)

*Proof.* For every fixed integer  $l \ge 0$ , by Lemma 5.2.2 and Lemma 5.2.3 we have

$$\lim_{k_n \to \infty} \int_0^1 x^l d\vec{\mu}^{k_n}(x,t) = \lim_{k_n \to \infty} \vec{m}_{k_n}^l(t) = \vec{m}_*^l(t) = \int_0^1 x^l d\vec{P}_*(x,t), \quad \forall t \in [0,T]$$

By the well-known Weierstrass approximation theorem,  $\{x^l\}_{l=0}^{\infty}$  is dense in C[0,T]. So for any continuous function f,

$$\lim_{k_n \to \infty} \int_0^1 f(x) d\vec{\mu}^{k_n}(x,t) = \int_0^1 f(x) d\vec{P}_*(x,t), \quad \forall t \in [0,T] \quad \Box$$

Using (5.15) and definition of  $L_1^*$ , we could write (4.22) as follows,

$$\frac{d}{dt}\vec{m}_{n}^{l}(t) = \int_{0}^{1} L_{1}^{*}(x^{l})d\vec{\mu}^{n}(t)$$
(5.49)

**Lemma 5.2.4** Given  $N_y$ , for each l, we have

$$\vec{m}_{*}^{l}(t) - \vec{m}_{*}^{l}(0) = \int_{0}^{t} \int_{0}^{1} L_{1}^{*}(x^{l}) d\vec{P}_{*}(x,s) ds = \int_{0}^{t} \int_{0}^{1} L_{1}^{*}(x^{l}) \vec{p}_{*}(x,s) dx ds.$$
(5.50)

*Proof.* Integrating (5.49) over (0, t), we get

$$\vec{m}_{k_n}^l(t) - \vec{m}_{k_n}^l(0) = \int_0^t \int_0^1 L_1^*(x^l) d\vec{\mu}^{k_n}(s) ds$$

Similar to the proof of inequality (5.26), we have

$$\int_0^1 L_1^*(x^l) d\vec{\mu}^{k_n}(s) \le K_1 \vec{m}_{k_n}^l(t) + K_2 \vec{m}_{k_n}^{l-1}(t) + K_3 \vec{m}_{k_n}^{l-2}(t) + \|f(t)\|_0 \vec{\eta}_4$$

By the Lebesgue dominated convergence theorem, Lemma 5.2.2 and Corollary 5.2.1, we obtain as  $k_n \to \infty$ ,

$$\vec{m}_{*}^{l}(t) - \vec{m}_{*}^{l}(0) = \int_{0}^{t} \int_{0}^{1} L_{1}^{*}(x^{l}) d\vec{P}_{*}(x,s) ds = \int_{0}^{t} \int_{0}^{1} L_{1}^{*}(x^{l}) \vec{p}_{*}(x,s) dx \quad \Box$$

**Theorem 5.2.2** Under all the previous assumptions, given  $N_y$ , for any function  $f \in$ 

C[0,1], we have

$$\lim_{n \to \infty} \int_0^1 f(x) d\vec{\mu}_j^n(x,t) = \int_0^1 f(x) \vec{\alpha}_j(x,t) dx$$
(5.51)

Proof. From Lemma 5.2.4, for any l, we have

$$(x^{l}, \vec{p}_{*}(x, t)) - (x^{l}, \vec{p}_{*}(x, 0)) = \int_{0}^{t} \int_{0}^{1} L_{1}^{*}(x^{l}) \vec{p}_{*}(x, s) dx ds$$

Since  $\{x^l\}$  is dense in C[0, 1], we see that  $\{\vec{p}_*(x, t)\}$  are the weak solution of (4.7). Since (4.7) has a unique solution, we conclude that the limit of  $\{\vec{\mu}^{k_n}\}$  is independent of the choice of subsequences. It follows that the whole sequence is convergent. This completes the proof of (5.51).  $\Box$ 

**Theorem 5.2.3** Under all the previous assumptions, for any continuous functions g(x) and h(y) in [0, 1], we have

$$\lim_{N_{y}\to\infty}\lim_{n\to\infty}\sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}}\int_{0}^{1}\int_{0}^{1}h(y)g(x)\phi_{j}(y)d\mu_{j}^{n}(t)dy = \int_{0}^{1}\int_{0}^{1}u(x,y,t)h(y)g(x)dxdy.$$
 (5.52)

Proof.

$$\sum_{j=0}^{N_{\mathbf{y}}} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} h(y)g(x)\phi_{j}(y)d\mu_{j}^{n}(t)dy - \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} u(x,y,t)h(y)g(x)dxdy \\
= \left\{ \sum_{j=0}^{N_{\mathbf{y}}} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} h(y)g(x)\phi_{j}(y)d\mu_{j}^{n}(t)dy - \sum_{j=0}^{N_{\mathbf{y}}} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} h(y)g(x)\phi_{j}(y)\alpha_{j}(x,t)dxdy \right\} \\
+ \left\{ \sum_{j=0}^{N_{\mathbf{y}}} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} h(y)g(x)\phi_{j}(y)\alpha_{j}(x,t)dxdy - \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} u(x,y,t)h(y)g(x)dxdy \right\}. \tag{5.53}$$

For fixed  $N_y$ , using Theorem 5.2.2, we get

$$\lim_{n \to \infty} \left\{ \sum_{j=0}^{N_{\mathbf{y}}} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} h(y)g(x)\phi_{j}(y)d\mu_{j}^{n}(t)dy - \sum_{j=0}^{N_{\mathbf{y}}} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} h(y)g(x)\phi_{j}(y)\alpha_{j}(x,t)dxdy \right\}$$
$$= \lim_{n \to \infty} \sum_{j=0}^{N_{\mathbf{y}}} \int_{0}^{1} h(y)\phi_{j}(y) \left\{ \int_{0}^{1} g(x)(d\mu_{j}^{n}(t) - \alpha_{j}(x,t)dx) \right\} dy = 0.$$

Now, we estimate the second term in (5.53). Since

$$\begin{split} & \left| \sum_{j=0}^{N_{\mathbf{v}}} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} h(y)g(x)\phi_{j}(y)\alpha_{j}(x,t)dxdy - \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} u(x,y,t)h(y)g(x)dxdy \right| \\ &= \left| \int_{0}^{1} g(x) \int_{0}^{1} h(y) \left\{ \sum_{j=0}^{N_{\mathbf{v}}} \phi_{j}(y)\alpha_{j}(x,t) - u(x,y,t) \right\} dydx \right| \\ &\leq \int_{0}^{1} g(x) \int_{0}^{1} h(y) \left| \sum_{j=0}^{N_{\mathbf{v}}} \phi_{j}(y)\alpha_{j}(x,t) - u(x,y,t) \right| dydx \\ &\leq \int_{0}^{1} g(x) \left\{ \int_{0}^{1} |h(y)|^{2} dy \right\}^{\frac{1}{2}} \left\{ \int_{0}^{1} \left| \sum_{j=0}^{N_{\mathbf{v}}} \phi_{j}(y)\alpha_{j}(x,t) - u(x,y,t) \right|^{2} dy \right\}^{\frac{1}{2}} dx \\ &= \left\{ \int_{0}^{1} |h(y)|^{2} dy \right\}^{\frac{1}{2}} \int_{0}^{1} g(x) \left\{ \int_{0}^{1} \left| \sum_{j=0}^{N_{\mathbf{v}}} \phi_{j}(y)\alpha_{j}(x,t) - u(x,y,t) \right|^{2} dy \right\}^{\frac{1}{2}} dx \\ &\leq \left\{ \int_{0}^{1} |h(y)|^{2} dy \right\}^{\frac{1}{2}} \left\{ \int_{0}^{1} |g(x)|^{2} dx \right\}^{\frac{1}{2}} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \left| \sum_{j=0}^{N_{\mathbf{v}}} \phi_{j}(y)\alpha_{j}(x,t) - u(x,y,t) \right|^{2} dy \right\}^{\frac{1}{2}} dx \\ &\leq \left\{ \int_{0}^{1} |h(y)|^{2} dy \right\}^{\frac{1}{2}} \left\{ \int_{0}^{1} |g(x)|^{2} dx \right\}^{\frac{1}{2}} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \left| \sum_{j=0}^{N_{\mathbf{v}}} \phi_{j}(y)\alpha_{j}(x,t) - u(x,y,t) \right|^{2} dy dx. \end{aligned}$$
(5.54)

In Theorem 5.1.1, by choosing  $u_{0,h} = u_0$ , we get

$$\max_{0 \le t \le T} \|u(t) - u_h(t)\|_0^2 \le C_{\alpha,\gamma} h^2(||u_0||_1^2 + \int_0^T \|f\|_0^2 dt).$$
(5.55)

We then obtain

$$\int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \left| \sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}} \phi_{j}(y) \alpha_{j}(x,t) - u(x,y,t) \right|^{2} dy dx \leq C_{\alpha,\gamma} h^{2} \int_{0}^{1} (||u_{0}||_{1}^{2} + \int_{0}^{T} ||f||_{0}^{2} dt) dx.$$
(5.56)

Therefore,

$$\lim_{N_{y}\to\infty}\left\{\sum_{j=0}^{N_{y}}\int_{0}^{1}\int_{0}^{1}h(y)g(x)\phi_{j}(y)\alpha_{j}(x,t)dxdy-\int_{0}^{1}\int_{0}^{1}u(x,y,t)h(y)g(x)dxdy\right\}=0$$

This proves (5.52).

## CHAPTER 6

### **Numerical Results**

In this chapter, we shall consider the following partial differential equations

$$u_t = -(au)_x + \frac{1}{2}(b^2 u)_{xx} + u_{yy}.$$
(6.1)

(6.1) models a family of singular processes with singularities at x = 0 and x = 1. We shall use the Gauss-Galerkin finite element method to find the solutions. We use the finite element method in the y-direction with piece-wise linear finite element space and the Gauss-Galerkin method in the x-direction to solve the proposed problems. Our numerical results will show that the Gauss-Galerkin finite element method is a efficient method dealing with a variety of such singular problems.

### 6.1 Piecewise Linear Finite Element Space

We choose grid points  $\{y_j\}_{j=0}^{N_y}$  by dividing [0,1] into  $N_y$  equal subintervals with  $h = \frac{1}{N_y}, y_j = jh, j = 0, 1, \dots, N_y$ , such that

$$0 = y_0 < y_1 < y_2 < \dots < y_j < \dots < y_{N_y} = 1.$$

Let  $V_h \subset H^1(0, 1)$  be a finite dimensional subspace and  $\phi_j(y)$  be base functions of  $V_h$  sketched as follows:



:





76

:



:





$$\phi_{0}(y) = \begin{cases} -\frac{y-h}{h}, & \text{when } 0 \leq y < y_{1} \\ 0, & \text{when } y_{1} \leq y \leq 1 \end{cases}$$

$$\phi_{1}(y) = \begin{cases} \frac{y}{h}, & \text{when } 0 \leq y < y_{1} \\ -\frac{y-y_{2}}{h}, & \text{when } y_{1} \leq y < y_{2} \\ 0, & \text{when } y_{2} \leq y \leq 1 \end{cases}$$

$$\phi_{2}(y) = \begin{cases} 0, & \text{when } 0 \leq y < y_{1} \\ \frac{y-y_{1}}{h}, & \text{when } y_{1} \leq y < y_{2} \\ -\frac{y-y_{3}}{h}, & \text{when } y_{2} \leq y < y_{3} \\ 0, & \text{when } y_{3} \leq y \leq 1 \end{cases}$$

÷

$$\phi_{j-1}(y) = \begin{cases} 0, & \text{when } 0 \le y < y_{j-2} \\ \frac{y-y_{j-2}}{h}, & \text{when } y_{j-2} \le y < y_{j-1} \\ -\frac{y-y_j}{h}, & \text{when } y_{j-1} \le y < y_j \\ 0, & \text{when } y_j \le y \le 1 \end{cases}$$
$$\phi_j(y) = \begin{cases} 0, & \text{when } 0 \le y < y_{j-1} \\ \frac{y-y_{j-1}}{h}, & \text{when } y_{j-1} \le y < y_j \\ -\frac{y-y_{j+1}}{h}, & \text{when } y_j \le y < y_{j+1} \\ 0, & \text{when } y_j \le y < y_{j+1} \\ 0, & \text{when } 0 \le y < y_j \end{cases}$$
$$\phi_{j+1}(y) = \begin{cases} 0, & \text{when } 0 \le y < y_j \\ \frac{y-y_j}{h}, & \text{when } y_j \le y < y_{j+1} \\ -\frac{y-y_{j+2}}{h}, & \text{when } y_{j+1} \le y < y_{j+2} \\ 0, & \text{when } y_{j+2} \le y \le 1 \end{cases}$$

$$\phi_{N_{y}-1}(y) = \begin{cases} 0, & \text{when } 0 \le y < y_{N_{y}-2} \\ \frac{y-y_{N_{y}-2}}{h}, & \text{when } y_{N_{y}-2} \le y < y_{N_{y}-1} \\ -\frac{y-1}{h}, & \text{when } y_{N_{y}-1} \le y \le 1 \end{cases}$$
$$\phi_{N_{Y}}(y) = \begin{cases} 0, & \text{when } 0 \le y < y_{N_{y}-1} \\ \frac{y-y_{N_{y}-1}}{h}, & \text{when } y_{N_{y}-1} \le y \le 1 \end{cases}$$

÷

We have

$$\phi_0'(y) = \begin{cases} -\frac{1}{h}, & \text{when } 0 < y < y_1 \\\\ 0, & \text{when } y_1 < y < 1 \end{cases}$$
$$\phi_1'(y) = \begin{cases} \frac{1}{h}, & \text{when } 0 < y < y_1 \\\\ -\frac{1}{h}, & \text{when } y_1 < y < y_2 \\\\ 0, & \text{when } y_2 < y < 1 \end{cases}$$

$$\phi_2'(y) = \begin{cases} 0, & \text{when } 0 < y < y_1 \\ \frac{1}{h}, & \text{when } y_1 < y < y_2 \\ -\frac{1}{h}, & \text{when } y_2 < y < y_3 \\ 0, & \text{when } y_3 < y < 1 \end{cases}$$

÷

$$\phi_{j-1}'(y) = \begin{cases} 0, & \text{when } 0 < y < y_{j-2} \\ \frac{1}{h}, & \text{when } y_{j-2} < y < y_{j-1} \\ -\frac{1}{h}, & \text{when } y_{j-1} < y < y_j \\ 0, & \text{when } y_j < y < 1 \end{cases}$$
$$\phi_j'(y) = \begin{cases} 0, & \text{when } 0 < y < y_{j-1} \\ \frac{1}{h}, & \text{when } y_{j-1} < y < y_j \\ -\frac{1}{h}, & \text{when } y_j < y < y_{j+1} \\ 0, & \text{when } y_j < y < y_{j+1} \\ 0, & \text{when } y_{j+1} < y < 1 \end{cases}$$
$$\phi_{j+1}'(y) = \begin{cases} 0, & \text{when } 0 < y < y_j \\ \frac{1}{h}, & \text{when } y_j < y < y_{j+1} \\ -\frac{1}{h}, & \text{when } y_{j+1} < y < y_{j+2} \\ 0, & \text{when } y_{j+2} < y < 1 \end{cases}$$

:

$$\phi_{N_{y}-1}'(y) = \begin{cases} 0, & \text{when } 0 < y < y_{N_{y}-2} \\ \frac{1}{h}, & \text{when } y_{N_{y}-2} < y < y_{N_{y}-1} \\ -\frac{1}{h}, & \text{when } y_{N_{y}-1} < y < 1 \end{cases}$$
$$\phi_{N_{y}}'(y) = \begin{cases} 0, & \text{when } 0 < y < y_{N_{y}-1} \\ \frac{1}{h}, & \text{when } y_{N_{y}-1} < y < 1 \end{cases}$$

#### 6.2 A Test Problem

In this section, we shall consider the following partial differential equation:

$$u_t = (x(1-x)u)_{xx} + u_{yy} \tag{6.2}$$

with the boundary conditions

$$\lim_{x \to 0} xu = \lim_{x \to 1} (1 - x)u = 0 \quad \text{on} \quad (0, T) \times (0, 1)$$
(6.3)

$$u_y(x,0,t) = u_y(x,1,t) = 0$$
 on  $(0,T) \times (0,1)$  (6.4)

and initial condition

$$u(x, y, 0) = 1 - \cos(\pi y)$$
 on  $\Omega$ . (6.5)

As we shall see below, the boundary terms corresponding to (4.16) do not drop out. We shall show how to handle such terms by interpreting them as fluxes across the boundaries at x = 0 and x = 1 and the moments of such fluxes. By redefining a new "total" U including that due to the fluxes and new "total" moments  $M^i$ , a new system for such U and  $M^i$  results. Such a new system can readily be analyzed by the method in Chapter 5 and convergence results easily follow.

The right hand side of (6.2) is the divergence of the vector field  $((x(1-x)u)_x, u_y)$ . Let P(x, y, t) express the flux across x in the positive direction and Q(x, y, t) express the flux across y in the positive direction at time t respectively. We have

$$P(x, y, t) = -(x(1-x)u)_x$$
(6.6)

$$\mathbf{Q}(x,y,t) = -u_y. \tag{6.7}$$

P(0, y, t), P(1, y, t), Q(x, 0, t) and Q(x, 1, t) express the flux across x = 0, x = 1, y = 0and y = 1 in the positive direction at time t respectively. By (6.6), we have

$$P(x, y, t) = -(x(1-x)u)_x = -(1-x)u + xu - x(1-x)u_x.$$
(6.8)

So,

$$P(0, y, t) = -u(0, y, t)$$
 and  $P(1, y, t) = u(1, y, t).$  (6.9)

Integrating (6.2) over  $\Omega$ , integrating by parts and using (6.4) and (6.9) we have

$$\frac{d}{dt} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} u(x, y, t) dx dy = \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} ((x(1-x)u)_{xx} + u_{yy}) dx dy \\
= \int_{0}^{1} (x(1-x)u)_{x}|_{x=0}^{1} dy + \int_{0}^{1} u_{y}|_{y=0}^{1} dx \\
= \int_{0}^{1} -P(x, y, t)|_{x=0}^{1} dy \\
= \int_{0}^{1} -\{P(1, y, t) - P(0, y, t)\} dy \\
= -\int_{0}^{1} u(0, y, t) dy - \int_{0}^{1} u(1, y, t) dy.$$
(6.10)

Integrating (6.10) over  $\tau \in (0, t)$ , we have

$$\int_0^1 \int_0^1 u(x, y, t) dx dy - \int_0^1 \int_0^1 u(x, y, 0) dx dy$$

$$= -\int_0^t \int_0^1 u(0, y, \tau) dy d\tau - \int_0^t \int_0^1 u(1, y, \tau) dy d\tau.$$
(6.11)

So,

$$\int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} u(x, y, t) dx dy + \int_{0}^{t} \int_{0}^{1} u(0, y, \tau) dy d\tau + \int_{0}^{t} \int_{0}^{1} u(1, y, \tau) dy d\tau$$
  
= 
$$\int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} u(x, y, 0) dx dy.$$
 (6.12)

Multiplying by x and integrating (6.2) over  $\Omega$ , integrating by parts and using (6.4) and (6.9), we have

$$\frac{d}{dt} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} u(x, y, t) x dx dy = \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} ((x(1-x)u)_{xx}x + u_{yy}x) dx dy 
= \int_{0}^{1} (x(1-x)u)_{x}x|_{x=0}^{1} dy + \int_{0}^{1} u_{y}|_{y=0}^{1} x dx 
= \int_{0}^{1} -P(x, y, t)x|_{x=0}^{1} dy 
= \int_{0}^{1} -P(1, y, t) dy = -\int_{0}^{1} u(1, y, t) dy.$$
(6.13)

Integrating (6.13) over  $\tau \in (0, t)$ , we have

$$\int_0^1 \int_0^1 u(x, y, t) x dx dy - \int_0^1 \int_0^1 u(x, y, 0) x dx dy = -\int_0^t \int_0^1 u(1, y, \tau) dy d\tau \qquad (6.14)$$

So,

$$\int_0^1 \int_0^1 u(x, y, t) x dx dy + \int_0^t \int_0^1 u(1, y, \tau) dy d\tau = \int_0^1 \int_0^1 u(x, y, 0) x dx dy$$
(6.15)

where  $\int_0^t \int_0^1 u(0, y, \tau) dy d\tau$  and  $\int_0^t \int_0^1 u(1, y, \tau) dy d\tau$  represent the moments of the fluxes across the boundaries x = 0 and x = 1.

Multiplying by  $x^k, k = 2, 3, \dots, 2n - 1$ , integrating (6.2) over  $\Omega$ , integrating by parts and using (6.4) and (6.9), we have

$$\frac{d}{dt} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} u(x, y, t) x^{k} dx dy = \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} ((x(1-x)u)_{xx}x^{k} + u_{yy}x^{k}) dx dy 
= \int_{0}^{1} (x(1-x)u)_{x}x^{k}|_{x=0}^{1} dy - \int_{0}^{1} x(1-x)ukx^{k-1}|_{x=0}^{1} dy 
+ \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} x(1-x)uk(k-1)x^{k-2} dx dy + \int_{0}^{1} u_{y}|_{y=0}^{y} x dx 
= \int_{0}^{1} -P(x, y, t)x^{k}|_{x=0}^{1} dy + \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} x(1-x)uk(k-1)x^{k-2} dx dy 
= \int_{0}^{1} -P(1, y, t) dy + \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} x(1-x)uk(k-1)x^{k-2} dx dy 
= -\int_{0}^{1} u(1, y, t) dy + \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} x(1-x)uk(k-1)x^{k-2} dx dy.$$
(6.16)

Integrating (6.16) over  $\tau \in (0, t)$ , we have

$$\int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} u(x, y, t) x^{k} dx dy - \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} u(x, y, 0) x^{k} dx dy$$
  
=  $-\int_{0}^{t} \int_{0}^{1} u(1, y, \tau) dy d\tau + \int_{0}^{t} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} x(1 - x) u(x, y, \tau) k(k - 1) x^{k-2} dx dy d\tau.$   
(6.17)

So,

$$\int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} u(x, y, t) x^{k} dx dy + \int_{0}^{t} \int_{0}^{1} u(1, y, \tau) dy d\tau$$
  
= 
$$\int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} u(x, y, 0) x^{k} dx dy + \int_{0}^{t} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} x(1 - x) u(x, y, \tau) k(k - 1) x^{k-2} dx dy d\tau$$
  
(6.18)

On the other hand, we can rewrite (6.10), 6.13) and (6.16) as

$$\frac{d}{dt} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \left\{ u(x,y,t) + \int_{0}^{t} u(x,y,\tau)\delta(x)d\tau + \int_{0}^{t} u(x,y,\tau)\delta(x-1)d\tau \right\} dxdy = 0$$
(6.19)
$$\frac{d}{dt} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \left\{ u(x,y,t) + \int_{0}^{t} u(x,y,\tau)\delta(x)d\tau + \int_{0}^{t} u(x,y,\tau)\delta(x-1)d\tau \right\} xdxdy = 0$$
(6.20)

and, for  $k = 2, 3, \dots, 2n - 1$ ,

$$\frac{d}{dt} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \left\{ u(x, y, t) + \int_{0}^{t} u(x, y, \tau) \delta(x) d\tau + \int_{0}^{t} u(x, y, \tau) \delta(x - 1) d\tau \right\} x^{k} dx dy$$

$$= \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} x(1 - x) \left\{ u(x, y, t) + \int_{0}^{t} u(x, y, \tau) \delta(x) d\tau + \int_{0}^{t} u(x, y, \tau) \delta(x - 1) d\tau \right\} k(k - 1) x^{k-2} dx dy.$$
(6.21)

Integrating (6.19), (6.20) and (6.21) over  $\tau \in (0, t)$ , we have

.

$$\int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \left\{ u(x,y,t) + \int_{0}^{t} u(x,y,\tau)\delta(x)d\tau + \int_{0}^{t} u(x,y,\tau)\delta(x-1)d\tau \right\} dxdy$$
  
= 
$$\int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \left\{ u(x,y,0) + \int_{0}^{0} u(x,y,\tau)\delta(x)d\tau + \int_{0}^{0} u(x,y,\tau)\delta(x-1)d\tau \right\} dxdy$$
 (6.22)

$$\int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \left\{ u(x, y, t) + \int_{0}^{t} u(x, y, \tau) \delta(x) d\tau + \int_{0}^{t} u(x, y, \tau) \delta(x - 1) d\tau \right\} x dx dy$$
  
= 
$$\int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \left\{ u(x, y, 0) + \int_{0}^{0} u(x, y, \tau) \delta(x) d\tau + \int_{0}^{0} u(x, y, \tau) \delta(x - 1) d\tau \right\} x dx dy$$
  
(6.23)

and, for  $k = 2, 3, \dots, 2n - 1$ ,

$$\begin{split} &\int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \left\{ u(x,y,t) + \int_{0}^{t} u(x,y,\tau)\delta(x)d\tau + \int_{0}^{t} u(x,y,\tau)\delta(x-1)d\tau \right\} x^{k}dxdy \\ &= \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \left\{ u(x,y,0) + \int_{0}^{0} u(x,y,\tau)\delta(x)d\tau + \int_{0}^{0} u(x,y,\tau)\delta(x-1)d\tau \right\} x^{k}dxdy \\ &+ \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{t} x(1-x) \left\{ u(x,y,\tau) + \int_{0}^{\tau} u(x,y,\tau')\delta(x)d\tau' \right. \\ &+ \int_{0}^{\tau} u(x,y,\tau')\delta(x-1)d\tau' \right\} k(k-1)x^{k-2}d\tau dxdy. \end{split}$$
(6.24)

We now let

$$U(x, y, t) = u(x, y, t) + \int_0^t u(x, y, \tau)\delta(x)d\tau + \int_0^t u(x, y, \tau)\delta(x - 1)d\tau$$
(6.25)

We can the rewrite (6.19), (6.20) and (6.21) as

$$\frac{d}{dt} \int_0^1 \int_0^1 U(x, y, t) dx dy = 0$$
(6.26)

$$\frac{d}{dt} \int_0^1 \int_0^1 U(x, y, t) x dx dy = 0$$
(6.27)

and, for  $k = 2, 3, \dots, 2n - 1$ ,

$$\frac{d}{dt} \int_0^1 \int_0^1 U(x, y, t) x^k dx dy = \int_0^1 \int_0^1 x(1-x) U(x, y, t) k(k-1) x^{k-2} dx dy \qquad (6.28)$$

We can also rewrite (6.22), (6.23) and (6.24) as

$$\int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} U(x, y, t) dx dy = \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} U(x, y, 0) dx dy$$
(6.29)

$$\int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} U(x, y, t) x dx dy = \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} U(x, y, 0) x dx dy$$
(6.30)

and, for  $k = 2, 3, \dots, 2n - 1$ ,

$$\int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} U(x, y, t) x^{k} dx dy = \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} U(x, y, 0) x^{k} dx dy + \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{t} x(1-x) U(x, y, \tau) k(k-1) x^{k-2} d\tau dx dy.$$
(6.31)

Let us now calculate a few quantities:

The exact solution of (6.2) with boundary conditions (6.3),(6.4) and initial condition (6.5) is

$$u(x, y, t) = e^{-2t} - \cos(\pi y)e^{-(\pi^2 + 2)t} \quad \text{on} \quad (0, T) \times \Omega \tag{6.32}$$

(2)  $\int_0^1 \int_0^1 u(x, y, 0) x^k dx dy = \frac{1}{k+1}, \quad k = 0, 1, 2, \cdots, 2n-1.$  (6.33)

(3)

$$\int_0^1 u(0, y, t) dy = \int_0^1 u(1, y, t) dy = e^{-2t}.$$
 (6.34)

(4)

$$\int_0^t \int_0^1 u(0, y, \tau) dy d\tau = \int_0^t \int_0^1 u(1, y, \tau) dy d\tau = \frac{1}{2} (1 - e^{-2t}).$$
(6.35)

(5)

$$\int_0^1 \int_0^1 u(x, y, t) x^k dx dy = \frac{1}{k+1} e^{-2t}, \quad k = 0, 1, 2, \cdots, 2n - 1.$$
 (6.36)

We denote by  $M^{i}(t)$  the ith total moment

$$M^{i}(t) = \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} U(x, y, t) x^{i} dx dy.$$
(6.37)

Then we have

$$\int_0^1 \int_0^1 U(x, y, 0) x^k dx dy = \int_0^1 \int_0^1 u(x, y, 0) x^k dx dy = \frac{1}{k+1}, \ k = 0, 1, \dots, 2n-1.$$
(6.38)

(7)

$$\begin{split} M^{0}(t) &= \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} U(x, y, t) dx dy \\ &= \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \left\{ u(x, y, t) + \int_{0}^{t} u(x, y, \tau) \delta(x) d\tau + \int_{0}^{t} u(x, y, \tau) \delta(x - 1) d\tau \right\} dx dy \\ &= \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} u(x, y, t) dx dy + \int_{0}^{t} \int_{0}^{1} u(0, y, \tau) dy d\tau + \int_{0}^{t} \int_{0}^{1} u(1, y, \tau) dy d\tau \\ &= e^{-2t} + \frac{1}{2} (1 - e^{-2t}) + \frac{1}{2} (1 - e^{-2t}) = 1. \end{split}$$

$$(6.39)$$

(8)

$$\begin{split} M^{1}(t) &= \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} U(x, y, t) x dx dy \\ &= \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \left\{ u(x, y, t) + \int_{0}^{t} u(x, y, \tau) \delta(x) d\tau + \int_{0}^{t} u(x, y, \tau) \delta(x - 1) d\tau \right\} x dx dy \\ &= \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} u(x, y, t) x dx dy + \int_{0}^{t} \int_{0}^{1} u(1, y, \tau) dy d\tau \\ &= \frac{1}{2} e^{-2t} + \frac{1}{2} (1 - e^{-2t}) = \frac{1}{2}. \end{split}$$

$$(6.40)$$

(9) For 
$$k = 2, \dots, 2n - 1$$
,

$$M^{k}(t) = \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} U(x, y, t) x^{k} dx dy$$
  
=  $\int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} \left\{ u(x, y, t) + \int_{0}^{t} u(x, y, \tau) \delta(x) d\tau + \int_{0}^{t} u(x, y, \tau) \delta(x - 1) d\tau \right\} x^{k} dx dy$   
=  $\int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} u(x, y, t) x^{k} dx dy + \int_{0}^{t} \int_{0}^{1} u(1, y, \tau) sy d\tau$   
=  $\frac{1}{k+1} e^{-2t} + \frac{1}{2} (1 - e^{-2t}).$  (6.41)

For the steady state solution, we have

(10)

$$\int_0^1 u(0, y, \infty) dy = \int_0^1 u(1, y, \infty) dy = 0$$
 (6.42)

(11)

$$\int_0^\infty \int_0^1 u(0, y, \tau) dy d\tau = \int_0^\infty \int_0^1 u(1, y, \tau) dy d\tau = \frac{1}{2}$$
(6.43)

(12)

$$\int_0^1 \int_0^1 u(x, y, \infty) x^k dx dy = 0, \quad k = 0, 1, 2, \cdots, 2n - 1$$
 (6.44)

This implies that

$$u(x, y, \infty) = 0, \quad (x, y) \in \Omega \tag{6.45}$$

In this test problem, x = 0 and x = 1 are exit boundaries. For the steady state, u will "pile" at x = 0 and x = 1 with a Dirac-delta function singularity formed at x = 0 and x = 1.

(13)

$$M^{0}(\infty) = 1$$
 and  $M^{k}(\infty) = \frac{1}{2}, \quad k = 1, 2, \cdots, 2n - 1.$  (6.46)

We apply the Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element method using finite element approximations in the y-direction and Gauss-Galerkin approximations in the x-direction. We divide  $y \in [0,1]$  into four equal subintervals. Then we have five grid lines  $y_j = jh, j = 0, 1, 2, 3, 4, h = 0.25$ . For simplicity we use the Neumann boundary conditions to eliminate the unknowns along the grid lines y = 0 and y = 1 (though this is not necessary as the Neumann conditions are "natural".) In the x-direction we use both three nodes labeled by \*, + and x and five nodes labeled by  $\diamond$ , o, x, + and \*, respectively, for each grid line  $y = y_j$ . We only show the numerical results along grid line y = 0.5. The results along grid lines y = 0.25 and y = 0.75 are similar. We use \*, + and x (or  $\diamond$ , o, x, + and \*) to indicate the nodes moving to the boundary x = 0, interior point(s) and the boundary x = 1. We difine by  $m_{j,n}^{i}(t)$  the ith "moment" along the jth grid line  $y = y_{j}$ ,

$$m_{j,n}^{i}(t) = \int_{0}^{1} x^{i} d\mu_{j}^{n}(x,t)$$
(6.47)

and by  $M_n^i(t)$  the ith "total moment"

$$M_n^i(t) = \sum_{j=0}^{N_y} \int_0^1 \int_0^1 x^i \phi_j(t) d\mu_j^n(x,t) dy$$
(6.48)

Figure 6.1 shows the movement of the three nodes as t increases. Table 6.1 shows the changes of the nodes \*, + and x as t increases. Table 6.2 shows the changes of the weights at the three nodes \*, + and x as t increases. Table 6.3 shows the changes of the ith "moment"  $m_n^i(y,t)$  at y = 0.5 as t increases. Table 6.4 shows the changes of the "total moment"  $M_n^i(t)$  as t increases.

Figure 6.2 shows the movement of the five nodes  $\diamond$ , o, x, + and \* as t increases. Table 6.5 shows the changes of the five nodes  $\diamond$ , o, x, + and \* as t increases. Table 6.6 shows the changes of the weights at the five nodes  $\diamond$ , o, x, + and \* as t increases. Table 6.7 shows the changes of the ith "moment"  $m_n^i(y,t)$  at y = 0.5 as t increases. Table 6.8 shows the changes of the "total moment"  $M_n^i(t)$  as t increases. Table 6.9 shows the changes of the exact total moment  $M^i(t)$  as t increases. Table 6.10 shows the changes of the errors between the total moment  $M^i(t)$  and their approximation  $M_n(t)$  as t increases. Table 6.11 shows the changes of the relative errors between the total moment  $M^i(t)$  and their approximation  $M_n(t)$  as t increases. We observe the following results:

- (1) Table 6.8 shows that  $M_n^0(t) = 1$  and  $M_n^1(t) = 0.5$  for  $t \ge 0$ . This shows that the approximation of the 0th and 1st total moments equal the exact total moments.
- (2) At t = 1.5, the solution reaches the steady state based on the tolerance chosen.
- (3) The solution becomes uniform in y as t increases.

- (4) The solution approaches zero in the interior and "piles" up at the boundary x = 0 and x = 1 as t increases.
- (5) The weights for the interior nodes tend to zero as t increases.
- (6) The weights at the other two nodes tend to 0.5 as t increases. They are the amounts of the fluxes leaking out from x = 0 and x = 1.
- (7) Tables 6.10 and 6.11 show that the errors and relative errors between the exact total moments and their approximations are very small. So the approximation is very accurate.
- (8) Table 6.4 and 6.8 shows that there is no significant difference for the approximations of the total moments between using three nodes and using five nodes in the x direction.

time	$x_1$	$x_2$	$x_3$
0.00	0.1127016654	0.5	0.8872983346
0.05	0.08265386728	0.5	0.9173461327
0.10	0.06390525119	0.5	0.9360947488
0.15	0.05111110621	0.5	0.9488888938
0.20	0.04185349059	0.5	0.9581465094
0.25	0.03487139567	0.5	0.9651286043
0.30	0.02944063013	0.5	0.9705593699
0.35	0.02511492851	0.5	0.9748850715
0.40	0.02160400788	0.5	0.9783959921
0.45	0.0187107586	0.5	0.9812892414
0.50	0.01629656768	0.5	0.9837034323
0.55	0.01426107726	0.5	0.9857389227
0.60	0.01252981511	0.5	0.9874701849
0.65	0.01104633973	0.5	0.9889536603
0.70	0.009767086224	0.5	0.9902329138
0.75	0.008657887541	0.5	0.9913421125
0.80	0.007691567891	0.5	0.9923084321
0.85	0.006846241354	0.5	0.9931537586
0.90	0.006104085625	0.5	0.9938959144
0.95	0.005450442828	0.5	0.9945495572
1.00	0.004873149834	0.5	0.9951268502
1.05	0.004362032427	0.5	0.9956379676
1.10	0.003908518293	0.5	0.9960914817
1.15	0.003505337425	0.5	0.9964946626
1.20	0.003146287663	0.5	0.9968537123
1.25	0.002826049383	0.5	0.9971739506
1.30	0.002540037654	0.5	0.9974599623
1.35	0.002284283277	0.5	0.9977157167
1.40	0.002055336282	0.5	0.9979446637
1.45	0.001850187067	0.5	0.9981498129
1.50	0.001666201483	0.5	0.9983337985

Table 6.1. Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Changes of the three nodes \*, + and x at y = 0.5 as t increases

92

time $\omega_2$  $\omega_1$  $\omega_3$ 0.00 0.277777778 0.444444444 0.277777778 0.05 0.2851871392 0.2851871392 0.4296257215 0.10 0.2992481303 0.4015037395 0.2992481303 0.15 0.3148991793 0.3702016414 0.3148991793 0.20 0.3304744604 0.3390510791 0.3304744604 0.25 0.3453345547 0.3453345547 0.3093308906 0.30 0.3592303075 0.281539385 0.3592303075 0.35 0.3720822962 0.2558354075 0.3720822962 0.40 0.3838908217 0.2322183565 0.3838908217 0.3946948176 0.45 0.2106103648 0.3946948176 0.50 0.4045515536 0.1908968929 0.40455155360.55 0.4135260497 0.1729479006 0.4135260497 0.60 0.4216853657 0.1566292687 0.4216853657 0.4290954774 0.65 0.4290954774 0.1418090453 0.70 0.4358195877 0.4358195877 0.1283608245 0.4419172578 0.75 0.4419172578 0.1161654845 0.44744401720.80 0.4474440172 0.1051119655 0.85 0.4524512591 0.09509748189 0.4524512591 0.90 0.4569863005 0.08602739892 0.4569863005 0.95 0.4610925419 0.07781491628 0.4610925419 1.00 0.4648096777 0.07038064451 0.4648096777 1.050.4681739356 0.06365212877 0.4681739356 1.10 0.4712183232 0.05756335362 0.47121832321.150.4739728751 0.05205424985 0.4739728751 1.20 0.4764648919 0.04707021628 0.4764648919 0.4787191679 1.250.0425616641 0.4787191679 0.480758206 1.300.480758206 0.0384835879 1.35 0.4826024173 0.03479516532 0.4826024173 0.4842703071 0.0314593858 0.4842703071 1.40 0.485778646 0.02844270799 0.485778646 1.450.02571474470.4871426277 1.500.4871426277

Table 6.2. Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Changes of the weights at the three nodes \*, + and x at y = 0.5 as t increases
## 6.3 Dependence of Solution upon Parameters in the Singularities

In this section, we shall consider the following partial differential equations:

$$u_t = (x^p (1-x)^q u)_{xx} + u_{yy}.$$
(6.49)

The right hand side of (6.49) is the divergence of the vector field  $((x^p(1-x)^q u)_x, u_y)$ . Again, let P(x, y, t) express the flux across x in the positive direction and Q(x, y, t) express the flux across y in the positive direction at time t respectively, we have

$$P(x, y, t) = -(x^{p}(1-x)^{q}u)_{x}$$
(6.50)

$$\mathbf{Q}(x,y,t) = -u_y \tag{6.51}$$

P(0, y, t), P(1, y, t), Q(x, 0, t) and Q(x, 1, t) express the fluxes across x = 0, x = 1, y = 0 and y = 1 in the positive direction at time t respectively.

Model I We consider the following initial-boundary problem with different parameters p and q:

$$u_t = (x^p (1-x)^q u)_{xx} + u_{yy}$$
 in  $(0,T) \times \Omega$  (6.52)

with the boundary conditions

$$u(0, y, t) = u(1, y, t) = 0$$
 on  $(0, T) \times (0, 1)$ , (6.53)

$$u_y(x,0,t) = u_y(x,1,t) = 0$$
 on  $(0,T) \times (0,1),$  (6.54)

Table 6.3. Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Changes of the "moment"  $m_n^i(y,t)$  with three nodes \*, + and x at y = 0.5 as t increases

time	$m_0$	$m_1$	$m_2$	$m_3$	$m_4$	$m_5$
0.00	1	0.5	0.333333	0.25	0.2	0.166667
0.05	1	0.5	0.349347	0.27402	0.228824	0.198693
0.10	1	0.5	0.363821	0.295732	0.254878	0.227642
0.15	1	0.5	0.376905	0.315358	0.278429	0.25381
0.20	1	0.5	0.388732	0.333098	0.299718	0.277464
0.25	1	0.5	0.399423	0.349134	0.318961	0.298845
0.30	1	0.5	0.409086	0.363629	0.336355	0.318172
0.35	1	0.5	0.417821	0.376731	0.352078	0.335642
0.40	1	0.5	0.425717	0.388575	0.36629	0.351433
0.45	1	0.5	0.432854	0.399281	0.379137	0.365707
0.50	1	0.5	0.439305	0.408958	0.390749	0.37861
0.55	1	0.5	0.445137	0.417705	0.401246	0.390273
0.60	1	0.5	0.450408	0.425612	0.410734	0.400816
0.65	1	0.5	0.455173	0.432759	0.419311	0.410345
0.70	1	0.5	0.45948	0.439219	0.427063	0.418959
0.75	1	0.5	0.463373	0.445059	0.434071	0.426745
0.80	1	0.5	0.466892	0.450338	0.440405	0.433784
0.85	1	0.5	0.470073	0.455109	0.446131	0.440146
0.90	1	0.5	0.472948	0.459422	0.451307	0.445896
0.95	1	0.5	0.475547	0.463321	0.455985	0.451095
1.00	1	0.5	0.477897	0.466845	0.460214	0.455793
1.05	1	0.5	0.48002	0.470031	0.464037	0.460041
1.10	1	0.5	0.48194	0.47291	0.467492	0.46388
1.15	1	0.5	0.483675	0.475513	0.470615	0.46735
1.20	1	0.5	0.485244	0.477866	0.473439	0.470487
1.25	1	0.5	0.486661	0.479992	0.475991	0.473323
1.30	1	0.5	0.487943	0.481915	0.478297	0.475886
1.35	1	0.5	0.489101	0.483652	0.480383	0.478203
1.40	1	0.5	0.490149	0.485223	0.482267	0.480297
1.45	1	0.5	0.491095	0.486643	0.483971	0.48219
1.50	1	0.5	0.491951	0.487926	0.485511	0.483901

time	$M_0$	$M_1$	<i>M</i> <sub>2</sub>	M <sub>3</sub>	$M_4$	<i>M</i> <sub>5</sub>
0.00	1	0.5	0.333333	0.25	0.2	0.166667
0.05	1	0.5	0.349347	0.27402	0.228824	0.198693
0.10	1	0.5	0.363821	0.295732	0.254878	0.227642
0.15	1	0.5	0.376905	0.315358	0.278429	0.25381
0.20	1	0.5	0.388732	0.333098	0.299718	0.277464
0.25	1	0.5	0.399423	0.349134	0.318961	0.298845
0.30	1	0.5	0.409086	0.363629	0.336355	0.318172
0.35	1	0.5	0.417821	0.376731	0.352078	0.335642
0.40	1	0.5	0.425717	0.388575	0.36629	0.351433
0.45	1	0.5	0.432854	0.399281	0.379137	0.365707
0.50	1	0.5	0.439305	0.408958	0.390749	0.37861
0.55	1	0.5	0.445137	0.417705	0.401246	0.390273
0.60	1	0.5	0.450408	0.425612	0.410734	0.400816
0.65	1	0.5	0.455173	0.432759	0.419311	0.410345
0.70	1	0.5	0.45948	0.439219	0.427063	0.418959
0.75	1	0.5	0.463373	0.445059	0.434071	0.426745
0.80	1	0.5	0.466892	0.450338	0.440405	0.433784
0.85	1	0.5	0.470073	0.455109	0.446131	0.440146
0.90	1	0.5	0.472948	0.459422	0.451307	0.445896
0.95	1	0.5	0.475547	0.463321	0.455985	0.451095
1.00	1	0.5	0.477897	0.466845	0.460214	0.455793
1.05	1	0.5	0.48002	0.470031	0.464037	0.460041
1.10	1	0.5	0.48194	0.47291	0.467492	0.46388
1.15	1	0.5	0.483675	0.475513	0.470615	0.46735
1.20	1	0.5	0.485244	0.477866	0.473439	0.470487
1.25	1	0.5	0.486661	0.479992	0.475991	0.473323
1.30	1	0.5	0.487943	0.481915	0.478297	0.475886
1.35	1	0.5	0.489101	0.483652	0.480383	0.478203
1.40	1	0.5	0.490149	0.485223	0.482267	0.480297
1.45	1	0.5	0.491095	0.486643	0.483971	0.48219
1.50	1	0.5	0.491951	0.487926	0.485511	0.483901

Table 6.4. Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Changes of the "total moment"  $M_n^i(t)$  with three nodes \*, + and x at as t increases

time	$x_1$	$x_2$	$x_3$	$x_4$	$x_5$
0.00	0.046910077	0.2307653449	0.5	0.7692346551	0.953089923
0.05	0.023013041	0.2191331593	0.5	0.7808668407	0.976986958
0.10	0.014685321	0.2160106921	0.5	0.7839893079	0.985314678
0.15	0.010483349	0.2145721597	0.5	0.7854278403	0.989516650
0.20	0.992038063	0.7862514012	0.5	0.2137485988	0.0079619366
0.25	0.006288393	0.2132174718	0.5	0.7867825282	0.993711606
0.30	0.005101903	0.2128481441	0.5	0.7871518559	0.994898096
0.35	0.004220822	0.2125776662	0.5	0.7874223338	0.995779177
0.40	0.996456245	0.7876280313	0.5	0.2123719687	0.003543754
0.45	0.003009645	0.2122110044	0.5	0.7877889957	0.996990355
0.50	0.997420468	0.7879177936	0.5	0.2120822064	0.002579531
0.55	0.997772625	0.7880227035	0.5	0.2119772965	0.002227374
0.60	0.998064888	0.7881094017	0.5	0.2118905983	0.001935111
0.65	0.001689814	0.2118180894	0.5	0.7881819106	0.998310185
0.70	0.998518012	0.788243161	0.5	0.211756839	0.001481988
0.75	0.998695503	0.7882953389	0.5	0.2117046612	0.001304496
0.80	0.001151877	0.211659892	0.5	0.788340108	0.998848122
0.85	0.998980124	0.7883787575	0.5	0.2116212425	0.001019875
0.90	0.000905124	0.2115876985	0.5	0.7884123015	0.999094875
0.95	0.000804931	0.2115584512	0.5	0.7884415489	0.999195068
1.00	0.000717112	0.2115328475	0.5	0.7884671526	0.999282887
1.05	0.999360118	0.7884896454	0.5	0.2115103546	0.000639881
1.10	0.999428241	0.7885094665	0.5	0.2114905335	0.000571758
1.15	0.000511513	0.2114730193	0.5	0.7885269808	0.9994884863
1.20	0.999541887	0.7885424939	0.5	0.2114575061	0.000458112
1.25	0.999589318	0.7885562638	0.5	0.2114437362	0.000410681
1.30	0.999631524	0.7885685095	0.5	0.2114314905	0.000368475
1.35	0.999669141	0.788579418	0.5	0.211420582	0.000330858
1.40	0.000297284	0.2114108501	0.5	0.7885891499	0.999702715
1.45	0.000267278	0.2114021563	0.5	0.7885978436	0.999732721
1.50	0.000240431	0.2113943805	0.4999999998	0.7886056192	0.999759568

Table 6.5. Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Changes of the five nodes  $\diamond$ , o, x, + and \* at y = 0.5 as t increases

time	ω	<i>ω</i> 2	(U)2	ωA	( <i>u</i> )=
0.00	0 118463442	0 239314335	0 284444444	0 239314335	0 11846344
0.05	0.139977042	0.225973313	0 268099287	0 225973313	0 13997704
0.10	0.170874697	0 206626649	0 244997305	0.206626649	0 17087469
0.15	0.200965839	0.187750113	0 222568094	0.187750113	0 20096583
0.20	0.228907253	0.170212913	0.201759666	0.170212913	0.228907253
0.25	0.254494478	0.154150051	0.182710939	0 154150051	0 254494478
0.30	0.277794365	0.139521743	0.165367781	0.139521743	0.277794365
0.35	0.298953252	0.126236970	0.149619555	0.126236970	0.298953252
0.40	0.318138876	0.114190794	0.135340657	0.114190794	0.318138876
0.45	0.335519514	0.103277744	0.122405482	0.103277744	0.335519514
0.50	0.351255856	0.093397020	0.110694245	0.0933970208	0.351255856
0.55	0.365497910	0.084454487	0.100095204	0.084454487	0.365497910
0.60	0.378384055	0.076363286	0.090505316	0.076363286	0.378384055
0.65	0.390041077	0.069043827	0.081830190	0.069043827	0.390041077
0.70	0.400584668	0.062423478	0.073983707	0.062423478	0.400584668
0.75	0.410120113	0.056436136	0.066887501	0.056436136	0.410120113
0.80	0.418743061	0.051021748	0.060470380	0.051021748	0.418743061
0.85	0.426540302	0.046125821	0.054667753	0.046125821	0.426540302
0.90	0.433590516	0.041698952	0.049421061	0.041698952	0.433590516
0.95	0.439964991	0.037696382	0.044677252	0.037696382	0.439964991
1.00	0.445728284	0.034077575	0.040388279	0.034077575	0.445728284
1.05	0.450938838	0.030805835	0.036510650	0.030805835	0.450938838
1.10	0.455649546	0.027847952	0.033005002	0.027847952	0.455649546
1.15	0.459908267	0.025173873	0.029835718	0.025173873	0.459908267
1.20	0.463758298	0.022756413	0.026970575	0.022756413	0.463758298
1.25	0.4672388082	0.020570978	0.024380426	0.020570978	0.467238808
1.30	0.47038522	0.018595325	0.022038909	0.018595325	0.47038522
1.35	0.473229572	0.016809337	0.019922181	0.016809337	0.473229572
1.40	0.475800836	0.015194822	0.01800868	0.015194822	0.475800836
1.45	0.478125214	0.013735330	0.016278911	0.013735330	0.478125214
1.50	0.480226393	0.012415985	0.014715243	0.012415985	0.480226393

Table 6.6. Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Changes of the weights at nodes  $\diamond$ , o, x, + and \* at y = 0.5 as t increases

 $m_n^i(y,t)$  with five nodes  $\diamond$ , o, x, + and \* at y = 0.5 as t increases

time	$m_0$	$m_1$	$m_2$	$m_3$	$m_4$	$m_5$	$m_6$	$m_7$	$m_8$	$m_9$
0.00	1	0.5	0.333	0.25	0.2	0.1667	0.1429	0.125	0.111	0.1
0.05	1	0.5	0.349	0.274	0.228	0.1987	0.1772	0.161	0.148	0.138
0.10	1	0.5	0.363	0.295	0.254	0.2276	0.2082	0.193	0.182	0.173
0.15	1	0.5	0.376	0.315	0.278	0.2538	0.2362	0.223	0.212	0.204
0.20	1	0.5	0.388	0.333	0.299	0.2775	0.2616	0.249	0.240	0.233
0.25	1	0.5	0.399	0.349	0.319	0.2988	0.2845	0.273	0.265	0.258
0.30	1	0.5	0.409	0.363	0.336	0.3182	0.3052	0.295	0.287	0.281
0.35	1	0.5	0.417	0.376	0.352	0.3356	0.3239	0.315	0.308	0.302
0.40	1	0.5	0.425	0.388	0.366	0.3514	0.3408	0.332	0.326	0.321
0.45	1	0.5	0.432	0.399	0.379	0.3657	0.3561	0.348	0.343	0.338
0.50	1	0.5	0.439	0.409	0.390	0.3786	0.3699	0.363	0.358	0.354
0.55	1	0.5	0.445	0.417	0.401	0.3903	0.3824	0.376	0.372	0.368
0.60	1	0.5	0.450	0.425	0.410	0.4008	0.3937	0.388	0.384	0.381
0.65	1	0.5	0.455	0.432	0.419	0.4103	0.4039	0.399	0.395	0.392
0.70	1	0.5	0.459	0.439	0.427	0.419	0.4132	0.408	0.405	0.4028
0.75	1	0.5	0.463	0.445	0.434	0.4267	0.4215	0.417	0.414	0.412
0.80	1	0.5	0.466	0.450	0.440	0.4338	0.4291	0.425	0.422	0.420
0.85	1	0.5	0.470	0.455	0.446	0.4401	0.4359	0.432	0.430	0.428
0.90	1	0.5	0.472	0.459	0.451	0.4459	0.442	0.439	0.436	0.435
0.95	1	0.5	0.475	0.463	0.456	0.4511	0.4476	0.445	0.442	0.441
1.00	1	0.5	0.477	0.466	0.460	0.4558	0.4526	0.450	0.448	0.447
1.05	1	0.5	0.48	0.47	0.464	0.46	0.4572	0.455	0.453	0.452
1.10	1	0.5	0.481	0.472	0.467	0.4639	0.4613	0.459	0.457	0.456
1.15	1	0.5	0.483	0.475	0.470	0.4674	0.465	0.463	0.461	0.460
1.20	1	0.5	0.485	0.477	0.473	0.4705	0.4684	0.466	0.465	0.464
1.25	1	0.5	0.486	0.48	0.476	0.4733	0.4714	0.47	0.468	0.468
1.30	1	0.5	0.487	0.481	0.478	0.4759	0.4742	0.472	0.471	0.471
1.35	1	0.5	0.489	0.483	0.480	0.4782	0.4766	0.475	0.474	0.473
1.40	1	0.5	0.490	0.485	0.482	0.4803	0.4789	0.477	0.477	0.476
1.45	1	0.5	0.491	0.486	0.484	0.4822	0.4809	0.48	0.479	0.478
1.50	1	0.5	0.492	0.487	0.485	0.4839	0.4828	0.481	0.481	0.480

99

 $\overline{M}_2$  $M_0$  $\overline{M_7}$  $M_1$  $M_3$  $M_4$  $M_5$  $M_6$ time  $M_8$  $M_9$ 0.00 1 0.5 0.333 0.25 0.20.1667 0.1429 0.125 0.1111 0.1 0.05 0.349 0.274 1 0.5 0.2280.1987 0.17720.161 0.1485 0.1384 0.10 1 0.5 0.363 0.295 0.254 0.2276 0.2082 0.1822 0.1936 0.1732 0.15 1 0.5 0.376 0.315 0.278 0.2538 0.2362 0.223 0.2128 0.2046 0.20 1 0.5 0.333 0.299 0.388 0.27750.2616 0.2496 0.233 0.2404 0.25 0.399 0.349 1 0.50.319 0.2988 0.2845 0.27370.2653 0.2586 0.30 0.363 1 0.5 0.409 0.336 0.3182 0.3052 0.2954 0.2879 0.2818 0.35 0.5 0.417 0.376 0.352 0.3356 0.3239 1 0.3151 0.3082 0.3028 0.40 0.388 1 0.5 0.425 0.366 0.3514 0.3408 0.3329 0.3267 0.3217 0.45 0.432 1 0.5 0.399 0.379 0.3657 0.3561 0.3489 0.3433 0.3388 0.50 1 0.439 0.409 0.3786 0.5 0.390 0.3699 0.3634 0.35840.3543 0.55 1 0.5 0.445 0.417 0.401 0.3903 0.3824 0.37660.372 0.3683 0.60 1 0.425 0.5 0.4500.410 0.4008 0.3937 0.3884 0.3843 0.381 0.65 1 0.5 0.455 0.432 0.419 0.4103 0.4039 0.3991 0.3954 0.3924 0.70 1 0.50.459 0.439 0.427 0.419 0.4132 0.4088 0.4055 0.4028 0.75 1 0.50.463 0.445 0.434 0.42670.4215 0.4176 0.4145 0.4121 0.80 1 0.5 0.466 0.450 0.440 0.4338 0.4291 0.4255 0.4227 0.4205 0.85 1 0.5 0.470 0.455 0.446 0.4401 0.4359 0.4327 0.4302 0.42820.90 1 0.5 0.472 0.459 0.451 0.4459 0.442 0.4391 0.4369 0.4351 0.95 1 0.50.475 0.463 0.456 0.4511 0.4476 0.445 0.4429 0.4413 1.00 1 0.5 0.477 0.466 0.460 0.45580.4526 0.4503 0.4484 0.447 1.05 1 0.5 0.48 0.47 0.464 0.46 0.45720.4550.4534 0.452 1.10 1 0.5 0.481 0.4720.467 0.4639 0.4613 0.4594 0.4579 0.45671.151 0.5 0.483 0.475 0.470 0.4674 0.4633 0.4619 0.465 0.4608 1.20 1 0.477 0.473 0.5 0.485 0.47050.4684 0.4668 0.4656 0.4646 1.251 0.5 0.486 0.48 0.476 0.47330.4714 0.47 0.4689 0.468 1.301 0.5 0.487 0.481 0.478 0.4759 0.4742 0.4729 0.4719 0.4711 1.350.489 0.483 0.4738 1 0.5 0.480 0.47820.4766 0.47550.4746 1.40 0.490 0.485 0.482 0.4789 0.4778 0.4764 1 0.5 0.4803 0.477 1.450.5 0.491 0.486 0.484 0.4822 0.4809 0.48 0.4792 0.4786 1 1.501 0.492 0.487 0.4812 0.5 0.485 0.4839 0.4828 0.4819 0.4807

Table 6.8. Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Changes of the "total moment"  $M_n^i(t)$  with five nodes  $\diamond$ , o, x, + and \* as t increases

time	$M_0$	$M_1$	<i>M</i> <sub>2</sub>	$M_3$	<i>M</i> <sub>4</sub>	$M_5$	$M_6$	<i>M</i> <sub>7</sub>	$M_8$	$M_9$
0.00	1	0.5	0.333	0.25	0.2	0.166	0.1429	0.125	0.1111	0.1
0.05	1	0.5	0.349	0.273	0.228	0.198	0.1768	0.1607	0.1481	0.1381
0.10	1	0.5	0.363	0.295	0.254	0.227	0.2076	0.193	0.1816	0.1725
0.15	1	0.5	0.376	0.314	0.277	0.253	0.2354	0.2222	0.2119	0.2037
0.20	1	0.5	0.388	0.332	0.298	0.276	0.2606	0.2486	0.2393	0.2319
0.25	1	0.5	0.398	0.348	0.318	0.297	0.2834	0.2726	0.2641	0.2574
0.30	1	0.5	0.408	0.362	0.335	0.317	0.304	0.2942	0.2866	0.2805
0.35	1	0.5	0.417	0.375	0.351	0.334	0.3226	0.3138	0.3069	0.3014
0.40	1	0.5	0.425	0.387	0.365	0.350	0.3395	0.3315	0.3253	0.3203
0.45	1	0.5	0.432	0.398	0.378	0.364	0.3548	0.3475	0.3419	0.3374
0.50	1	0.5	0.438	0.408	0.389	0.377	0.3686	0.362	0.3569	0.3528
0.55	1	0.5	0.444	0.416	0.400	0.389	0.3811	0.3752	0.3706	0.3669
0.60	1	0.5	0.449	0.424	0.409	0.399	0.3924	0.3871	0.3829	0.3795
0.65	1	0.5	0.454	0.431	0.418	0.409	0.4027	0.3978	0.394	0.391
0.70	1	0.5	0.458	0.438	0.426	0.417	0.4119	0.4075	0.4041	0.4014
0.75	1	0.5	0.462	0.444	0.433	0.425	0.4203	0.4163	0.4132	0.4107
0.80	1	0.5	0.466	0.449	0.439	0.432	0.4279	0.4243	0.4215	0.4192
0.85	1	0.5	0.469	0.454	0.445	0.439	0.4348	0.4315	0.429	0.4269
0.90	1	0.5	0.472	0.458	0.450	0.444	0.441	0.438	0.4357	0.4339
0.95	1	0.5	0.475	0.462	0.455	0.450	0.4466	0.4439	0.4418	0.4402
1.00	1	0.5	0.477	0.466	0.459	0.454	0.4517	0.4492	0.4474	0.4459
1.05	1	0.5	0.479	0.469	0.463	0.459	0.4563	0.4541	0.4524	0.451
1.10	1	0.5	0.481	0.472	0.466	0.463	0.4604	0.4584	0.4569	0.4557
1.15	1	0.5	0.483	0.474	0.469	0.466	0.4642	0.4624	0.461	0.4599
1.20	1	0.5	0.484	0.477	0.472	0.469	0.4676	0.466	0.4647	0.4637
1.25	1	0.5	0.486	0.479	0.475	0.472	0.4707	0.4692	0.4681	0.4672
1.30	1	0.5	0.487	0.481	0.477	0.475	0.4735	0.4721	0.4711	0.4703
1.35	1	0.5	0.488	0.483	0.479	0.477	0.476	0.4748	0.4739	0.4731
1.40	1	0.5	0.489	0.484	0.481	0.479	0.4783	0.4772	0.4764	0.4757
1.45	1	0.5	0.490	0.486	0.483	0.481	0.4803	0.4794	0.4786	0.478
1.50	1	0.5	0.491	0.487	0.485	0.483	0.4822	0.4813	0.4806	0.4801

Table 6.9. Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Changes of the exact total moment  $M^i(t)$  as t increases

time	$EM_0$	$EM_1$	$EM_2$	$EM_3$	$EM_4$	$EM_5$
0.00	2.2e-16	5.6e-17	-5.6e-17	2.8e-17	5.6e-17	2.8e-17
0.05	1.1e-16	1.1e-16	-0.00015	-0.00023	-0.00027	-0.00031
0.10	4.4e-16	5e-16	-0.00028	-0.00041	-0.0005	-0.00055
0.15	4.4e-16	1.7e-16	-0.00037	-0.00056	-0.00067	-0.00075
0.20	7.8e-16	5e-16	-0.00045	-0.00068	-0.00081	-0.0009
0.25	4.4e-16	5e-16	-0.00051	-0.00077	-0.00092	-0.001
0.30	7.8e-16	6.7e-16	-0.00055	-0.00083	-0.001	-0.0011
0.35	5.6e-16	5.6e-16	-0.00059	-0.00088	-0.0011	-0.0012
0.40	8.9e-16	5.6e-16	-0.0006	-0.00091	-0.0011	-0.0012
0.45	1.1e-15	6.1e-16	-0.00062	-0.00092	-0.0011	-0.0012
0.50	1e-15	7.2e-16	-0.00062	-0.00093	-0.0011	-0.0012
0.55	1.6e-15	8.3e-16	-0.00062	-0.00092	-0.0011	-0.0012
0.60	1.6e-15	6.1e-16	-0.00061	-0.00091	-0.0011	-0.0012
0.65	1.4e-15	7.2e-16	-0.00059	-0.00089	-0.0011	-0.0012
0.70	1.8e-15	1.2e-15	-0.00058	-0.00087	-0.001	-0.0012
0.75	1.3e-15	1e-15	-0.00056	-0.00084	-0.001	-0.0011
0.80	1.7e-15	8.3e-16	-0.00054	-0.00081	-0.00097	-0.0011
0.85	2.1e-15	1.2e-15	-0.00052	-0.00078	-0.00094	-0.001
0.90	2.1e-15	8.9e-16	-0.0005	-0.00075	-0.0009	-0.001
0.95	2.3e-15	1.1e-15	-0.00048	-0.00071	-0.00086	-0.00095
1.00	2.6e-15	1.4e-15	-0.00045	-0.00068	-0.00081	-0.00091
1.05	2.6e-15	1.4e-15	-0.00043	-0.00064	-0.00077	-0.00086
1.10	2.7e-15	1.3e-15	-0.00041	-0.00061	-0.00073	-0.00081
1.15	2.7e-15	1.2e-15	-0.00039	-0.00058	-0.00069	-0.00077
1.20	3.3e-15	1.4e-15	-0.00036	-0.00055	-0.00065	-0.00073
1.25	3e-15	1.4e-15	-0.00034	-0.00051	-0.00062	-0.00068
1.30	3.2e-15	1.4e-15	-0.00032	-0.00048	-0.00058	-0.00064
1.35	3.6e-15	1.7e-15	-0.0003	-0.00045	-0.00054	-0.0006

-0.00057

-0.00053

-0.0005

-0.00051

-0.00048

-0.00045

1.40

1.45

1.50

3.8e-15

3.8e-15

4.1e-15

1.7e-15

1.6e-15

1.9e-15

-0.00028

-0.00027

-0.00025

-0.00043

-0.0004

-0.00037

Table 6.10. Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Changes of the errors between the exact total moment  $M^{i}(t)$  and their approximation  $M_{n}(t)$  as t increases

Table 6.11. Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Changes of the relative errors between the exact total moment  $M^{i}(t)$  and their approximation  $M_{n}(t)$  as t increases

time	$REM_0$	$REM_1$	$REM_2$	REM <sub>3</sub>	$REM_4$
0.00	1.6867e-16	1.6867e-16	1.6867e-16	1.6867e-16	1.6867e-16
0.05	-0.00027869	-0.00027869	-0.00027869	-0.00027869	-0.00027869
0.10	-0.00054912	-0.00054912	-0.00054912	-0.00054912	-0.00054912
0.15	-0.00079	-0.00079	-0.00079	-0.00079	-0.00079
0.20	-0.00099243	-0.00099243	-0.00099243	-0.00099243	-0.00099243
0.25	-0.0011547	-0.0011547	-0.0011547	-0.0011547	-0.0011547
0.30	-0.0012788	-0.0012788	-0.0012788	-0.0012788	-0.0012788
0.35	-0.0013688	-0.0013688	-0.0013688	-0.0013688	-0.0013688
0.40	-0.0014291	-0.0014291	-0.0014291	-0.0014291	-0.0014291
0.45	-0.0014642	-0.0014642	-0.0014642	-0.0014642	-0.0014642
0.50	-0.0014783	-0.0014783	-0.0014783	-0.0014783	-0.0014783
0.55	-0.0014753	-0.0014753	-0.0014753	-0.0014753	-0.0014753
0.60	-0.0014584	-0.0014584	-0.0014584	-0.0014584	-0.0014584
0.65	-0.0014305	-0.0014305	-0.0014305	-0.0014305	-0.0014305
0.70	-0.0013939	-0.0013939	-0.0013939	-0.0013939	-0.0013939
0.75	-0.0013508	-0.0013508	-0.0013508	-0.0013508	-0.0013508
0.80	-0.0013028	-0.0013028	-0.0013028	-0.0013028	-0.0013028
0.85	-0.0012513	-0.0012513	-0.0012513	-0.0012513	-0.0012513
0.90	-0.0011975	-0.0011975	-0.0011975	-0.0011975	-0.0011975
0.95	-0.0011424	-0.0011424	-0.0011424	-0.0011424	-0.0011424
1.00	-0.0010867	-0.0010867	-0.0010867	-0.0010867	-0.0010867
1.05	-0.0010312	-0.0010312	-0.0010312	-0.0010312	-0.0010312
1.10	-0.00097627	-0.00097627	-0.00097627	-0.00097627	-0.00097627
1.15	-0.00092237	-0.00092237	-0.00092237	-0.00092237	-0.00092237
1.20	-0.00086983	-0.00086983	-0.00086983	-0.00086983	-0.00086983
1.25	-0.00081888	-0.00081888	-0.00081888	-0.00081888	-0.00081888
1.30	-0.00076971	-0.00076971	-0.00076971	-0.00076971	-0.00076971
1.35	-0.00072245	-0.00072245	-0.00072245	-0.00072245	-0.00072245
1.40	-0.00067719	-0.00067719	-0.00067719	-0.00067719	-0.00067719
1.45	-0.00063398	-0.00063398	-0.00063398	-0.00063398	-0.00063398
1.50	-0.00059284	-0.00059284	-0.00059284	-0.00059284	-0.00059284

and initial conditions

$$u(x, y, 0) = \pi \cos^2\left(\frac{\pi y}{2}\right) \sin(\pi x) \quad \text{on} \quad \Omega.$$
(6.55)

**Case I** p = 2, q = 2

This implies that both x = 0 and x = 1 are natural boundaries. In this example, for fixed y, one can show that the density  $u(x, y, \infty) = 0$ ,  $\forall x \in (0, 1)$ , is a steady state solution and escaping to the boundary x = 0 and x = 1 as t becomes arbitrary large and u will "pile" near boundary x = 0 and x = 1 with a Dirac-delta function singularity formed at  $x = 0^+$  and  $x = 1^-$ . Our numerical result will show this.

We apply the Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element method using finite element approximations in the y-direction and Gauss-Galerkin approximations in the x-direction. We divided  $y \in [0,1]$  into four equal subintervals. Then we get five grid lines  $y_j = jh, j = 0, 1, \dots, 4, h = 0.25$ . In the x-direction we use three nodes labeled by \*, + and x for each grid line  $y = y_j$ . We only discuss the results along grid y = 0.5. The results along y = 0.25 and y = 0.75 are similar. We use \*, + and x to indicate the nodes moving to the boundary x = 0, interior point and the boundary x = 1. Figure 6.3 showes the movement of the three nodes as t increases. Table 6.12 shows the changes of nodes \*, + and x as t increases. Table 6.13 shows the changes of the weights at the three nodes \*, + and x as t increases. Table 6.14 shows the changes of the ith "moment"  $m_n^i(y, t)$  at y = 0.5 as t increases. Table 6.15 shows the changes of the "total moment"  $M_n^i(t)$  as t increases.

(1) Integrating (6.49) over Ω, integrating by parts and using boundary condition (6.53), (6.54) we have d/dt ∫<sub>0</sub><sup>1</sup> ∫<sub>0</sub><sup>1</sup> u(x, y, t)dxdy = ∫<sub>0</sub><sup>1</sup> ∫<sub>0</sub><sup>1</sup> ((x<sup>2</sup>(1-x)<sup>2</sup>u)<sub>xx</sub>+u<sub>yy</sub>)dxdy = 0. This shows that the total probability is conserved. Therefore, the rate of change of the exact 0th total moment dM<sup>0</sup>(t)/dt = 0. So, the exact 0th total moment M<sup>0</sup>(t) = M<sup>0</sup>(0) = ∫<sub>0</sub><sup>1</sup> ∫<sub>0</sub><sup>1</sup> u(x, y, 0)dxdy = 1.

- (2) Multiplying (6.49) by x and integrating over  $\Omega$ , integrating by parts and using boundary condition (6.53), (6.54) we have  $\frac{d}{dt} \int_0^1 \int_0^1 u(x, y, t) x dx dy =$  $\int_0^1 \int_0^1 ((x^2(1-x)^2 u)_{xx}x + u_{yy}x) dx dy = 0$ . This means the rate of change of the exact 1st total moment  $\frac{dM^1(t)}{dt} = 0$ . So, the exact 1st total moment  $M^1(t) = M^1(0) = \int_0^1 \int_0^1 u(x, y, 0) x dx dy = 0.5$ .
- (3) Table 6.15 shows that  $M_n^0(t) = 1 = M^0(t)$  for  $t \ge 1$ . This means the total mass = 1. Table 6.13 shows that is equal to the sum of the two weights at the boundaries x = 0 and x = 1.
- (4) Table 6.15 shows that  $M_n^1(t) = 0.5 = M^1(t)$  for  $t \ge 1$ . This shows that the approximation of the 1st total moment equals the exact 1st total moment.
- (5) At t = 30, the solution reaches the steady state based on the tolerance chosen.
- (6) The solutinon becomes uniform in y as t increases based on observations of the numerical results along the other y-grid lines.
- (7) The solution approaches zero in the interior and "piles" up near the boundaries x = 0 and x = 1 as t increases. The steady state solution is  $\frac{1}{2}(\delta(x) + \delta(x-1))$ .
- (8) The weight for the middle node tends to zero as t increases.
- (9) The weights at the other two nodes tend to 0.5 as t increases.
- (10) Table (6.15) shows that the ith "total moments" of the steady state solution are all about 0.5 for *i* from 1 to 5. Since the weight tends to zero for the interior node and 0.5 for the other two points which approach to x = 0 and x = 1, the contribution of u to the ith total moment is the contribution of these two weights to the ith total moment. The total moment contributed by the weight at x = 0 is zero and the total moment contributed by the weight at x = 1 is 0.5 which is equal to the weight at x = 1.

We now discuss how the movement of nodes depends on the parameters p and q. We know that the degree of singularities of (6.52) depend on the parameters p and q. If p < q (or p > q), the singularity at x = 0 will be less (or greater) than the singularity at x = 1. The movement of nodes to boundary x = 0 should be faster (or slower) than the movement of nodes to boundary x = 1. Following Examples shall show that. In the following Case II, Case III, and case IV, we use the same method as in Case I to get the numerical results.

## Case II p < q

We take p = 1 and q = 2 as an example. The numerical results are in Figure 6.4 and Tables 6.16, 6.17, 6.18 and 6.19. We observe that the nodes move to the boundary x = 0 faster than to the boundary x = 1.

## Case III p > q

We take p = 2 and q = 1 as an example. The numerical results are in Figure 6.5 and Tables 6.20, 6.21, 6.22 and 6.3. We observe that the nodes move to the boundary x = 0 more slowly than to the boundary x = 1.

Case IV Fixing p and changing q

Tables 6.24 6.25 6.26 and 6.27 show how the movement of nodes to boundary x = 1 depends on the parameter q. Nodes with smaller parameter q move to the boundary x = 1 faster than those with larger q.

Model II. Let p = 1 and q = 1. This implies that both x = 0 and x = 1 are exit boundaries. We consider the following initial -boundary problem:

$$u_t = (x(1-x)u)_{xx} + u_{yy}$$
 in  $(0,T) \times \Omega$  (6.56)

with the boundary conditions

$$\lim_{x \to 0} x u(x, y, t) = \lim_{x \to 1} (1 - x) u(x, y, t) = 0 \quad \text{on} \quad (0, T) \times (0, 1), \tag{6.57}$$

$$u_y(x,0,t) = u_y(x,1,t) = 0$$
 on  $(0,T) \times (0,1),$  (6.58)

and initial conditions

$$u(x, y, 0) = \pi \left[ 0.55 - 0.1 \cos^2\left(\frac{\pi y}{2}\right) \right] x \sin(\pi x) \quad \text{on} \quad \Omega.$$
 (6.59)

By (6.50),

$$P(x, y, t) = -(x(1-x)u)_x = -(1-x)u + xu - x(1-x)u_x.$$
(6.60)

Using the boundary condition (6.57) we have

$$P(0, y, t) = -u(0, y, t)$$
 and  $P(1, y, t) = u(1, y, t).$  (6.61)

time	$x_1$	$x_2$	$x_3$
0.00	0.1776790146	0.5	0.8223209854
0.20	0.1569951415	0.5	0.8430048585
0.40	0.1387971313	0.5	0.8612028687
0.60	0.124213992	0.5	0.875786008
0.80	0.8875133494	0.5	0.1124866506
1.00	0.1028788815	0.5	0.8971211185
2.00	0.07248655953	0.5	0.9275134405
3.00	0.05589220564	0.5	0.9441077944
4.00	0.04523506173	0.5	0.9547649383
5.00	0.03777675115	0.5	0.9622232489
6.00	0.03227123193	0.5	0.9677287681
7.00	0.02805416464	0.5	0.9719458354
8.00	0.02473328072	0.5	0.9752667193
9.00	0.9779398506	0.5	0.02206014938
10.0	0.01986926287	0.5	0.9801307371
11.0	0.01804605226	0.5	0.9819539477
12.0	0.01650877966	0.5	0.9834912203
13.0	0.01519767562	0.5	0.9848023244
14.0	0.01406812019	0.5	0.9859318798
15.0	0.0130862042	0.5	0.9869137958
16.0	0.01222575257	0.5	0.9877742474
17.0	0.01146627805	0.5	0.988533722
18.0	0.01079154418	0.5	0.9892084558
19.0	0.01018853736	0.5	0.9898114626
20.0	0.009646719368	0.5	0.9903532806
21.0	0.009157475852	0.5	0.9908425241
22.0	0.008713703905	0.5	0.9912862961
23.0	0.008309499947	0.5	0.9916905001
24.0	0.007939920837	0.5	0.9920600792
25.0	0.00760079916	0.5	0.9923992008
26.0	0.007288599021	0.5	0.992711401
27.0	0.007000302461	0.5	0.9929996975
28.0	0.006733319251	0.5	0.9932666807
29.0	0.006485414691	0.5	0.9935145853
30.0	0.006254651387	0.5	0.9937453486

Table 6.12. Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Changes of the nodes \*, + and x at y = 0.5 with p = 2 and q = 2 as t increases

time	$\omega_1$	$\omega_2$	$\omega_3$
0.00	0.2279202041	0.5441595918	0.2279202041
0.20	0.2708900461	0.4582199078	0.2708900461
0.40	0.2993447133	0.4013105734	0.2993447133
0.60	0.3216170199	0.3567659601	0.3216170199
0.80	0.3402289554	0.3195420892	0.3402289554
1.00	0.356218263	0.287563474	0.356218263
2.00	0.4112542944	0.1774914111	0.4112542944
3.00	0.4421675514	0.1156648973	0.4421675514
4.00	0.4606419939	0.07871601222	0.4606419939
5.00	0.4721989331	0.05560213382	0.4721989331
6.00	0.4797123027	0.04057539469	0.4797123027
7.00	0.484765015	0.03046997007	0.484765015
8.00	0.4882673879	0.02346522416	0.4882673879
9.00	0.4907622074	0.01847558527	0.4907622074
10.0	0.4925835524	0.01483289517	0.4925835524
11.0	0.4939430195	0.0121139611	0.4939430195
12.0	0.4949781889	0.01004362224	0.4949781889
13.0	0.4957807059	0.008438588265	0.4957807059
14.0	0.4964129983	0.007174003459	0.4964129983
15.0	0.4969184809	0.006163038117	0.4969184809
16.0	0.49732793	0.005344140008	0.49732793
17.0	0.4976635516	0.004672896755	0.4976635516
18.0	0.4979416325	0.004116735089	0.4979416325
19.0	0.4981742991	0.003651401712	0.4981742991
20.0	0.4983707076	0.003258584867	0.4983707076
21.0	0.4985378601	0.002924279736	0.4985378601
22.0	0.4986811764	0.002637647259	0.4986811764
23.0	0.4988048972	0.002390205651	0.4988048972
24.0	0.4989123752	0.00217524967	0.4989123752
25.0	0.499006286	0.001987428079	0.499006286
26.0	0.4990887838	0.001822432463	0.4990887838
27.0	0.4991616173	0.001676765466	0.4991616173
28.0	0.4992262168	0.001547566318	0.4992262168
29.0	0.4992837609	0.001432478197	0.4992837609
30.0	0.4993352268	0.001329546435	0.4993352268

Table 6.13. Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Changes of the weights at nodes \*, + and x at y = 0.5 with p = 2 and q = 2 as t increases

time	$m_0$	$m_1$	$m_2$	$m_3$	$m_4$	$m_5$
0.00	1	0.5	0.297358	0.196036	0.138456	0.102747
0.20	1	0.5	0.313742	0.220613	0.165612	0.129676
0.40	1	0.5	0.32811	0.242164	0.189855	0.154364
0.60	1	0.5	0.340834	0.261252	0.211579	0.176861
0.80	1	0.5	0.352182	0.278273	0.231117	0.197338
1.00	1	0.5	0.362355	0.293532	0.248751	0.215991
2.00	1	0.5	0.400328	0.350492	0.315467	0.287848
3.00	1	0.5	0.424419	0.386628	0.358529	0.335276
4.00	1	0.5	0.440532	0.410798	0.387702	0.367925
5.00	1	0.5	0.451771	0.427656	0.408265	0.391235
6.00	1	0.5	0.459894	0.43984	0.423259	0.408413
7.00	1	0.5	0.465946	0.448919	0.434518	0.421429
8.00	1	0.5	0.470578	0.455867	0.443191	0.431532
9.00	1	0.5	0.474206	0.461309	0.450024	0.439544
10.0	1	0.5	0.477106	0.465659	0.455513	0.446017
11.0	1	0.5	0.479466	0.469199	0.459999	0.451333
12.0	1	0.5	0.481416	0.472124	0.463721	0.455762
13.0	1	0.5	0.48305	0.474575	0.466849	0.459499
14.0	1	0.5	0.484436	0.476654	0.469511	0.462688
15.0	1	0.5	0.485624	0.478436	0.471799	0.465437
16.0	1	0.5	0.486652	0.479978	0.473784	0.467828
17.0	1	0.5	0.48755	0.481325	0.47552	0.469925
18.0	1	0.5	0.48834	0.48251	0.47705	0.471776
19.0	1	0.5	0.489039	0.483559	0.478408	0.473422
20.0	1	0.5	0.489663	0.484494	0.47962	0.474894
21.0	1	0.5	0.490222	0.485333	0.480709	0.476217
22.0	1	0.5	0.490726	0.486088	0.48169	0.477412
23.0	1	0.5	0.491182	0.486773	0.482581	0.478497
24.0	1	0.5	0.491596	0.487395	0.483391	0.479486
25.0	1	0.5	0.491975	0.487963	0.484131	0.48039
26.0	1	0.5	0.492322	0.488483	0.48481	0.481221
27.0	1	0.5	0.492641	0.488962	0.485435	0.481986
28.0	1	0.5	0.492935	0.489403	0.486012	0.482692
29.0	1	0.5	0.493208	0.489812	0.486546	0.483347
30.0	1	0.5	0.49346	0.490191	0.487042	0.483955

Table 6.14. Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Changes of the "moment"  $m_n^i(y,t)$  at y = 0.5 with p = 2 and q = 2 as t increases

time	$M_0$	$M_1$	$M_2$	<i>M</i> <sub>3</sub>	$M_4$	$M_5$
0.00	1	0.5	0.297358	0.196036	0.138456	0.102747
0.20	1	0.5	0.313742	0.220613	0.165612	0.129676
0.40	1	0.5	0.32811	0.242164	0.189855	0.154364
0.60	1	0.5	0.340834	0.261252	0.211579	0.176861
0.80	1	0.5	0.352182	0.278273	0.231117	0.197338
1.00	1	0.5	0.362355	0.293532	0.248751	0.215991
2.00	1	0.5	0.400328	0.350492	0.315467	0.287848
3.00	1	0.5	0.424419	0.386628	0.358529	0.335276
4.00	1	0.5	0.440532	0.410798	0.387702	0.367925
5.00	1	0.5	0.451771	0.427656	0.408265	0.391235
6.00	1	0.5	0.459894	0.43984	0.423259	0.408413
7.00	1	0.5	0.465946	0.448919	0.434518	0.421429
8.00	1	0.5	0.470578	0.455867	0.443191	0.431532
9.00	1	0.5	0.474206	0.461309	0.450024	0.439544
10.0	1	0.5	0.477106	0.465659	0.455513	0.446017
11.0	1	0.5	0.479466	0.469199	0.459999	0.451333
12.0	1	0.5	0.481416	0.472124	0.463721	0.455762
13.0	1	0.5	0.48305	0.474575	0.466849	0.459499
14.0	1	0.5	0.484436	0.476654	0.469511	0.462688
15.0	1	0.5	0.485624	0.478436	0.471799	0.465437
16.0	1	0.5	0.486652	0.479978	0.473784	0.467828
17.0	1	0.5	0.48755	0.481325	0.47552	0.469925
18.0	1	0.5	0.48834	0.48251	0.47705	0.471776
19.0	1	0.5	0.489039	0.483559	0.478408	0.473422
20.0	1	0.5	0.489663	0.484494	0.47962	0.474894
21.0	1	0.5	0.490222	0.485333	0.480709	0.476217
22.0	1	0.5	0.490726	0.486088	0.48169	0.477412
23.0	1	0.5	0.491182	0.486773	0.482581	0.478497
24.0	1	0.5	0.491596	0.487395	0.483391	0.479486
25.0	1	0.5	0.491975	0.487963	0.484131	0.48039
26.0	1	0.5	0.492322	0.488483	0.48481	0.481221
27.0	1	0.5	0.492641	0.488962	0.485435	0.481986
28.0	1	0.5	0.492935	0.489403	0.486012	0.482692
29.0	1	0.5	0.493208	0.489812	0.486546	0.483347
30.0	1	0.5	0.49346	0.490191	0.487042	0.483955

Table 6.15. Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Changes of the "total moment"  $M_n^i(t)$  with p = 2 and q = 2 as t increases

time	$x_1$	$x_2$	$x_3$
0.00	0.1776790146	0.5	0.8223209854
0.20	0.04737482572	0.4409938921	0.8241783121
0.40	0.02403084443	0.4448604727	0.8476643036
0.60	0.01482958065	0.4550658882	0.8673940809
0.80	0.01008567793	0.4651212708	0.8830828805
1.00	0.007289118074	0.4740494633	0.8956991781
2.00	0.002250069707	0.5051335296	0.9335385097
3.00	0.0009863745097	0.524526958	0.9522693971
4.00	0.0005184071064	0.5382862795	0.9632779238
5.00	0.0003076309523	0.5484473913	0.9704182539
6.00	0.0001992931646	0.5560949596	0.9753690413
7.00	0.0001378318697	0.5619588701	0.9789751276
8.00	0.0001001977718	0.5665471543	0.9817040036
9.00	7.572609049e-05	0.5702100595	0.9838329178
10.0	5.902989083e-05	0.573188811	0.9855354713
11.0	4.718510394e-05	0.5756514259	0.9869252876
12.0	3.850700958e-05	0.5777170269	0.9880795345
13.0	3.197534068e-05	0.5794717514	0.9890522877
14.0	2.694566813e-05	0.5809791037	0.9898824725
15.0	2.299607804e-05	0.5822867591	0.9905987671
16.0	1.984166688e-05	0.5834311111	0.9912227338
17.0	1.728481074e-05	0.5844403654	0.9917708763
18.0	1.518516201e-05	0.5853366859	0.9922560286
19.0	1.344095633e-05	0.5861377084	0.9926883123
20.0	1.197703012e-05	0.5868576267	0.993075812
21.0	1.073694277e-05	0.5875079836	0.9934250589
22.0	9.677678823e-06	0.5880982562	0.9937413846
23.0	8.766011728e-06	0.5886362931	0.9940291821
24.0	7.975961631e-06	0.5891286474	0.9942921025
25.0	7.286987989e-06	0.5895808303	0.9945332042

Table 6.16. Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Changes of the nodes \*, + and x at y = 0.5 with p = 1 and q = 2 as t increases

112

time	$\omega_1$	$\omega_2$	$\omega_3$
0.00	0.2279202041	0.5441595918	0.2279202041
0.20	0.208671766	0.4229852476	0.3683429864
0.40	0.2621331027	0.327113844	0.4107530533
0.60	0.3051459394	0.2600779851	0.4347760755
0.80	0.3380120395	0.2105440153	0.4514439451
1.00	0.3633954976	0.172785513	0.4638189894
2.00	0.4313189796	0.07435985001	0.4943211704
3.00	0.4583094813	0.03807751325	0.5036130054
4.00	0.4714473737	0.02208861808	0.5064640082
5.00	0.4787955491	0.0140616475	0.5071428034
6.00	0.4833461619	0.009598700584	0.5070551375
7.00	0.4863870524	0.00690942014	0.5067035274
8.00	0.488539708	0.005182539881	0.5062777521
9.00	0.490132959	0.004015963892	0.5058510771
10.0	0.4913542797	0.003194894872	0.5054508254
11.0	0.4923172628	0.002597202503	0.5050855347
12.0	0.493094267	0.002149729241	0.5047560038
13.0	0.4937333422	0.001806685886	0.5044599719
14.0	0.4942675308	0.001538322743	0.5041941464
15.0	0.4947202406	0.00132468135	0.503955078
16.0	0.4951084827	0.001151994663	0.5037395226
17.0	0.4954448965	0.001010532885	0.5035445707
18.0	0.4957390564	0.0008932708089	0.5033676728
19.0	0.4959983405	0.0007950388424	0.5032066207
20.0	0.4962285206	0.0007119678796	0.5030595115
21.0	0.4964341739	0.0006411177727	0.5029247083
22.0	0.4966189742	0.0005802234192	0.5028008024
23.0	0.4967859031	0.0005275179256	0.502686579
24.0	0.4969374041	0.0004816073189	0.5025809886
25.0	0.4970754986	0.0004413803845	0.502483121

Table 6.17. Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Changes of the weights at nodes \*, + and x at y = 0.5 with p = 1 and q = 2 as t increases

Table 6.18. Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Changes of the "moment"  $m_n^i(y,t)$  at y = 0.5 with p = 1 and q = 2 as t increases

time	$m_0$	$m_1$	$m_2$	$m_3$	$m_4$	$m_5$
0.00	1	0.5	0.297358	0.196036	0.138456	0.102747
0.20	1	0.5	0.332933	0.242511	0.185955	0.147129
0.40	1	0.5	0.360028	0.278982	0.22488	0.185462
0.60	1	0.5	0.381039	0.308246	0.257264	0.218551
0.80	1	0.5	0.397635	0.332077	0.284396	0.247027
1.00	1	0.5	0.410959	0.351707	0.307262	0.271535
2.00	1	0.5	0.449774	0.411751	0.380279	0.352931
3.00	1	0.5	0.467161	0.440382	0.417012	0.395875
4.00	1	0.5	0.476351	0.456138	0.437923	0.421054
5.00	1	0.5	0.481812	0.465774	0.451017	0.437138
6.00	1	0.5	0.485353	0.472153	0.459832	0.448121
7.00	1	0.5	0.487803	0.476637	0.466104	0.456017
8.00	1	0.5	0.489585	0.479937	0.470765	0.46193
9.00	1	0.5	0.490933	0.482456	0.474348	0.466503
10.0	1	0.5	0.491984	0.484435	0.47718	0.470135
11.0	1	0.5	0.492825	0.486027	0.479469	0.473083
12.0	1	0.5	0.493511	0.487334	0.481355	0.475518
13.0	1	0.5	0.494082	0.488424	0.482933	0.477563
14.0	1	0.5	0.494563	0.489347	0.484272	0.479301
15.0	1	0.5	0.494973	0.490136	0.485422	0.480796
16.0	1	0.5	0.495328	0.49082	0.486419	0.482095
17.0	1	0.5	0.495636	0.491417	0.487291	0.483233
18.0	1	0.5	0.495908	0.491943	0.48806	0.484238
19.0	1	0.5	0.496148	0.492409	0.488744	0.485132
20.0	1	0.5	0.496362	0.492826	0.489355	0.485932
21.0	1	0.5	0.496554	0.4932	0.489904	0.486652
22.0	1	0.5	0.496727	0.493537	0.490401	0.487303
23.0	1	0.5	0.496884	0.493843	0.490851	0.487895
24.0	1	0.5	0.497027	0.494122	0.491262	0.488435
25.0	1	0.5	0.497158	0.494378	0.491638	0.488929

114

	time	$M_0$	$M_1$	$M_2$	$M_3$	$M_4$	$M_5$
	0.00	1	0.5	0.297358	0.196036	0.138456	0.102747
	0.20	1	0.5	0.332933	0.242511	0.185955	0.147129
	0.40	1	0.5	0.360028	0.278982	0.22488	0.185462
	0.60	1	0.5	0.381039	0.308246	0.257264	0.218551
	0.80	1	0.5	0.397635	0.332077	0.284396	0.247027
	1.00	1	0.5	0.410959	0.351707	0.307262	0.271535
	2.00	1	0.5	0.449774	0.411751	0.380279	0.352931
	3.00	1	0.5	0.467161	0.440382	0.417012	0.395875
	4.00	1	0.5	0.476351	0.456138	0.437923	0.421054
1	5.00	1	0.5	0.481812	0.465774	0.451017	0.437138
	6.00	1	0.5	0.485353	0.472153	0.459832	0.448121
	7.00	1	0.5	0.487803	0.476637	0.466104	0.456017
	8.00	1	0.5	0.489585	0.479937	0.470765	0.46193
	9.00	1	0.5	0.490933	0.482456	0.474348	0.466503
	10.0	1	0.5	0.491984	0.484435	0.47718	0.470135
	11.0	1	0.5	0.492825	0.486027	0.479469	0.473083
	12.0	1	0.5	0.493511	0.487334	0.481355	0.475518
	13.0	1	0.5	0.494082	0.488424	0.482933	0.477563
	14.0	1	0.5	0.494563	0.489347	0.484272	0.479301
	15.0	1	0.5	0.494973	0.490136	0.485422	0.480796
	16.0	1	0.5	0.495328	0.49082	0.486419	0.482095
	17.0	1	0.5	0.495636	0.491417	0.487291	0.483233
	18.0	1	0.5	0.495908	0.491943	0.48806	0.484238
1	19.0	1	0.5	0.496148	0.492409	0.488744	0.485132
	20.0	1	0.5	0.496362	0.492826	0.489355	0.485932
	21.0	1	0.5	0.496554	0.4932	0.489904	0.486652
	22.0	1	0.5	0.496727	0.493537	0.490401	0.487303
	23.0	1	0.5	0.496884	0.493843	0.490851	0.487895
	24.0	1	0.5	0.497027	0.494122	0.491262	0.488435
	25.0	1	0.5	0.497158	0.494378	0.491638	0.488929

Table 6.19. Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Changes of the "total moment"  $M_n^i(t)$  at y = 0.5 with p = 1 and q = 2 as t increases

time	$x_1$	$x_2$	$x_3$
0.00	0.1776790146	0.5	0.8223209854
0.20	0.1758216879	0.5590061079	0.9526251743
0.40	0.1523356964	0.5551395273	0.9759691556
0.60	0.1326059191	0.5449341118	0.9851704193
0.80	0.1169171195	0.5348787292	0.9899143221
1.00	0.1043008219	0.5259505367	0.9927108819
2.00	0.06646149033	0.4948664704	0.9977499303
3.00	0.04773060294	0.475473042	0.9990136255
4.00	0.03672207624	0.4617137205	0.9994815929
5.00	0.0295817461	0.4515526087	0.999692369
6.00	0.02463095868	0.4439050404	0.9998007068
7.00	0.02102487236	0.4380411299	0.9998621681
8.00	0.01829599644	0.4334528457	0.9998998022
9.00	0.01616708221	0.4297899405	0.9999242739
10.0	0.01446452871	0.426811189	0.9999409701
11.0	0.01307471238	0.4243485741	0.9999528149
12.0	0.01192046553	0.4222829731	0.999961493
13.0	0.01094771232	0.4205282486	0.9999680247
14.0	0.01011752754	0.4190208963	0.9999730543
15.0	0.009401232879	0.4177132409	0.9999770039
16.0	0.008777266222	0.4165688889	0.9999801583
17.0	0.008229123669	0.4155596346	0.9999827152
18.0	0.007743971397	0.4146633141	0.9999848148
19.0	0.00731168767	0.4138622916	0.999986559
20.0	0.006924188018	0.4131423733	0.999988023
21.0	0.006574941083	0.4124920164	0.9999892631
22.0	0.006258615421	0.4119017438	0.9999903223
23.0	0.005970817947	0.4113637069	0.999991234
24.0	0.005707897548	0.4108713526	0.999992024
25.0	0.005466795779	0.4104191697	0.999992713
26.0	0.005244932026	0.4100024907	0.9999933173
27.0	0.005040114249	0.4096173381	0.9999938502
28.0	0.004850468907	0.4092603019	0.9999943223
29.0	0.004674385462	0.4089284431	0.9999947426
30.0	0.004510472031	0.4086192151	0.9999951184

Table 6.20. Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Changes of the nodes \*, + and x at y = 0.5 with p = 2 and q = 1 as t increases

time	$\omega_1$	$\omega_2$	$\omega_3$
0.00	0.2279202041	0.5441595918	0.2279202041
0.20	0.3683429864	0.4229852476	0.208671766
0.40	0.4107530533	0.327113844	0.2621331027
0.60	0.4347760755	0.2600779851	0.3051459394
0.80	0.4514439451	0.2105440153	0.3380120395
1.00	0.4638189894	0.172785513	0.3633954976
2.00	0.4943211704	0.07435985001	0.4313189796
3.00	0.5036130054	0.03807751325	0.4583094813
4.00	0.5064640082	0.02208861808	0.4714473737
5.00	0.5071428034	0.0140616475	0.4787955491
6.00	0.5070551375	0.009598700584	0.4833461619
7.00	0.5067035274	0.00690942014	0.4863870524
8.00	0.5062777521	0.005182539881	0.488539708
9.00	0.5058510771	0.004015963892	0.490132959
10.0	0.5054508254	0.003194894872	0.4913542797
11.0	0.5050855347	0.002597202503	0.4923172628
12.0	0.5047560038	0.002149729241	0.493094267
13.0	0.5044599719	0.001806685886	0.4937333422
14.0	0.5041941464	0.001538322743	0.4942675308
15.0	0.503955078	0.00132468135	0.4947202406
16.0	0.5037395226	0.001151994663	0.4951084827
17.0	0.5035445707	0.001010532885	0.4954448965
18.0	0.5033676728	0.0008932708089	0.4957390564
19.0	0.5032066207	0.0007950388424	0.4959983405
20.0	0.5030595115	0.0007119678796	0.4962285206
21.0	0.5029247083	0.0006411177727	0.4964341739
22.0	0.5028008024	0.0005802234192	0.4966189742
23.0	0.502686579	0.0005275179256	0.4967859031
24.0	0.5025809886	0.0004816073189	0.4969374041
25.0	0.502483121	0.0004413803845	0.4970754986
26.0	0.5023921849	0.0004059428479	0.4972018722
27.0	0.5023074899	0.0003745686933	0.4973179415
28.0	0.5022284312	0.0003466637192	0.4974249051
29.0	0.5021544778	0.000321737949	0.4975237843
30.0	0.5020851616	0.0002993845278	0.4976154538

Table 6.21. Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Changes of the weights at nodes \*, + and x at y = 0.5 with p = 2 and q = 1 as t increases

time	$m_0$	$m_1$	$m_2$	$m_3$	$m_4$	$m_5$
0.00	1	0.5	0.297358	0.196036	0.138456	0.102747
0.20	1	0.5	0.332933	0.256287	0.213507	0.186861
0.40	1	0.5	0.360028	0.301101	0.269119	0.249395
0.60	1	0.5	0.381039	0.33487	0.310512	0.295697
0.80	1	0.5	0.397635	0.360828	0.341898	0.330535
1.00	1	0.5	0.410959	0.381172	0.366192	0.357303
2.00	1	0.5	0.449774	0.437571	0.431919	0.428696
3.00	1	0.5	0.467161	0.461102	0.458453	0.456979
4.00	1	0.5	0.476351	0.472914	0.471475	0.47069
5.00	1	0.5	0.481812	0.479662	0.478792	0.478324
6.00	1	0.5	0.485353	0.483904	0.483334	0.48303
7.00	1	0.5	0.487803	0.486771	0.486373	0.486163
8.00	1	0.5	0.489585	0.488818	0.488527	0.488374
9.00	1	0.5	0.490933	0.490343	0.490122	0.490006
10.0	1	0.5	0.491984	0.491517	0.491344	0.491255
11.0	1	0.5	0.492825	0.492447	0.492309	0.492237
12.0	1	0.5	0.493511	0.4932	0.493087	0.493028
13.0	1	0.5	0.494082	0.493821	0.493727	0.493678
14.0	1	0.5	0.494563	0.494341	0.494262	0.494221
15.0	1	0.5	0.494973	0.494783	0.494715	0.49468
16.0	1	0.5	0.495328	0.495163	0.495104	0.495074
17.0	1	0.5	0.495636	0.495492	0.495441	0.495415
18.0	1	0.5	0.495908	0.49578	0.495735	0.495712
19.0	1	0.5	0.496148	0.496035	0.495995	0.495975
20.0	1	0.5	0.496362	0.496261	0.496225	0.496207
21.0	1	0.5	0.496554	0.496463	0.496431	0.496415
22.0	1	0.5	0.496727	0.496645	0.496616	0.496602
23.0	1	0.5	0.496884	0.49681	0.496784	0.49677
24.0	1	0.5	0.497027	0.496959	0.496935	0.496923
25.0	1	0.5	0.497158	0.497095	0.497074	0.497063
26.0	1	0.5	0.497277	0.49722	0.4972	0.49719
27.0	1	0.5	0.497387	0.497335	0.497316	0.497307
28.0	1	0.5	0.497489	0.49744	0.497423	0.497415
29.0	1	0.5	0.497583	0.497538	0.497522	0.497514
30.0	1	0.5	0.497671	0.497629	0.497614	0.497607

Table 6.22. Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Changes of the "moment"  $m_n^i(y,t)$  at y = 0.5 with p = 2 and q = 1 as t increases

time	$M_0$	$M_1$	M <sub>2</sub>	M <sub>3</sub>	M4	$M_5$
0.00	1	0.5	0.297358	0.196036	0.138456	0.102747
0.20	1	0.5	0.332933	0.256287	0.213507	0.186861
0.40	1	0.5	0.360028	0.301101	0.269119	0.249395
0.60	1	0.5	0.381039	0.33487	0.310512	0.295697
0.80	1	0.5	0.397635	0.360828	0.341898	0.330535
1.00	1	0.5	0.410959	0.381172	0.366192	0.357303
2.00	1	0.5	0.449774	0.437571	0.431919	0.428696
3.00	1	0.5	0.467161	0.461102	0.458453	0.456979
4.00	1	0.5	0.476351	0.472914	0.471475	0.47069
5.00	1	0.5	0.481812	0.479662	0.478792	0.478324
6.00	1	0.5	0.485353	0.483904	0.483334	0.48303
7.00	1	0.5	0.487803	0.486771	0.486373	0.486163
8.00	1	0.5	0.489585	0.488818	0.488527	0.488374
9.00	1	0.5	0.490933	0.490343	0.490122	0.490006
10.0	1	0.5	0.491984	0.491517	0.491344	0.491255
11.0	1	0.5	0.492825	0.492447	0.492309	0.492237
12.0	1	0.5	0.493511	0.4932	0.493087	0.493028
13.0	1	0.5	0.494082	0.493821	0.493727	0.493678
14.0	1	0.5	0.494563	0.494341	0.494262	0.494221
15.0	1	0.5	0.494973	0.494783	0.494715	0.49468
16.0	1	0.5	0.495328	0.495163	0.495104	0.495074
17.0	1	0.5	0.495636	0.495492	0.495441	0.495415
18.0	1	0.5	0.495908	0.49578	0.495735	0.495712
19.0	1	0.5	0.496148	0.496035	0.495995	0.495975
20.0	1	0.5	0.496362	0.496261	0.496225	0.496207
21.0	1	0.5	0.496554	0.496463	0.496431	0.496415
22.0	1	0.5	0.496727	0.496645	0.496616	0.496602
23.0	1	0.5	0.496884	0.49681	0.496784	0.49677
24.0	1	0.5	0.497027	0.496959	0.496935	0.496923
25.0	1	0.5	0.497158	0.497095	0.497074	0.497063
26.0	1	0.5	0.497277	0.49722	0.4972	0.49719
27.0	1	0.5	0.497387	0.497335	0.497316	0.497307
28.0	1	0.5	0.497489	0.49744	0.497423	0.497415
29.0	1	0.5	0.497583	0.497538	0.497522	0.497514
30.0	1	0.5	0.497671	0.497629	0.497614	0.497607

Table 6.23. Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Changes of the "total moment"  $M_n^i(t)$  at y = 0.5 with p = 2 and q = 1 as t increases

Integrating (6.56) over  $\Omega$ , integrating by parts and using boundary condition (6.57), (6.58) we have

$$\frac{d}{dt} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} u(x, y, t) dx dy = \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} ((x(1-x)u)_{xx} + u_{yy}) dx dy \\
= \int_{0}^{1} (x(1-x)u)_{x}|_{x=0}^{1} dy + \int_{0}^{1} u_{y}|_{y=0}^{1} dx \\
= \int_{0}^{1} -P(x, y, t)|_{x=0}^{1} dy \\
= \int_{0}^{1} -\{P(1, y, t) - P(1, y, t)\} dy \\
= -\int_{0}^{1} u(0, y, t) dy - \int_{0}^{1} u(1, y, t) dy.$$
(6.62)

Integrating (6.62) over  $\tau \in (0, t)$ , we have

$$\int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} u(x, y, t) dx dy - \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} u(x, y, 0) dx dy$$
  
=  $-\int_{0}^{t} \int_{0}^{1} u(0, y, \tau) dy d\tau - \int_{0}^{t} \int_{0}^{1} u(1, y, \tau) dy d\tau$  (6.63)

so,

$$\int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} u(x, y, t) dx dy$$
  
=  $\int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} u(x, y, 0) dx dy - \int_{0}^{t} \int_{0}^{1} u(0, y, \tau) dy d\tau - \int_{0}^{t} \int_{0}^{1} u(1, y, \tau) dy d\tau$  (6.64)  
=  $0.5 - \int_{0}^{t} \int_{0}^{1} u(0, y, \tau) dy d\tau - \int_{0}^{t} \int_{0}^{1} u(1, y, \tau) dy dt\tau$ .

Multiplying by x and integrating (6.56) over  $\Omega$ , integrating by parts and using boundary condition (6.57), (6.58) we have

$$\frac{d}{dt} \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} u(x, y, t) x dx dy = \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} ((x(1-x)u)_{xx}x + u_{yy}x) dx dy 
= \int_{0}^{1} (x(1-x)u)_{x} x|_{x=0}^{1} dy + \int_{0}^{1} u_{y}|_{y=0}^{1} x dx 
= \int_{0}^{1} -P(x, y, t) x|_{x=0}^{1} dy 
= \int_{0}^{1} -P(1, y, t) dy = -\int_{0}^{1} u(1, y, t) dy.$$
(6.65)

Integrating (6.65) over  $\tau \in (0, t)$ , we have

$$\int_0^1 \int_0^1 u(x, y, t) x dx dy - \int_0^1 \int_0^1 u(x, y, 0) x dx dy = -\int_0^t \int_0^1 u(1, y, \tau) dy d\tau.$$
(6.66)

Thus,

$$\int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} u(x, y, t) x dx dy = \int_{0}^{1} \int_{0}^{1} u(x, y, 0) x dx dy - \int_{0}^{t} \int_{0}^{1} u(1, y, \tau) dy d\tau$$
  
= 0.2974 -  $\int_{0}^{t} \int_{0}^{1} u(1, y, \tau) dy d\tau$ . (6.67)

where  $\int_0^t \int_0^1 u(0, y, \tau) dy d\tau$  and  $\int_0^t \int_0^1 u(1, y, \tau) dy d\tau$  represent the fluxes across boundaries x = 0 and x = 1. In this example, x = 0 and x = 1 are exit boundaries. For fixed y, one can show that the density  $u(x, y, \infty) = 0$ ,  $\forall x \in (0, 1)$ , is a steady state solution and u will "pile" at x = 0 and x = 1 with a Dirac-delta function singularity formed at x = 0 and x = 1. So, for steady state solutin,  $\int_0^1 \int_0^1 u(x, y, t) dx dy = 0$  in the sense that the integration is only over the open region  $\Omega$ . Therefore, by (6.64) and (6.67), we have

$$\int_0^t \int_0^1 u(0, y, \tau) dy d\tau + \int_0^t \int_0^1 u(1, y, \tau) dy d\tau = 0.5$$
(6.68)

$$\int_0^t \int_0^1 u(1, y, \tau) dy d\tau = 0.2974.$$
(6.69)

Substituting (6.69) into (6.68), we obtain

$$\int_0^t \int_0^1 u(0, y, \tau) dy d\tau = 0.2026.$$
 (6.70)

(6.69) and (6.70) show that the amounts of the fluxes leaking out of the boundaries x = 0 and x = 1 are 0.2026 and 0.2974 respectively. Our numerical result shall support this.

As in Model I, we apply the Gauss-Galerkin finite element method using finite el-

ement approximations in the y-direction and Gauss-Galerkin approximations in the x-direction. We divide  $y \in [0, 1]$  into four equal subintervals. Then we have five grid lines  $y_j = jh, j = 0, 1, \dots, 4, h = 0.25$ . In the x-direction we use three nodes labeled by \*, + and x for each grid line  $y = y_j$ . We only discuss the results along grid y = 0.5. The results along y = 0.25 and y = 0.75 are similar. Table 6.28 shows the changes of nodes \*, + and x as t increases. Table 6.29 shows the changes of the weights at the three nodes \*, + and x as t increases. Table 6.30 shows the changes of the ith "moment"  $m_n^i(y, t)$  at y = 0.5 as t increases. Table 6.31 shows changes of the "total moment"  $M_n^i(t)$  as t increases.

- (1) Table 6.31 shows that  $M_n^0(t) = 0.5$  and  $M_n^1(t) = 0.297358$  for  $t \ge 0$ . This shows that the approximation of the 0th and 1st total moments equal the exact 0th and 1st total moments.
- (2) At t = 5, the solution reaches the steady state based on the tolerance chosen.
- (3) The solutinon becomes uniform in y as t increases.
- (4) The solution approaches zero in the interior and "piles" up at the boundary x = 0 and x = 1 as t increases.
- (5) The weights for the middle nodes tend to zero as t increases.
- (6) The weights at the other two nodes tend to 0.202642 and 0.297357 respectively as t increases. They are the amounts of the fluxes leaking out from x = 0 and x = 1.
- (7) The steady state solution shows that the *i*th "total moment" are all about 0.297358 for *i* from 1 to 5. Since the weight tends to zero for the interior node, 0.202642 for the node approaching to x = 0 and 0.297358 for the node approaching x = 1, the contribution of u to the total moments is that of those

two weights to the total moment. The total moment contributed by the weight at x = 0 is zero and the total moment contributed by the weight at x = 1 is 0.297358 which is equal to the weight at x = 1.

## 6.4 Dependence of Solution upon Lower Order Terms

We consider the following initial-boundary value problems:

$$u_t = -(au)_x + \frac{1}{2}(b^2 u)_{xx} + u_{yy} \quad \text{in} \quad (0,T) \times \Omega$$
(6.71)

with the boundary conditions

$$\lim_{x \to 0} \left\{ au - \frac{1}{2} \frac{\partial (b^2 u)}{\partial x} \right\} = \lim_{x \to 1} \left\{ au - \frac{1}{2} \frac{\partial (b^2 u)}{\partial x} \right\} = 0 \quad \text{on} \quad (0, T) \times (0, 1) \tag{6.72}$$

 $u_y(x,0,t) = u_y(x,1,t) = 0$  on  $(0,T) \times (0,1)$  (6.73)

and initial conditions

$$u(x, y, 0) = \pi \cos^2\left(\frac{\pi y}{2}\right) \sin(\pi x) \quad \text{on} \quad \Omega \tag{6.74}$$

where

$$a(x) = sx(1-x)(h + (1-2h)x) - \mu x + \nu(1-x)$$
(6.75)

$$b^{2}(x) = \frac{1}{2}x(1-x)$$
(6.76)

**Case I**  $s = 0, \mu = \nu = 0.375$ 

For this model, both x = 0 and x = 1 are entrance boundaries. The numerical solution is expressed in Figure 6.6, Tables 6.32, 6.33, 6.34, and 6.35. We observe the following facts:

- (1) At t = 5, the solution reaches the steady state based on the tolerance chosen.
- (2) Table 6.35 shows that  $M_n^0(t) = 1, t \ge 0; M_n^1(t) = 0.5, t \ge 0; M_n^2(t) = 0.3125, t \ge 5; M_n^3(t) = 0.21875, t \ge 5; M_n^4(t) = 0.164062, t \ge 5, M_n^5(t) = 0.128906, t \ge 5.$

Table 6.24. Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Changes of the nodes \*, + and x at y = 0.5 with p = 1 and q = 1.5 as t increases

time	$x_1$	$x_2$	$x_3$
0.00	0.1776790146	0.5	0.8223209854
1.00	0.007293214038	0.4974373111	0.9525687726
2.00	0.001729665784	0.5197840348	0.979205428
3.00	0.0005604709585	0.5350376191	0.9890444785
4.00	0.0002200237825	0.5471084894	0.9935435888
5.00	0.0001006076538	0.556561809	0.9958664928
6.00	5.20099078e-05	0.5637753157	0.9971781213
7.00	2.961587501e-05	0.5692445438	0.9979737196
8.00	1.81891456e-05	0.5734347156	0.9984853627
9.00	1.185755384e-05	0.5767034381	0.998830589
10.0	8.107449522e-06	0.5793039239	0.9990729698
11.0	5.762321927e-06	0.5814116194	0.999248879
12.0	4.228566618e-06	0.5831487323	0.9993801606
13.0	3.18718017e-06	0.584601736	0.9994804905
14.0	2.457345292e-06	0.5858329852	0.9995587449
15.0	1.931810867e-06	0.5868883096	0.9996208684
16.0	1.544429918e-06	0.5878020086	0.9996709522
17.0	1.253002659e-06	0.5886001862	0.999711881
18.0	1.029798929e-06	0.5893030166	0.9997457327
19.0	8.561160685e-07	0.5899263102	0.9997740324
20.0	7.190453803e-07	0.5904826164	0.999797919
21.0	6.094917483e-07	0.5909820126	0.9998182558
22.0	5.209274238e-07	0.5914326765	0.9998357065
23.0	4.485885282e-07	0.5918413091	0.9998507877
24.0	3.889454961e-07	0.5922134506	0.9998639063
25.0	3.3934703e-07	0.592553718	0.999875386
26.0	2.977763748e-07	0.5928659899	0.9998854866
27.0	2.626816346e-07	0.5931535445	0.9998944189
28.0	2.328558889e-07	0.593419172	0.9999023551
29.0	2.073512635e-07	0.5936652628	0.9999094371
30.0	1.854165287e-07	0.5938938743	0.9999157823

	1	[	
time	$x_1$		
0.00	0.1776790146	0.5	0.8223209854
1.00	0.006934697153	0.4474280303	0.8442717204
2.00	0.002390166716	0.4815722684	0.8828764173
3.00	0.001194973711	0.5020708575	0.9051789036
4.00	0.0007074098499	0.5162853797	0.919730071
5.00	0.0004640957196	0.5268758356	0.930018803
6.00	0.0003268038883	0.5350669994	0.9377028371
7.00	0.0002423600226	0.5415689932	0.9436744707
8.00	0.0001869473545	0.5468414933	0.9484583795
9.00	0.0001487047648	0.5511965095	0.9523838006
10.0	0.0001212280518	0.5548516757	0.9556679567
11.0	0.0001008288947	0.5579622653	0.9584600385
12.0	8.526779069e-05	0.5606414518	0.9608659536
13.0	7.312371114e-05	0.562973402	0.9629629983
14.0	6.346080839e-05	0.565021882	0.964808936
15.0	5.564286602e-05	0.5668360216	0.9664478215
16.0	4.922533953e-05	0.5684542522	0.9679138568
17.0	4.389009955e-05	0.5699070505	0.969234012
18.0	3.940465289e-05	0.5712188853	0.9704298507
19.0	3.559590347e-05	0.5724096224	0.9715188278
20.0	3.233282601e-05	0.5734955559	0.9725152292
21.0	2.951475796e-05	0.5744901743	0.9734308648
22.0	2.706332218e-05	0.5754047389	0.9742755861
23.0	2.491674961e-05	0.5762487247	0.975057679
24.0	2.302582074e-05	0.5770301612	0.9757841653
25.0	2.135091924e-05	0.5777558979	0.9764610369
26.0	1.98598627e-05	0.5784318137	0.9770934395
27.0	1.85262848e-05	0.579062983	0.977685818
28.0	1.732841432e-05	0.5796538091	0.9782420332
29.0	1.624814341e-05	0.5802081316	0.9787654554
30.0	1.527030942e-05	0.5807293142	0.9792590406

Table 6.25. Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Changes of the nodes \*, + and x at y = 0.5 with p = 1 and q = 2.5 as t increases

time	$x_1$	$x_2$	$x_3$
0.00	0.1776790146	0.5	0.8223209854
1.00	0.006622257948	0.4211193674	0.8038513326
2.00	0.00233840896	0.457402078	0.837010961
3.00	0.001249800175	0.4785285189	0.8591502431
4.00	0.0007922273888	0.4924933102	0.8746602438
5.00	0.0005508072973	0.5028776844	0.8862115773
6.00	0.0004068231039	0.511067948	0.8952136158
7.00	0.0003138615836	0.5177367631	0.9024675006
8.00	0.0002502851745	0.5232846596	0.9084639723
9.00	0.0002048309658	0.5279787433	0.9135220107
10.0	0.0001711613512	0.5320071041	0.9178588005
11.0	0.0001454895413	0.5355063113	0.9216278052
12.0	0.000125440224	0.5385778075	0.9249408108
13.0	0.0001094620382	0.5412984505	0.9278813437
14.0	9.650658451e-05	0.5437275232	0.9305131806
15.0	8.584437752e-05	0.5459114949	0.932885936
16.0	7.695486689e-05	0.5478873207	0.9350388391
17.0	6.945832895e-05	0.54968477	0.9370033543
18.0	6.307235147e-05	$\bar{0}.5513281031$	0.9388050395
19.0	5.758325838e-05	0.5528372972	0.9404648907
20.0	5.282688369e-05	0.5542289588	0.942000332
21.0	4.867535252e-05	0.5555170114	0.9434259562
22.0	4.502781372e-05	0.5567132207	0.9447540867
23.0	4.180382803e-05	0.5578276006	0.9459952095
24.0	3.893857494e-05	0.558868731	0.947158309
25.0	3.63793274e-05	0.5598440076	0.9482511324
26.0	3.408282432e-05	0.5607598416	0.9492803991
27.0	3.201328819e-05	0.5616218201	0.9502519686
28.0	3.014091267e-05	0.5624348355	0.9511709766
29.0	2.844069649e-05	0.5632031917	0.9520419453
30.0	2.68915359e-05	0.5639306908	0.9528688739

.

Table 6.26. Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Changes of the nodes \*, + and x at y = 0.5 with p = 1 and q = 3 as t increases

time	$x_1$	$x_2$	$x_3$
0.00	0.1776790146	0.5	0.8223209854
1.00	0.006607377161	0.3792326904	0.7588257646
2.00	0.00220046939	0.4067958452	0.7706931329
3.00	0.001121610614	0.4347173604	0.7857362179
4.00	0.0007402373695	0.4511796931	0.7984336386
5.00	0.0005521756939	0.461159263	0.8088016673
6.00	0.0004366788498	0.4682746548	0.8174066602
7.00	0.0003569970948	0.4740401834	0.8247015148
8.00	0.0002986621627	0.4790028157	0.830998128
9.00	0.0002544180809	0.4833734662	0.8365121318
10.0	0.0002199843118	0.4872611973	0.8413976884
11.0	0.0001926105299	0.4907432172	0.8457687842
12.0	0.0001704486633	0.4938820927	0.8497120548
13.0	0.0001522201593	0.4967295525	0.8532948084
14.0	0.0001370190496	0.4993280139	0.8565702828
15.0	0.0001241892226	0.5017120656	0.8595812315
16.0	0.000113245834	0.5039099728	0.862362445
17.0	0.000103823944	0.505945009	0.8649425679
18.0	9.564427449e-05	0.5078365278	0.8673454335
19.0	8.848991239e-05	0.5096007849	0.8695910593
20.0	8.219013692e-05	0.5112515593	0.8716964022
21.0	7.660897502e-05	0.5128006243	0.8736759379
22.0	7.163695866e-05	0.5142581095	0.8755421114
23.0	6.718509269e-05	0.5156327856	0.8773056909
24.0	6.318037653e-05	0.5169322892	0.8789760491

0.5181633045

0.5193317105

0.5204427018

0.5215008872

0.5225103727

0.5234748294

0.8805613887

0.8820689248

0.8835050333

 $\frac{0.8848753732}{0.8861849877}$ 

0.8874383881

25.0

26.0

27.0

28.0

29.0

30.0

5.956243628e-05

5.628096165e-05

5.329373437e-05

5.056509627e-05

4.806474791e-05

4.576679829e-05

Table 6.27. Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Changes of the nodes \*, + and x at y = 0.5 with p = 1 and q = 4 as t increases

time	$x_1$	$x_2$	$x_3$
0.00	0.2502831702	0.5642793625	0.8499422355
0.10	0.1380694362	0.5448216696	0.9220406469
0.20	0.08464881217	0.5296369026	0.9516064912
0.30	0.05599679895	0.5196505098	0.9672745255
0.40	0.03910072152	0.5131443416	0.9766478603
0.50	0.02837399926	0.5088757108	0.9827179892
0.60	0.0211687011	0.5060494594	0.986880513
0.70	0.01611729371	0.5041619245	0.9898584227
0.80	0.01245896946	0.5028910896	0.9920570017
0.90	0.00974278762	0.502028702	0.993718743
1.00	0.007686885634	0.5014387613	0.9949969915
2.00	0.0008961392785	0.5000843021	0.9993932054
3.00	0.0001169158509	0.5000095131	0.9999203926
4.00	1.547189458e-05	0.5000012352	0.9999894575
5.00	2.051288952e-06	0.5000001633	0.9999986021
6.00	2.720307154e-07	0.500000222	0.9999998146
7.00	3.607640753e-08	0.4999999934	0.9999999754
8.00	4.784437624e-09	0.500000303	0.9999999967
9.00	6.345100001e-10	0.500000345	0.9999999996
10.0	8.415590447e-11	0.5000064601	0.99999999999
11.0	1.116406967e-11	0.5000429575	1
12.0	1.48370205e-12	0.5002227197	1
13.0	1.962874308e-13	0.4991273235	1

Table 6.28. Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Changes of the nodes \*, + and x at y = 0.5 with p = 1 and q = 1 as t increases
time	$\omega_1$	$\omega_2$	$\omega_3$
0.00	0.08130670793	0.2760498056	0.1426434865
0.10	0.09270514293	0.2411981715	0.1660966856
0.20	0.1069472399	0.2031589108	0.1898938493
0.30	0.1213260558	0.1691551282	0.209518816
0.40	0.1345030966	0.1399413413	0.2255555621
0.50	0.146028531	0.1153124435	0.2386590255
0.60	0.1558557559	0.09477524188	0.2493690023
0.70	0.1641108891	0.07776472834	0.2581243826
0.80	0.1709822653	0.06373497565	0.265282759
0.90	0.1766687044	0.05219544718	0.2711358484
1.00	0.1813567149	0.04272149528	0.2759217898
2.00	0.1997940823	0.005698205879	0.2945077118
3.00	0.2022642862	0.0007561888181	0.296979525
4.00	0.2025922205	0.0001002939788	0.2973074855
5.00	0.2026357167	1.330109301e-05	0.2973509822
6.00	0.2026414853	1.763987685e-06	0.2973567507
7.00	0.2026422503	2.339393116e-07	0.2973575157
8.00	0.2026423518	3.102492757e-08	0.2973576172
9.00	0.2026423652	4.114513505e-09	0.2973576307
10.0	0.202642367	5.456614616e-10	0.2973576324
11.0	0.2026423672	7.236511499e-11	0.2973576327
12.0	0.2026423673	9.595827944e-12	0.2973576327
13.0	0.2026423673	1.272212315e-12	0.2973576327

Table 6.29. Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Changes of the weights at nodes \*, + and x at y = 0.5 with p = 1 and q = 1 as t increases

Table 6.30.	Gauss-Galerkin	Finite	Element	Method:	Changes	of the	"moment"
$m_n^i(y,t)$ at $y$	= 0.5 with $p = 1$	and $q$	= 1  as  t	increases			

time	$m_0$	$m_1$	$m_2$	$m_3$ .	$m_4$	$m_5$
0.00	0.5	0.297358	0.196036	0.138456	0.102747	0.0791428
0.10	0.5	0.297358	0.214571	0.169451	0.141335	0.122274
0.20	0.5	0.297358	0.229715	0.193886	0.17171	0.15665
0.30	0.5	0.297358	0.242089	0.213373	0.195746	0.183817
0.40	0.5	0.297358	0.252199	0.229037	0.214917	0.2054
0.50	0.5	0.297358	0.26046	0.241697	0.230316	0.222672
0.60	0.5	0.297358	0.267209	0.251966	0.242753	0.23658
0.70	0.5	0.297358	0.272724	0.260316	0.252836	0.247831
0.80	0.5	0.297358	0.27723	0.267118	0.26103	0.256963
0.90	0.5	0.297358	0.280912	0.272663	0.267703	0.264391
1.00	0.5	0.297358	0.28392	0.277188	0.273142	0.270443
2.00	0.5	0.297358	0.295576	0.294685	0.29415	0.293793
3.00	0.5	0.297358	0.297121	0.297003	0.296932	0.296885
4.00	0.5	0.297358	0.297326	0.297311	0.297301	0.297295
5.00	0.5	0.297358	0.297353	0.297351	0.29735	0.297349
6.00	0.5	0.297358	0.297357	0.297357	0.297357	0.297357
7.00	0.5	0.297358	0.297358	0.297358	0.297358	0.297357
8.00	0.5	0.297358	0.297358	0.297358	0.297358	0.297358
9.00	0.5	0.297358	0.297358	0.297358	0.297358	0.297358
10.0	0.5	0.297358	0.297358	0.297358	0.297358	0.297358
11.0	0.5	0.297358	0.297358	0.297358	0.297358	0.297358
12.0	0.5	0.297358	0.297358	0.297358	0.297358	0.297358
13.0	0.5	0.297358	0.297358	0.297358	0.297358	0.297358

Table 6.31.	Gauss-Galerkin	Finite Element	Method:	Changes of	the	"total	moment"
$M_n^i(t)$ at $y$ :	= 0.5 with $p = 1$	and $q = 1$ as t	increases				

time	$M_0$	$M_1$	<i>M</i> <sub>2</sub>	<i>M</i> <sub>3</sub>	M4	$M_5$
0.00	0.5	0.297358	0.196036	0.138456	0.102747	0.0791428
0.10	0.5	0.297358	0.214571	0.169451	0.141335	0.122274
0.20	0.5	0.297358	0.229715	0.193886	0.17171	0.15665
0.30	0.5	0.297358	0.242089	0.213373	0.195746	0.183817
0.40	0.5	0.297358	0.252199	0.229037	0.214917	0.2054
0.50	0.5	0.297358	0.26046	0.241697	0.230316	0.222672
0.60	0.5	0.297358	0.267209	0.251966	0.242753	0.23658
0.70	0.5	0.297358	0.272724	0.260316	0.252836	0.247831
0.80	0.5	0.297358	0.27723	0.267118	0.26103	0.256963
0.90	0.5	0.297358	0.280912	0.272663	0.267703	0.264391
1.00	0.5	0.297358	0.28392	0.277188	0.273142	0.270443
2.00	0.5	0.297358	0.295576	0.294685	0.29415	0.293793
3.00	0.5	0.297358	0.297121	0.297003	0.296932	0.296885
4.00	0.5	0.297358	0.297326	0.297311	0.297301	0.297295
5.00	0.5	0.297358	0.297353	0.297351	0.29735	0.297349
6.00	0.5	0.297358	0.297357	0.297357	0.297357	0.297357
7.00	0.5	0.297358	0.297358	0.297358	0.297358	0.297357
8.00	0.5	0.297358	0.297358	0.297358	0.297358	0.297358
9.00	0.5	0.297358	0.297358	0.297358	0.297358	0.297358
10.0	0.5	0.297358	0.297358	0.297358	0.297358	0.297358
11.0	0.5	0.297358	0.297358	0.297358	0.297358	0.297358
12.0	0.5	0.297358	0.297358	0.297358	0.297358	0.297358
13.0	0.5	0.297358	0.297358	0.297358	0.297358	0.297358

This agrees with the solution

$$g(x,y) = \frac{x^{4\nu-1}(1-x)^{4\mu-1}}{B(4\mu,4\nu)}$$
(6.77)

where B(., .) is the beta function. It is concave down.

- (3) The solution becomes uniform in y as t increases.
- (4) Since x = 0 and x = 1 are entrance boundaries, they can not be reached from the interior. The nodes tend to 0.14647, 0.5 and 0.85355.
- (5) The weight for the middle node tends to 0.5 as t increases.
- (6) The weights at the other two nodes tend to 0.25 as t increases.

**Case II**  $s = 0, \mu = \nu = 0.25$ 

In this case, we obtain similar numerical results. The steady state solution agrees with (6.77) again. It is a straight line.

**Case III**  $s = 2, h = 0.5, \mu = \nu = 0$ 

For this model, both x = 0 and x = 1 are entrance boundaries. The numerical solution is shown in Figure 6.7, Tables 6.36, 6.37, 6.38 and 6.39. We observe the following facts:

- (1) At t = 30, the solution reaches the steady state based on the tolerance chosen.
- (2) Table 6.39 shows that  $M_n^0(t) = 1$ ,  $M_n^1(t) = M_n^2(t) = M_n^3(t) = M_n^4(t) = M_n^5(t) = 0.830323$ .
- (3) The solutinon becomes uniform in x as t increases.
- (4) Since x = 0 and x = 1 are exit boundaries, Table 6.36 shows that the solution tends to zero at the interior node and "piles" up at x = 0<sup>+</sup> and x = 1<sup>-</sup> as t increases.

- (5) The weights for the middle nodes tend to zero as t increases.
- (6) The weights at the x = 0 is 0.169677 and 0.830322 at x = 1 as t increases.



Figure 6.1. Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Movement of the nodes \*, + and x as t increases



Figure 6.2. Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Movement of the nodes  $\diamond$ , o, x, + and \* as t increases



Figure 6.3. Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Movement of the nodes \*, + and x with p = 2 and q = 2 as t increases



Figure 6.4. Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Movement of the nodes \*, + and x with p = 1 and q = 2 as t increases



Figure 6.5. Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Movement of the nodes \*, + and x with p = 2 and q = 1 as t increases



Figure 6.6. Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Movement of the nodes \*, + and x at y = 0.5 with  $s = 0, \mu = 0.375, \nu = 0.375$  as t increases



Figure 6.7. Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Movement of the nodes \*, + and x at y = 0.5 with  $s = 2, h = 0.5, \mu = 0, \nu = 0$  as t increases

time	$x_1$	$x_2$	$x_3$
0.0	0.1776790146	0.5	0.8223209854
0.2	0.1642962137	0.5	0.8357037863
0.4	0.1574239668	0.5	0.8425760332
0.6	0.1534135247	0.5	0.8465864753
0.8	0.1509533372	0.5	0.8490466628
1.0	0.1493957345	0.5	0.8506042655
1.2	0.1483902464	0.5	0.8516097536
1.4	0.147733336	0.5	0.852266664
1.6	0.1473009068	0.5	0.8526990932
1.8	0.1470148679	0.5	0.8529851321
2.0	0.1468250667	0.5	0.8531749333
2.2	0.1466988646	0.5	0.8533011354
2.4	0.1466148369	0.5	0.8533851631
2.6	0.1465588394	0.5	0.8534411606
2.8	0.1465214994	0.5	0.8534785006
3.0	0.1464965907	0.5	0.8535034093
3.2	0.1464799703	0.5	0.8535200297
3.4	0.1464688782	0.5	0.8535311218
3.6	0.1464614749	0.5	0.8535385251
3.8	0.1464565331	0.5	0.8535434669
4.0	0.1464532343	0.5	0.8535467657
4.2	0.1464510321	0.5	0.8535489679
4.4	0.146449562	0.5	0.853550438
4.6	0.1464485805	0.5	0.8535514195
4.8	0.1464479253	0.5	0.8535520747
5.0	0.1464474879	0.5	0.8535525121
5.2	0.1464471959	0.5	0.8535528041
5.4	0.146447001	0.5	0.853552999
5.6	0.1464468708	0.5	0.8535531292
5.8	0.1464467839	0.5	0.8535532161
6.0	0.1464467259	0.5	0.8535532741

Table 6.32. Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Changes of the nodes \*, + and x at y = 0.5 with  $s = 0, \mu = 0.375, \nu = 0.375$  as t increases

time	$\omega_1$	$\omega_2$	$\omega_3$
0.0	0.2279202041	0.5441595918	0.2279202041
0.2	0.2325481017	0.5349037966	0.2325481017
0.4	0.2375344137	0.5249311726	0.2375344137
0.6	0.2413979521	0.5172040959	0.2413979521
0.8	0.2441527197	0.5116945607	0.2441527197
1.0	0.2460550664	0.5078898671	0.2460550664
1.2	0.2473494077	0.5053011846	0.2473494077
1.4	0.2482233103	0.5035533794	0.2482233103
1.6	0.2488108053	0.5023783893	0.2488108053
1.8	0.2492047529	0.5015904942	0.2492047529
2.0	0.2494685031	0.5010629938	0.2494685031
2.2	0.2496449112	0.5007101777	0.2496449112
2.4	0.249762826	0.500474348	0.249762826
2.6	0.2498416103	0.5003167795	0.2498416103
2.8	0.2498942353	0.5002115294	0.2498942353
3.0	0.2499293807	0.5001412386	0.2499293807
3.2	0.2499528495	0.5000943009	0.2499528495
3.4	0.24996852	0.50006296	0.24996852
3.6	0.2499789828	0.5000420344	0.2499789828
3.8	0.2499859684	0.5000280633	0.2499859684
4.0	0.2499906322	0.5000187356	0.2499906322
4.2	0.2499937459	0.5000125082	0.2499937459
4.4	0.2499958247	0.5000083506	0.2499958247
4.6	0.2499972125	0.500005575	0.2499972125
4.8	0.249998139	0.5000037219	0.249998139
5.0	0.2499987576	0.5000024848	0.2499987576
5.2	0.2499991706	0.5000016589	0.2499991706
5.4	0.2499994463	0.5000011075	0.2499994463
5.6	0.2499996303	0.500007394	0.2499996303
5.8	0.2499997532	0.5000004936	0.2499997532
6.0	0.2499998352	0.5000003295	0.2499998352

Table 6.33. Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Changes of the weights at nodes \*, + and x at y = 0.5 with  $s = 0, \mu = 0.375, \nu = 0.375$  as t increases

Table 6.34. Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Changes of the "moment"  $m_n^i(y,t)$  at y = 0.5 with  $s = 0, \mu = 0.375, \nu = 0.375$  as t increases

time	$m_0$	$m_1$	$m_2$	$m_3$	$m_4$	$m_5$
0.0	1	0.5	0.297358	0.196036	0.138456	0.102747
0.2	1	0.5	0.302391	0.203586	0.146988	0.111492
0.4	1	0.5	0.305751	0.208627	0.152669	0.117295
0.6	1	0.5	0.307994	0.211992	0.156458	0.121159
0.8	1	0.5	0.309492	0.214238	0.158986	0.123735
1.0	1	0.5	0.310492	0.215738	0.160674	0.125454
1.2	1	0.5	0.311159	0.216739	0.1618	0.126602
1.4	1	0.5	0.311605	0.217407	0.162552	0.127368
1.6	1	0.5	0.311902	0.217854	0.163054	0.127879
1.8	1	0.5	0.312101	0.218152	0.163389	0.128221
2.0	1	0.5	0.312234	0.218351	0.163613	0.128449
2.2	1	0.5	0.312322	0.218483	0.163762	0.128601
2.4	1	0.5	0.312381	0.218572	0.163862	0.128702
2.6	1	0.5	0.312421	0.218631	0.163929	0.12877
2.8	1	0.5	0.312447	0.218671	0.163973	0.128815
3.0	1	0.5	0.312465	0.218697	0.164003	0.128846
3.2	1	0.5	0.312476	0.218715	0.164023	0.128866
3.4	1	0.5	0.312484	0.218726	0.164036	0.128879
3.6	1	0.5	0.312489	0.218734	0.164045	0.128888
3.8	1	0.5	0.312493	0.218739	0.164051	0.128894
4.0	1	0.5	0.312495	0.218743	0.164055	0.128898
4.2	1	0.5	0.312497	0.218745	0.164057	0.128901
4.4	1	0.5	0.312498	0.218747	0.164059	0.128903
4.6	1	0.5	0.312499	0.218748	0.16406	0.128904
4.8	1	0.5	0.312499	0.218749	0.164061	0.128905
5.0	1	0.5	0.312499	0.218749	0.164061	0.128905
5.2	1	0.5	0.3125	0.218749	0.164062	0.128906
5.4	1	0.5	0.3125	0.21875	0.164062	0.128906
5.6	1	0.5	0.3125	0.21875	0.164062	0.128906
5.8	1	0.5	0.3125	0.21875	0.164062	0.128906
6.0	1	0.5	0.3125	0.21875	0.164062	0.128906

Table 6.35. Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Changes of the "total moment"  $M_n^i(t)$  at y=0.5 with  $s = 0, \mu = 0.375, \nu = 0.375$  as t increases

time	$M_0$	$M_1$	$M_2$	<i>M</i> <sub>3</sub>	$M_4$	$M_5$
0.0	1	0.5	0.297358	0.196036	0.138456	0.102747
0.2	1	0.5	0.302391	0.203586	0.146988	0.111492
0.4	1	0.5	0.305751	0.208627	0.152669	0.117295
0.6	1	0.5	0.307994	0.211992	0.156458	0.121159
0.8	1	0.5	0.309492	0.214238	0.158986	0.123735
1.0	1	0.5	0.310492	0.215738	0.160674	0.125454
1.2	1	0.5	0.311159	0.216739	0.1618	0.126602
1.4	1	0.5	0.311605	0.217407	0.162552	0.127368
1.6	1	0.5	0.311902	0.217854	0.163054	0.127879
1.8	1	0.5	0.312101	0.218152	0.163389	0.128221
2.0	1	0.5	0.312234	0.218351	0.163613	0.128449
2.2	1	0.5	0.312322	0.218483	0.163762	0.128601
2.4	1	0.5	0.312381	0.218572	0.163862	0.128702
2.6	1	0.5	0.312421	0.218631	0.163929	0.12877
2.8	1	0.5	0.312447	0.218671	0.163973	0.128815
3.0	1	0.5	0.312465	0.218697	0.164003	0.128846
3.2	1	0.5	0.312476	0.218715	0.164023	0.128866
3.4	1	0.5	0.312484	0.218726	0.164036	0.128879
3.6	1	0.5	0.312489	0.218734	0.164045	0.128888
3.8	1	0.5	0.312493	0.218739	0.164051	0.128894
4.0	1	0.5	0.312495	0.218743	0.164055	0.128898
4.2	1	0.5	0.312497	0.218745	0.164057	0.128901
4.4	1	0.5	0.312498	0.218747	0.164059	0.128903
4.6	1	0.5	0.312499	0.218748	0.16406	0.128904
4.8	1	0.5	0.312499	0.218749	0.164061	0.128905
5.0	1	0.5	0.312499	0.218749	0.164061	0.128905
5.2	1	0.5	0.3125	0.218749	0.164062	0.128906
5.4	1	0.5	0.3125	0.21875	0.164062	0.128906
5.6	1	0.5	0.3125	0.21875	0.164062	0.128906
5.8	1	0.5	0.3125	0.21875	0.164062	0.128906
6.0	1	0.5	0.3125	0.21875	0.164062	0.128906

Table 6.36. Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Changes of the nodes \*, + and x at y = 0.5 with  $s = 2, h = 0.5, \mu = 0, \nu = 0$  as t increases

time	$x_1$	$x_2$	$x_3$
0.00	0.1776790146	0.5	0.8223209854
1.00	0.07823484538	0.5855926881	0.9672094934
2.00	0.04055785446	0.5952942733	0.9882813902
3.00	0.02175701743	0.5935687484	0.994844609
4.00	0.01176627035	0.5905610497	0.9975060185
5.00	0.006369293956	0.5882085524	0.9987326259
6.00	0.003445438578	0.5866681196	0.9993384161
7.00	0.001862301052	0.58573549	0.999649455
8.00	0.001006005904	0.5851946307	0.9998127142
9.00	0.0005432371344	0.5848889872	0.9998994783
10.0	0.0002932798893	0.5847190463	0.9999459106
11.0	0.0001583142674	0.5846255329	0.9999708549
12.0	8.54529272e-05	0.5845744192	0.9999842838
13.0	4.612291437e-05	0.5845466024	0.9999915218
14.0	2.489414189e-05	0.5845315072	0.9999954253
15.0	1.343607637e-05	0.584523331	0.9999975313
16.0	7.251786085e-06	0.5845189076	0.9999986677
17.0	3.913956526e-06	0.5845165166	0.999999281
18.0	2.112448808e-06	0.5845152244	0.9999996119
19.0	1.140134147e-06	0.5845145278	0.9999997906
20.0	6.153546255e-07	0.5845141503	0.999999887
21.0	3.321198762e-07	0.5845139491	0.999999939
22.0	1.792520631e-07	0.5845138348	0.9999999671
23.0	9.674608925e-08	0.5845137629	0.9999999822
24.0	5.221588395e-08	0.5845137595	0.9999999904
25.0	2.81820044e-08	0.5845137242	0.9999999948
26.0	1.521042681e-08	0.5845137523	0.9999999972
27.0	8.209376512e-09	0.5845136238	0.9999999985
28.0	4.430779077e-09	0.5845135372	0.9999999992
29.0	2.391380427e-09	0.5845133642	0.9999999996
30.0	1.290684337e-09	0.5845139703	0.9999999998

	time	$\omega_1$	$\omega_2$	$\omega_3$
	0.00	0.2279202041	0.5441595918	0.2279202041
	1.00	0.203454735	0.3434686623	0.4530766027
	2.00	0.1877795851	0.1832292954	0.6289911195
	3.00	0.1795033149	0.09603249769	0.7244641874
	4.00	0.1750216309	0.05062793336	0.7743504358
	5.00	0.1725788113	0.02690733567	0.800513853
	6.00	0.1712492829	0.01438787971	0.8143628374
	7.00	0.1705276659	0.007723698604	0.8217486355
	8.00	0.1701368564	0.004155979967	0.8257071636
	9.00	0.169925507	0.002239281609	0.8278352114
Ì	10.0	0.1698113081	0.001207464186	0.8289812277
	11.0	0.1697496338	0.0006513627194	0.8295990035
	12.0	0.1697163352	0.0003514569213	0.8299322079
	13.0	0.1696983599	0.0001896601995	0.8301119799
	14.0	0.1696886572	0.0001023552587	0.8302089876
	15.0	0.1696834201	5.524084473e-05	0.830261339
	16.0	0.1696805935	2.981393018e-05	0.8302895925
	17.0	0.1696790679	1.609099471e-05	0.8303048411
	18.0	0.1696782445	8.684585931e-06	0.8303130709
	19.0	0.1696778001	4.687234992e-06	0.8303175127
	20.0	0.1696775602	2.52979357e-06	0.83031991
	21.0	0.1696774308	1.365380974e-06	0.8303212039
	22.0	0.1696773609	7.369242155e-07	0.8303219022
	23.0	0.1696773232	3.977332705e-07	0.8303222791
	24.0	0.1696773028	2.146649293e-07	0.8303224825
	25.0	0.1696772918	1.158591251e-07	0.8303225923
	26.0	0.1696772859	6.253159069e-08	0.8303226516
	27.0	0.1696772827	3.374960315e-08	0.8303226835
	28.0	0.169677281	1.821536086e-08	0.8303227008
	29.0	0.1696772801	9.831214716e-09	0.8303227101
	30.0	0.1696772795	5.306111562e-09	0.8303227151

Table 6.37. Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Changes of the weights at nodes \*, + and x at y = 0.5 with  $s = 2, h = 0.5, \mu = 0, \nu = 0$  as t increases

Table 6.38. Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Changes of the "moment"  $m_n^i(y,t)$  at y = 0.5 with  $s = 2, h = 0.5, \mu = 0, \nu = 0$  as t increases

time	$m_0$	$m_1$	$m_2$	$m_3$	$m_4$	$m_5$
0.00	1	0.5	0.297358	0.196036	0.138456	0.102747
1.00	1	0.65527	0.542878	0.479022	0.436907	0.40716
2.00	1	0.738312	0.679577	0.645803	0.623033	0.606688
3.00	1	0.781637	0.750933	0.733402	0.72156	0.713057
4.00	1	0.804377	0.788174	0.778999	0.772813	0.768379
5.00	1	0.816426	0.807803	0.80295	0.799684	0.797349
6.00	1	0.822855	0.81824	0.815653	0.813914	0.812672
7.00	1	0.826302	0.823823	0.822437	0.821506	0.820842
8.00	1	0.828156	0.826821	0.826076	0.825576	0.825219
9.00	1	0.829154	0.828435	0.828034	0.827764	0.827572
10.0	1	0.829692	0.829304	0.829088	0.828943	0.82884
11.0	1	0.829983	0.829773	0.829657	0.829578	0.829523
12.0	1	0.830139	0.830026	0.829963	0.829921	0.829891
13.0	1	0.830224	0.830163	0.830129	0.830106	0.83009
14.0	1	0.830269	0.830236	0.830218	0.830206	0.830197
15.0	1	0.830294	0.830276	0.830266	0.83026	0.830255
16.0	1	0.830307	0.830298	0.830292	0.830289	0.830286
17.0	1	0.830314	0.830309	0.830306	0.830304	0.830303
18.0	1	0.830318	0.830315	0.830314	0.830313	0.830312
19.0	1	0.83032	0.830319	0.830318	0.830317	0.830317
20.0	1	0.830321	0.830321	0.83032	0.83032	0.83032
21.0	1	0.830322	0.830322	0.830321	0.830321	0.830321
22.0	1	0.830322	0.830322	0.830322	0.830322	0.830322
23.0	1	0.830323	0.830322	0.830322	0.830322	0.830322
24.0	1	0.830323	0.830323	0.830323	0.830322	0.830322
25.0	1	0.830323	0.830323	0.830323	0.830323	0.830323
26.0	1	0.830323	0.830323	0.830323	0.830323	0.830323
27.0	1	0.830323	0.830323	0.830323	0.830323	0.830323
28.0	1	0.830323	0.830323	0.830323	0.830323	0.830323
29.0	1	0.830323	0.830323	0.830323	0.830323	0.830323
30.0	1	0.830323	0.830323	0.830323	0.830323	0.830323

Table 6.39. Gauss-Galerkin Finite Element Method: Changes of the "total moment"  $M_n^i(t)$  at y=0.5 with  $s = 2, h = 0.5, \mu = 0, \nu = 0$  as t increases

time	$M_0$	<i>M</i> <sub>1</sub>	<i>M</i> <sub>2</sub>	<i>M</i> <sub>3</sub>	$M_4$	$M_5$
0.00	1	0.5	0.297358	0.196036	0.138456	0.102747
1.00	1	0.65527	0.542878	0.479022	0.436907	0.40716
2.00	1	0.738312	0.679577	0.645803	0.623033	0.606688
3.00	1	0.781637	0.750933	0.733402	0.72156	0.713057
4.00	1	0.804377	0.788174	0.778999	0.772813	0.768379
5.00	1	0.816426	0.807803	0.80295	0.799684	0.797349
6.00	1	0.822855	0.81824	0.815653	0.813914	0.812672
7.00	1	0.826302	0.823823	0.822437	0.821506	0.820842
8.00	1	0.828156	0.826821	0.826076	0.825576	0.825219
9.00	1	0.829154	0.828435	0.828034	0.827764	0.827572
10.0	1	0.829692	0.829304	0.829088	0.828943	0.82884
11.0	1	0.829983	0.829773	0.829657	0.829578	0.829523
12.0	1	0.830139	0.830026	0.829963	0.829921	0.829891
13.0	1	0.830224	0.830163	0.830129	0.830106	0.83009
14.0	1	0.830269	0.830236	0.830218	0.830206	0.830197
15.0	1	0.830294	0.830276	0.830266	0.83026	0.830255
16.0	1	0.830307	0.830298	0.830292	0.830289	0.830286
17.0	1	0.830314	0.830309	0.830306	0.830304	0.830303
18.0	1	0.830318	0.830315	0.830314	0.830313	0.830312
19.0	1	0.83032	0.830319	0.830318	0.830317	0.830317
20.0	1	0.830321	0.830321	0.83032	0.83032	0.83032
21.0	1	0.830322	0.830322	0.830321	0.830321	0.830321
22.0	1	0.830322	0.830322	0.830322	0.830322	0.830322
23.0	1	0.830323	0.830322	0.830322	0.830322	0.830322
24.0	1	0.830323	0.830323	0.830323	0.830322	0.830322
25.0	1	0.830323	0.830323	0.830323	0.830323	0.830323
26.0	1	0.830323	0.830323	0.830323	0.830323	0.830323
27.0	1	0.830323	0.830323	0.830323	0.830323	0.830323
28.0	1	0.830323	0.830323	0.830323	0.830323	0.830323
29.0	1	0.830323	0.830323	0.830323	0.830323	0.830323
30.0	1	0.830323	0.830323	0.830323	0.830323	0.830323

## CHAPTER 7

## **Conclusions and Discussions**

In the previous chapters, we proposed and studied a Gauss-Galerkin finite element method for solving a class of singular diffusion equations. The theoretic analysis is very general and therefore the results can be applied to a wide range of singular diffusion equations in two variables. In our examination of the test problems, even though we only use very few base functions in finite element approximation for y variable and very few nodes in Gauss-Galerkin approximation for x variable, the numerical approximation seems very efficient and accurate. In the proof of the convergence of Gauss-Galerkin finite method, we considered a set of boundary conditions under which the boudary terms drop out. Nevertheless, as our test problem in studing Section 6.2 shows, we can apply the proposed method even in those case where the boundary terms do not all drop out (there are net fluxes across the boundaries at x = 0 and x = 1).

A number of important and interesting issues remain to be studied in the future. We state some of them here. How do we modify our Gauss-Galerkin method in general in the case that the boundary terms can not drop out. One possible solution is to approximate such boundary terms by the finite element method in the y variable and the Gauss-Galerkin method in the x variable. For singular diffusion equations with singularities in both x and y variables, a possible solution may need the GaussGalerkin method in both directions. For example, given time t, we may alternately use one dimensional Gauss-Galerkin method in the x direction and then the y direction repeatedly. Obviously much more work needs to be done in the future.

## BIBLIOGRAPHY

## BIBLIOGRAPHY

- D. A. Dawson, Galerkin approximation of nonlinear Markov processes, Statistics and Related Topics (Proceeding of the International Symposium on Statistics and Related Topics held in Ottawa, Canada, May 5-7, 1980), North Holland, 317-339, 1981
- [2] W. Feller, The parabolic differential equations and the associated semi-groups of transformations, Ann. Math., 55, 468-519, 1952.
- [3] Friedman, Stochastic Differential Equations and Application to P.D.E. 's, Vol. I, Academic Press, Inc. 1975
- [4] A. Hajjafar, H. Salehi, D. H. Y. Yen, On a class of Gauss-Galerkin methods for Markov Processes, Proceeding of the Workshop on Nonstationary Stochastic Processes and Their Applications, August 1-2, 1991, pp.126-146, World Scientific, Virginia 1992.
- [5] L. Huang and D. H. Y. Yen, A Gauss-Galerkin Finite-Difference Method for Singular Partial Differential Equations in Two Space Variables, Numerical Methods for Partial Differential Equations, 13, 331-355, 1997.
- [6] M. Luskin and R. Rannacher, On the Smoothing Property of the Galerkin Method for Parabolic Equations, SIAM J. NUMER. ANAL., Vol. 19, No. 1, 93-113, Februry 1981.
- [7] J. Keller and R. Voronka, Asymptotic Analysis of Stochastic Models in Population Genetics, Mathematical Biostatistics, Vol. 25, pp. 331-362, 1975.
- [8] A. Quarteroni and A. Valli, Numerical Approximation of Partial Differential Equation, Springer-Verlag, 1994.
- [9] Z. Schuss, Theory and Applications of Stochastic Differential Equations, John Wiley & Sons, 1980.

- [10] J. A. Shohat and J. D. Tamarkin, The Problem of Moments, Mathematical Surveys, no.1, AMS, 1963.
- [11] C. Soize, The Fokker-Planck Equation for Stochastic Dynamical Systems and its Explicit Steady State Solutions, World Scientific, 1994.
- [12] J. Stoer and R. Bulirsch, Introduction to Numerical Analysis, Springer-verlag, 1983.
- [13] G. Strang and G. J. Fix, An Analysis of the Finite Element Method, Prentice-Hall, INC., 1973.
- [14] V. Thomee, Galerkin Finite Element Methods for Parabolic Problems, Lecture Notes in Mathematics, Springer-Verlag, 1984.
- [15] V. Thomee, Some convergence results for Galerkin methods for parabolic boundary value problems, in Mathematical Aspects of Finite Elements in Parial Differential Equations, pp. 55-88, Academic Press, New York, 1974.
- [16] V. Thomee, Negative norm estimates and superconvergence in Galerkin methods for parabolic problemsm, Math. Comp., 34, 93-113, 1980.
- [17] K. Yosida, Fuctional Analysis, Springer-Verlag, 1985.

